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Ms. Blanca S. Bayo, Director 
Division of Records and Reporting 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Blvd. 
Tallahassee, FL 32399-0850 

Re: Application For Authority To Issue And Sei1 Securities 

Dear Ms. Bayo: 

Enclosed herewith for filing in the above-referenced docket on behalf of 
City Gas Company of Florida, a division of NU1 Corporation (“NU City Gas”) 
please find the original and twelve copies of the Application of City Gas 
Company of Florida (A Division of NU1 Corporation) For Authority For NU1 
Corporation to lssue and Sell Securities. 

Please acknowledge receipt of these documents by stamping the extra 
copy of this letter “filed” and returning the same to me. Thank you for your 
assistance with this filing. 

Sincerely, 

Michael A. Palecki 
Manager Regulatory Affairs 
NU1 Corporation 

End. 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVJCE COMMISSION 

In Re: Application of City Gas 
Company of Florida, (a Division of 
NU1 Corporation) to issue and sell 
securities during the twelve months 
ending September 30,2001 FILED: August 9, 2000 

APPLICATION OF CITY GAS COMPANY OF FLORIDA, 
(A DIVISION OF NU1 CORPORATION) FOR AUTHORITY 

FOR NU! CORPORATION TO ISSUE AND SELL SECURITIES 

Pursuant to Chapter 25-8, Florida Administrative Code, and Section 366.04, 

Florida Statutes, City Gas Company of Florida (a division of NU1 Corporation) (“City 

Gas”), submits this application for authority for NU1 Corporation (“NUI”) to issue and set1 

securities during the period beginning October 1, 2000 and ending September 30, 2001. 

In support of this request, City Gas provides the following information: 

1. Name and Address of ADDlicant: The exact name of the Applicant and the 

address of its principal business office is: 

City Gas Complany of Florida 
(a division of NU1 Corporation) 
955 East Xth Street 
Hialeah, Florida 3301 3-3498 

2. Date and Place of Incorporation: NU1 was incorporated in 1969 under the 

laws of New Jersey. City Gas, a public utility since 1960, is engaged in the distribution of 

natural gas to just over 100,000 customers in Brevard, Broward, Dade, St. Lucie, Martin 

and Indian River Ccrunties, and is an operating division of NUI. City Gas owns 
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approximately 2,800 miles of steel and plastic mains for the distribution of natural gas in 

Florida, as well as gate stations, meters and related equipment. City Gas also owns real 

property in Oade, Broward, Brevard and St. Lucie Counties in Florida, including a general 

office building in Hialeah, Florida that serves as its headquarters and service center from 

which City Gas dispatches service crews and conducts construction and maintenance 

activities for its Miami Division. In addition, City Gas operates an office and service center 

in Rockledge, Florida, and an office in Port St. Lucie, Florida. 

3. Persons to Receive Notices: The names and addresses of the persons 

authorized to receive notices and communications with respect to this application are: 

M. Patricia Keefe 
Associate General Counsel & Director, Regulatory Affairs 
NU I Corporation 
One Elizabethtmn Plaza 
Union, NJ 07083 

Michael A. Palecki 
Manager, Regulatory Affairs 
NU I Corporation 
PMB 224 
3539 Apalachee Parkway 
Tallahassee, FIL 3231 1 

Robert F. Lurie 
Vice President, Corporate Development & Treasurer 
NU1 Corporation 

P.O. Box 760 
Bedminster, NJI 07921-0760 

550 Route 202-206 

4. Statement of CaDital Stock and Funded Debt: 

Capital Stock. Each item below is as of June 4 ,  2000. 
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(a) Brief Description. The Capitat Stock of NU1 consisted of (i) Common Stock, 
No Par Varlue, and (ii) Preferred Stock, No Par Value. 

(b) Amount Authorized. 30,000,000 shares of Common Stock were authorized. 
5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock were authorized. 

(c) Amount Outstandinq. 12,969,319 shares of Common Stock were outstanding 
(exclusive of any amount held in the treasury) and 0 shares of Preferred Stock 
were outstanding. 

(d) Amount Held as Reacquired Securities. 17 9,443 shares of Common Stock 
were reacquired by NUL 

(e) Amount Pledaed. No shares of Common Stock have been pledged by NU1 or 
City Gas. 

(f) Amount Owned by Affiliated Corporations. No shares of Common Stock were 
owned by affiliated corporations. 

(9) Amount Held in Anv Fund. No shares of Common Stock were held in any 
fund. 

Funded Debt. Each item below is as of June 1,2000. 

(a), (b), and (c) Brief Description; Amount Authorized; Outstandinq: 

(i) 8.35% Medium Term Notes. Series A, due February, 1,2006; 
$50,000,000 outstanding . 

(ii) 7.13% Medium-Term Notes, Series A, due August I, 2002; 
$20,000,000 outstanding. 

(iii) 6.40% Brevard County Industrial Development Revenue Bonds, due 
October 1, 2004; $20,000,000 outstanding; 

(iv) New Jersey Economic Development Authority Bonds, 5.70% due 
Jiune i, 2032, $54,600,000 outstanding; Variable Rate due June 1, 
2026, $39,000,000 outstanding; 6.35% due October 1, 2022, 
$46,500,000 outstanding; 5.25% due November 1, 2033, 
$40,000,000 outstanding. 

(d) Amount Held as Reacquired Securities. None. 

{e) Amount Pledqed. None. 
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(f) Amount Owned bv Affiliated Corporations. None. 

(9) Amount Held in Any Fund. 

NU1 has deposited in trust the unexpended portion of the net proceeds 
from1 the 6.40% Brevard County Industrial Development Revenue 
Bonds, until drawn upon for eligible expenditures. As of May 31, 2000, 
the total unexpended portion held in trust, including interest thereon, 
was $7,754,146. 

(ii) NU1 has deposited in trust the unexpended portion of the net proceeds 
of the 5.25% New Jersey Economic Development Authority Bonds, until 
drawn on for eligible expenditures. As of May 31, 2000, the total 
unexpended portion held in trust, including interest thereon, was 
$23,626,681. 

5. Statement of Proposed Transactions. 

(a), (b) and (c) Kind and Nature of Securities; Maximum Principal Amount Amount; 

Dividend andlor Interest Rate(s); NU1 intends to issue approximately 125,000 shares of 

common stock in fiscal year 2001 under various plans. At an estimated price per share 

of $28, this will result in an amount of approximately $3,500,000. Additionally, NU1 

intends to issue approximately $22,000,000 in common stock associated with the 

purchase of Virginia Gas Company. Using the estimated price of $28 per share, this 

would calculate to another 745,714 shares issued. NU1 does not intend to issue any 

preferred stock during fiscal 2001. NU1 intends to issue approximately $40,000,000 in 

debt to finance new projectdexpansion, as well as another $30,000,000 to refinance 

existing debt. NU1 does not intend to change its current dividend of $.98 per share for 

fiscal 2001. This calc,ulates to a dividend rate of 3.5% using the estimated market price 

of $28 per share. 
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6. PurDoses of Issues: Approximately $22,000,000 from sale of common 

stock will be used fix the purchase of Virginia Gas Company. The majority of the 

remaining common stock for which NU1 seeks issuance authority would be used to 

reduce the amount of short-term debt currently outstanding. 

7. Facts SuDporting Leqalitv, Necessitv, or ApDropriateness: Proceeds from 

the issuance of debt for which NU1 seeks authority herein will be used to enable NUI to 

perform its obligation to manage and operate its utility businesses so as to continue to 

provide reliable and leconomical setvice to its customers in its rapidly growing service 

areas. The purposes for which NU1 seeks issuance of the described securities are 

consistent with and will not impair the proper performance by City Gas as a public 

utility. The issuance of the securities described is for a lawful object within the 

corporate purposes crf the applicant, and is reasonable, necessary, and appropriate to 

provide reliable and economic service to applicant’s customers in its rapidly growing 

service area. 

8. The names and addresses of counsel who will pass upon the legality of the 

proposed issues are: 

Associate Geneiral Counsel 

M. Patricia Keefe 
NU! Corporation 
0 ne E I izabethtom Plaza 
Union, NJ 10083 

9. 

General Counsel: 

James Van Horn 
NUI Corporation 
550 Route 202-206 
P. 0. Box 760 
Bedminster, NJ 07921-0760 

A Registration Statement with respect to each public sale of securities 
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hereunder which is subject to and not exempt from the registration requirements of the 

Securities Act of 1933, as amended, will be filed with the Securities and Exchange 

Commission, 450 Fifth Street NW, Washington, DC 20549. 

I O .  There is; no measure of control or ownership exercised by or over the 

company as to any other public utility. NU1 is not at this time a member of any holding 

company system. By the ctose of fiscal 2001, NU1 will restructure itself as a holding 

Company and City Gas Company of Florida will emerge as a division of NU1 Utilities Inc., 

a wholly owned subsidiary. The capital structure of City Gas Company of Florida will be 

strengthened as a result. NU1 has discussed the restructuring process with Commission 

Staff, and will continue to communicate with Commission Staff as the process takes 

place. 

The following exhibits required by Rule 25-8.003, Ftorida administrative code are 

attached: 

Exhibit A: 

Exhibit B-I : 

Exhibit B-2: 

Financial statements of Nut (Form 10K for the Fiscal Year Ended 
September 30, 1999 and Form 1 OQ for the Quarter Ended 
December 31, 1999, and March 31, 2000). 

Estimated Projected Sources and Uses of Funds for NU1 for the 
Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2001. 

Estimated Construction Spending for City Gas Company of Florida 
for the Twelve Months Ended September 30, 2001. 

WHEREFORE, City Gas Company of Florida, a division of NU1 Corporation, 

requests the Commission to enter an Order authorizing NU1 to issue and sell securities in 

amounts not to exceed $40 million, during the Period September 30, 2000 - September 

30, 2001. To facilitate the ability of NU1 to position itself to take advantage of favorable 
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conditions in the capital markets, NU1 respectfully asks the commission to expedite its 

consideration of this application. 

Michael A. Palecki 
NU1 Corporation 
PMB 224 Apalachee Parkway 
Tallahassee, FL 3231 t 
(850) 877-5282 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In Re: Application of City Gas 1 DOCKET NO. 
Company of Florida, (a Division of 
NU1 Corporation) to issue and sell 

1 
) 

securities during the twelve months 
ending September 30, 2001 1 FILED: August 9,2000 

APPL.ICATION OF CIW GAS COMPANY OF FLORIDA, 
(A DIVISION OF NU1 CORPORATION) FOR AUTHORIM 

FOR NU1 CORPORATION TO ISSUE AND SELL SECURITIES 

EXHIBIT A 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF NU1 

(FORMIOK FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 
1999,AIUD FORM I O Q  FOR THE QUARTERS ENDED 

DECEMBER 31,1999, AND MARCH 31,2000) 



UNITED STATES SECURJTIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
WASHINGTON, DC 2 M 9  

FORM 10-K 
(Mark me} 

a ANIYUAS, REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR XS(q OF THE SEWRITIES 
EX=- ACT OF 1934 

For the &cal yes ended September 30,1999 
OR 

tl W H ' I ' I U N  REPORT P W U M  TO SECTION 13 OR lyd)  OF THE 
SECURITfES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

Fur the transiticm perlod from to 

Commission FiIe Number 1-8353 

N U  CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specifred in its charter) 

New Jersey 22-1869941 
(State of ~orpora€im) (IRS employzr idcntifimtiw w.) 

5 0  Route 202-206, P. 0. BOX 760, Bedminster, NEW J e w  07911-0760 
(Address of principal executive offices, including zip code) 

(908) 781-0500 
(Regiseant's telephone number, including am code) 

Securities regis id  pursuant t~ Section 12@) of the Act: 
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N U  Corporation 

Annual Report on Form 10-K For The 
Flscal Year Ended September 30,1999 
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NUI Corporation 

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the 
Fiscal Year Ended September 30,1999 

PART 1 
Item 1. Business 

NUl Corporation (NUI or the Company) was incorporated in New Jersey in 1969. NCTI is a multi-state energy sales, 
services and distribution company. Its utility operations distribute natural gas and related services in six states along the 
eastern seaboard and comprise Elizabethtown Gas (New Jersey), City Gas Company of Florida, North Carolina Gas, 
Elkton Gas (Maryland), Valley Cities Gas (Pennsylvania) and Waverly Gas (New York). The Company's subsidiaries 
include NUI Energy, Inc. (NVI Energy), an energy retailer; Nu1 Energy Brokers, Inc. (NLTI Energy Brokers), an 
energy wholesaler; NLTI Energy Solutions, Inc., an energy project development and consulting entity; N U  
Environmental Group, Inc., an environmental project development subsidiary; Utility Business Services, Inc. VS), a 
customer and geographic information systems and services subsibary; and International Telephone Group, Inc. (ITG), 
a telecommunications senices subsidiary (see Note 2 of the Notes to the ConsoIidated Financial Statements). The 
Company also provides sales and marketing outsourcing through its 49% equity interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC 
(TIC). 

The principal executive offices of the Company are located at 550 Route 202-206, Box 760, Bedminster, NJ 07921- 
0760; telephone: (908) 781-0500. 

The Company's operatiom are organized and managed under three primary segments: Distrihtion Services, Energy 
Sales and Services and Customer Services. The Company also has corporate operations that do not currently generate 
operating revenues. Reference is made to Note 10, "Business Segment Information" of the "Notes to the Consolidated 
Financial Statements" for a discussion regarding fmmcial information about the business segments of the Company. 
See also Item 6-"Selected Financial Data-Summary ConsoIidated Operating Data" for summary mformation by 
customer class with respect to operiting revenues, gas volumes sold or transported and average number of utility 
customers served. A discu.ssion of the business of each segment follows. 

Distribution Services Seg,ment 

Products arid Services 

The Distribution Service!r segment distributes natural gas in six states through the Company's regulated utility 
divisions. Such distribution services are regulated as to price, safety and return by the regulatory commissions of the 
states in which in the Company opmtes (see Regulation). The Distribution Services segment serves approximately 
372,000 customers. of wlich 67% ;are in New Jersey and 33% are in other states. Most of the Company's utility 
customers are residential and commercial customers who purchase gas primarily for space heating. Distribution 
Services' operating revenues for fiscal 1999 amounted to approximately $378.1 d o n ,  of which 78% was generated 
by utility operations in New Jersey md 22% was generated by utility operations in other states. Gas volumes sold or 
bansported in fiscal 1999 amounted to 83.7 million Mcf, of which approximately 79% was sold or transported in New 
Jersey and 21% was SOW or tr'anqmmd in other states. An Mcf is a basic unit of measurement for natural gas 
comprising 1,000 cubic feet of gas. A description of each of the Company's utility divisions follows. 

EIizabelhlown Gas. The Company, lhough Elizabethtown Gas (Elizabethtown), provides gas service to approx'ktely 
248,000 customers in fmchised territories within seven counties in central and northwestem New Jersey. 
Elizabethtown's 1,300 square-mile service territory has a total population of approximately 950,000. Most of the state's 
customers are located in densely-populated central New Jersey, where increases in the number of customers are 
primarily from conversiorw to gas heating from alternative forms of heating. 

Elizabethtown's regulated gas volumes sold or transported and customers served for the past three fiscal years were as 
follows: 
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Regulated Gas Volumes Sold OF Transported (in thousands of Mcf) 

Firm Sales: 
Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Interruptible Sales 
Transportation Sales 
Total 

18,818 
6,802 
732 

15,477 

$6.4 15 
24.586 

18,299 
7,587 
3,903 

1 1,927 
23.361 
65.Q83 

Utility Customers Served (twelve-month average) 

Firm Sales: 
Residential - Heating 
Residential - Non-heating 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Interruptible Sales 
Transportation Services 
Total 

1999 
172,406 
55,946 
15,821 

208 
25 

3.155 
247.5 6 1 

168,475 
56,358 
15,907 

229 
72 

2.773 
243.8 14 

1997 
19,485 
9,333 
4,085 

12,886 
ZSu 
$8.299 

I997 

165,305 
57,380 
16,922 

262 
72 

1,373 
241.314 

Gas volumes sold to the Company's f m  customers are sensitive to the weather in New Jersey. Zn fiscal 1999, the 
weather in New Jersey was 16% warmer than n o m 1  and 1% colder than the prior year, Additionally, weather in fiscal 
1998 was 17% wanner than normal and 9% warmer than fEca1 1997. Wbile the effect of the warm weather has caused 
sales of gas to deche, Elizabethtown's tariff contains a weather normalization clause that is designed to help stabilize 
the Company's results by increasing amounts charged to Customers when weather has been warmer than normal and 
decreasing amounts charged when weather has been colder than normal. As a result of weather normalization clauses, 
operating margins were approximately $5.4 million and $5.6 million higher in fiscal 1999 and 1998, respectively, than 
they would have been without such clauses. For a further discussion on variations in revenues, see Item 7, 
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations". 

The growth in the number of residential heating customers principally reflects the Company's marketing emphasis to 
convert residential non-heating customers to full gas heating service. ApproximateIy 70% of the residential heating 
customers added in New Jersey since 1991 represented homes that were converted to gas heating from other forms of 
space heating and the remainder consisted of new homes. 

The Company's commercial and industrial customers currently have the ability to utilize transportation service and 
purchase their gas fiom other suppliers. The rate charged to mnsportation customers remains regulated as to price and 
returns. Tariffs for transportation service have been designed to provide the same margins as bundled s a t s  tariffs. 
Therefore, except for the regulatory risk of full recovery of gas costs, the Company is financially indifferent as to 
whether it transports gas OT sells gas and transportation together, 

On April 30, 1999, the Company made a filing with the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NJBPU) which will 
enable all customers in New Jersey (including residential customers) to choose an alternative supplier of natural gas. 
This filing was a result of the "Electric Discount and Energy Competition Act" legislation, whch was signed into 
law in New Jersey on February 9, 1999. The legislation has several pravisions that affect gas utilities. It provides all 
gas customers with the ability to choose an alternate natural gas supplier by December 3 1, 1999. At the same time, 
the utility will continue to provide basic gas service bough December 2002 when the NJBPU will decide if the gas 
supply function should be made competitive. The NJBPU will also conduct proceedings to determine whether 
customers should be afforded the option of contracting with an alternative provider of billing, meter reading and 
other customer account services that may be deemed competitive by December 3 1, 2000. A NJBPU decision on the 
Company's April 30' filing is expected in early fiscal 2000. 
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Elizabethtown's "intemptilAe" customers have alternative energy sources and use gas on an "as available" basis. 
Variations in the volume of gas sold or transported to these customers do not have a significant effect on the 
Company's eammgs becau.se in acccirdance with New Jersey regulatory requirements, SO% of the margins that 
otherwise would be realized on gas sold or transported to interruptiile customers are used to reduce gas costs charged 
to fm sales customers. 

City Gas Company of Florida. City Gas Company of Florida (City Gas) is the second largest natural gas utility in 
Florida, supplpg gas to over 99,000 customers in Dade and Broward Counties in south Florida, and in Brevard, 
Indian River and St. Lucie Counties i r k  central Florida. City Gas' service areas cover approximately 3,000 square miles 
and have a.population of approximately 1.7 million. 

City Gas' regulated gas vdumes sold or transported and customers served for the past three fiscal years were as 

Firm Salts: 
Residential 
Comnmci,al 

Interruptible Sales 
Transportati0,n Sales 
Total 

m 
1,738 
3,353 

111 
4.174 
9.376 

follows: 

Rqylated Gas Volumes Sold or Transported (in thousands of Mcf) 

- 1998 

1,880 
3,572 
46 1 

3.388 
9.301 

1 

Firm Sales: 
Residential 
Commercial 

Interruptible Sales 
Transportation Services 
Total 

ility Customers Serve (twelve-mont.. average) 

1999 
94,784 93,227 
4,699 4,748 

4 10 
315 125 

98.11p 99.802 

1997 
1,850 
3,944 
1,162 

2.277 
9.233 

m 
92,724 
4,706 

16 
51 

97,4911 

City Gas' residential customers purchase gas prhariiy for water heating, clothes drying and cookmg. Some customers, 
principally in central Florida, also purchase gas to provide space heating during the relatively mild winter season. Year- 
to-year growth in the average number' of residential customers primarily reflects new construction. On March 3 1,1998, 
City Gas purchased a city-owned and operated propane distribution system from Port St. Lucie. The system was 
converted to natural gas dwhg the year and added 1,200 residential homes and one major commercial property. 

City Gas' commercial business consjsts primarily of schools, businesses and public facilities, of which the number of 
customers tends to increase concurrently with the continuing growth in population within its service areas. As with its 
residential markets, the Ccmpany is seeking to maximize the utilization of its existing mains by emphasizing marketing 
efforts toward potential commercial business along these lines. 

Certain commercial and industrial customers have converted their natural gas service from a sales basis to a 
transportation basis. City Gas' transportation tariff provides margins on transportation services that are substantially 
the same as margins earned on gas sales. In November 1997, the Florida Public Service Commission (PSC) approved 
City Gas' proposal to offcr unbundled gas service to certain small commercial customers, in a manner similar to that 
currently h place in the G3mpany's New Jersey service territory. 
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North Caroline Gas. The Company, through North Carolina Gas, provides gas service to approximately 13,800 
customers in Rockingham and Stokes Counties in North Carolina, which territories comprise approximately 560 square 
miles. During ftscai 1999, the regulated operations of North Carolina Gas sold or -sported approximately 3.8 million 
Mcf of gas as follows: 20% sold to residential customers, 13% sold to commercial customers, 28% sold to industrial 
customers and 39% transported to commercial and industrial customers. 

Elkton Gas Service (“Elklon’y. The Company, through Elkton, provides gas service to approximately 4,000 customers 
in franchised territories comprising approximately $4 square miles within Cecil County, Maryhd. During fiscal 1999, 
E h n  sold approximately 849,000 Mcf of gas as follows: 22% sold to residential customers, 18% sold to comme~cial 
customers and 60% sold to industrial custom. 

Va1l.q Cities Gas Service (“VCGSj and Waver& Gas Service (“WGS‘I). VCGS and WGS provide gas service to 
approximately 6,300 customers in franchised territories comprising 104 square miles within Bradford County, 
Pennsylvania and the Village of Waverly, New York and mound ing  areas, respectively. During fiscal 1999, the 
regulated operations of VCGS and WGS soid or innsported approximately 3.3 d l i o n  Mcf of gas as follows: 17% sold 
to residential customen, 8% sold to commercial customers, 3% sold to industrial customers and 72% transported to 
commercial and industrial customers. 

Gas Sipply and Operations 

In recent years, the gas industry has been undergoing structural changes in response to policies of the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC) and local regulatory commissions designed to increase competition. Traditionally, 
interstate pipelines were wholesalers of natural gas to local distribution companies and generally did not provide 
separate &ansportation or other services for specific customers. In 1992, the FERC issued Order No. 636 that, among 
other things, mandated the separation or “unbundhg’’ of interstate pipeline sales, transportation and storage services 
and established guidelines for capacity management effective in 1993. In fiscal 1995, the NJBPU unbundled the 
services provided and the rates charged to New Jersey commercial and small industrial customers BS well. The 
transition to more competitive rates and services has the effect of increasing the opportunity for local gas distniution 
companies, and indus@.ial and commercial customers to purchase natural gas from alternative sources, while increasing 
the potential business and regulatory risk borne by a Iocal gas distribution company with respect to the acquisition and 
management of natural gas services. 

The Company endeavors to utilize its pipeline capacity efficiently by matching capacity to its load profile to the extent 
feasible. To this end, the Company has had a broad unbundled service tariff for certain of its customers since 1987. The 
Company continues to avail itself of opportunities to improve the utilization of its pipeline capacity by pursuing broad 
based customer growth, including off-peak markets and utilizing capacity release and off-system sales opportunities 
afforded by Order No. 636 when operationally feasible, 

T h e  Company’s gas supply during fiscal 1999 came from the following sources: approximately 18% from purchases 
under contracts with primary pipeline suppliers and additional purchases under their filed tariffs; approximatcfy 82% 
from purchases from various producers and gas marketers, and purchases under long-term contracts with independent 
producers and less than 1% fiom propane and liquefied natural gas (“LNG”). The Company manages its gas supply 
portfolio to assure a diverse, reliable and secure supply of natural gas at the lowest reasonable cost. In fiscal 1999, the 
Company’s largest single supplier accounted for approximately 10% of the Company’s total gas purchases. 

The Company has long-term gas delivery contracts with seven intentate pipeline companies. Under tbese contracts, the 
Company has a right to deliver, on a firm year-round basis, of up to 93.7 million Mcf of natural gas annually with a 
maximum of approximately 277,000 Mcfper day. Both the price and conditions of service under these contracts are 
regulated by the FERC. 

The Company has long-term gas purchase conmcts for the supply of natural gas for its system with six suppliers, 
including one interstate pipeline company and five gas marketers, Under these contracts, the Company has a right to 
purchase, on a fm year-round basis, up to 18.8 million Mcf of natural gas annually with a maximum of approximately 
70,000 Mcf per day. In order to achieve greater supply flexibility, and to more closely match its gas supply portfolio to 
changes in the market it serves, the Company recently allowed a long-term gas supply contract to expire at the 
conclusion of its primary terms. As a result, the Company has reduced its fvced gas cost obligations. The Company has 
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replaced the supply with boih spot maiket gas and shorter-term, seasonal firm supply, thus reducing the average term of 
its long-term obhgations. In addition, the Company has access to spot market gas through the interstate pipeline system 
to supplement or replace, on a short-term basis, portions of its long-term gas purchase contracts when such actions can 
reduce overall gas costs or are necessary to supply intermptible customers. In fiscal 1995, the Company, along with 
seven other Northeastern and Mid-Atlantic gas distribution companies. formed the East Coast Natural Gas Cooperative 
LLC (the To-op"). The Co-op was formed with the goal of jointly managing certain podom of the members' gas 
supply portfolios, to increase rebbiIi,ty and reduce costs of service to customers, and to improve the competitive 
position of the member companies. Participation in and reliance upon certain contractual arrangements among Co-op 
members has allowed the Ciompany to reduce costs associated with winter services. 

In order to have available s;ufficient quantities of gas during the heating season, the Company stores gas during non- 
peak periods and purchases supplemental gas, including propane, LNG and gas available under contracts with certain 
large cogeneration customers, as it det:ms necessary. The storage coneacts provide the Company with an aggregate of 
14 million Mcf of natural gas storage capacity and provide the Company with the right to receive a maximum daily 
quantity of 162,462 Mcf. The contracts with cogeneration customers provide 26,200 Mcf of daily gas supply to meet 
peak loads by allowing the Company to take back capacity and supply that otherwise is dedicated to serve those 
customers. 

The Company has an LNG storage and vaporization facility in New Jersey for handling peak gas demand. It has a 
daily delivery capacity of 2'3,800 Mcf and storage capacity of 13 1,000 Mcf. 

The Company's maximum #daily sendciut in fiscal 1999 was approximately 409,300 Mcf in New Jersey and 97,242 Mcf 
in the other service territories combined. The Company maintahs sufficient gas supply and delivery capacity for a 
maximum daily sendout capacity for New Jersey of approximately 408,140 Mcf and approxknately 128,000 Mcf for 
the other service territories combined. 

Certain of the Company's long-term contracts for the supply, storage and delivery of natural gas include fned charges 
that amount to approxhalely $68.6 million mually, The Company currently recovers, and expects to continue to 
recover, such fmed charges through i ts  purchased gas adjustment clauses. The Company also is committed to purchase, 
at market-related prices, minimum quantities of gas that, in the aggregate, are approximately 2.7 billion cubic feet per 
year or to pay certain costs in the event the minimum quantities are not taken. The Company expects that minimum 
demand on its systems for The duration of these contracts will continue to exceed these minimum purchase obligations. 

The Company distributes gas through approximately 6,200 miles of steel, cast iron and plastic mains. The Company 
has physical interconnections with five interstate pipelines in New Jersey and one interstate pipeline in Florida. In 
addition, the Company has physical interconnections in North Carolina and Pennsylvania with interstate pipelines, 
which also connect to New Jersey. Common interstate pipehes along the Company's operating system provide the 
Company with greater flexibility in managing pipeline capacity and supply, and thereby optimizing system utilization. 

Regulation 

The Company is subject to reguhtiort with respect to, among other matters, rates, service, accounting and the issuance 
of securities. The Cornparry is subject to regulation as an operating utility by the public utility commissions of the states 
in which it operates. The Company is also subject to regulation by the United States Department of Transportation 
under the Natural Gas Pipeline Safety Act of 1968, with respect to the design, installation, teshg, construction and 
maintenance of pipeline facilities. Natural gas purchases, transportation m i c e  and storage service provided to the 
Company by interstate pipeline companies are subject to regulation by the FERC (see "Gas Supply and Operations"). 
In addition, the Company is subject to federal and state legislation with respect to water, air quality, solid waste 
disposal and employee health and safety matters, and to environmental regulations issued by the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency, the New Jersey Deparhnmt of Environmental Protection and other federal and state 
agencies. 

The Company's current rares and tariffs for New Jersey reflect a rate case that was settled in October 1991, under which 
the Company obtained a weather ncmmlization clause - see "Elizabethtown Gas". In December 1994, the NJBPW 
authorized new tanffs which are designed to provide for unbundling of natural gas lmnsportation and sales services for 
Elizabethtown's commercial and industrial customers. The new tariffs became effective on January 1, 1995 and are 
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designed to be neutral as to the operating margins of the Company. On April 30,1999, the Company made a filing with 
the NJBPU whch Will enable all customers in New Jersey to choose an alternative supplier of natural gas. This filing 
was a result of the "EIectric Discount and Energy Competition Act" legislation, which was signed into law in New 
Jersey on February 9, 1999 (see Item 7- "Management's Discussion and Analysis - Regulatory Matters" for a further 
discussion of this filing). 

The current rates and tariffs for the Florida operations were authorized on October 29, 1996. The FPSC voted to 
authorize the Company to increase its base rates in Florida by $3,75 million annually. The rate increase reflected a rate 
base amounhg to $91.9 million, whch includes the addition of investments in system improvements and expansion 
projects. Under the approval, the allowed return on equity is 11 -3% with an overall after-tax rate of return of 7.9%. The 
increase became effective on November 28,1996. The FFSC order also gives the Company the flexibility to negotiate 
rates with certain business customers that have access to other energy sourccs. 

The current rates and tariffs for the North Carolina, Maryland, Pennsylvania and New York operations were authorized 
between October 1988 and September 1995. These operations seme approximately 20,000 customers in aggregate. The 
tariff for NCGS reflects a weather normalization clause for its temperature sensitive residential and commercial 
customers. 

T h e  Company's tariffs for each state in whch it operates contain adjusbnent clauses that enable the Company to 
recover purchased gas costs. The adjustment clauses provide for periodic reconciliations of actual recoverable gas costs 
with the estimated amounts that have been bilked. Under or over recoveries at the reconciliation date are recovered 
from or refunded to customers in subsequent periods, 

Frattcli ises 

The Company holds non-exclusive municipal franchises and other consents which enable it to provide natural gas in 
t he  territories it serves. The Company intends to seek to renew these franchises and consents as they expire.. 

Seasonal Aspects 

Sales of gas to some classes of customers are affected by variations in demand due to changes in weather conditions, 
including normal seasonal variations throughout the year. The demand for gas for heating purposes is closely related to 
the severity of the winter heating season. Seasonal variations affect short-term cash requirements. 

Competition 

The Company competes with disbbutors of other fuels and forms of energy, including electricity, he1 oil and propane, 
in all portions of the territories in which it has distribution mains. In addition, in 1992, the FERC issued Order No. 636 
(see "Gas Supply and Operations"). Subsequently, initiatives were sponsored in various states, the purposes of which 
were to "unbundle" or separate into distinct kansactions, the purchase of the gas commodity &om the purchase of 
transportation services for the gas. To that end, as discussed under "Regulation". several of the Company's operating 
divisions have unbundled commercial and industrial gas purchase and transportation rates. 

The unbundled sale of gas to customers is subject to competition from unregulated marketers and brokers, which 
generalry do not bear the obfigatiom or costs related to operating a regulated utility. Tariffs for transportation service 
have generally been designed to provide the same margins as bundled sales tariffs. Therefore, except for the regulatory 
risk of full recovery of gas costs, the Company is financially indifferent as to whether it transports gas, or sells gas and 
transportation together. The Company also faces the risk of loss of transportation service for large industrial customers 
which may have the ability to build connections to interstate gas pipelines and bypass the Company's dishiution 
system. Gas distributors can also expect increased competition from electricity as deregulation in that industry 
decreases prices and increases supply sources. Alternatively, opportunities may increase for gas service to fuel 
generators for large industrial customers, replacing electric utility service. 

En virunm ent 
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Reference is made to Iten1 7- ‘‘Mar*Lgement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations- Capital Expenditures and Commiments“ and Note 11, “Commitments and Contingencies“ of the V o t e s  to 
the Consolidated Financial Statements” for information regarding environmental matters affecting the Company. 

Energy Sales & Services Segment 

Products and Services 

The Energy Sales and Serv:ices segment reflects the operations of the Company’s NcTl Energy, NUI Energy Brokers 
and NU1 Energy Solutions subsidiaries, as well as off-system sales by the utility divisions. Together, this segment 
offers wholesale and retail energy sales, energy portfolio management, risk management, utility asset management, 
project development and enixgy consullting services. 

NUI Energy, hc. (NUI Encrgy) provides retail energy sales and related services to unbundled retail commercial and 
industrial customers. NUI Ehergy’s opating margins were $4.1 d l i o n  in fiscal 1999 as compared with $2.5 million 
in fiscal 1998 and $2.4 million in frsca’l 1997. 

NU1 Energy Brokers, Inc. (NU Enwgy Brokers) was formed in 1996 to provide the wholesale energy eading, 
brokering, and risk mageiment activities of the Company. In addition to providing these services to third parties, NUI 
Energy Brokers is also responsible for the supply acquisition activity for NUI’s Distribution Services segment. NWI 
Energy Brokers trades phytiical natural gas in four geographic regions: the Northeast, Southeast, Gulf Coast, and Mid 
Continent. In addition, NlJ Energy Brokers trades futures and options contracts on the New York Mercantile 
Exchange. The risk assocLkd with tra.ding activities is closely monitored on a daily basis and controlled in accordance 
with the Company’s Risk Management Policy. As in any commodity brokerage activity, however, there are risks 
pertaining to m k e t  changes and credit exposure that can be managed but not eliminated. Therefore, the earnings from 
NLTl Energy Brokers are llikely to bse more volatile than the Company’s utility dislribution business (see Item 7, 
“Management’s Discussioin and Analysis-Market Risk Exposure”). NUI Energy Brokers generated margins of $8.3 
million in fiscal 1999, $2.8 million in ,fiscal 1998 and $3.6 million in fiscal 1997. 

NU1 Energy Solutions, Inc. (NU1 Energy Solutions) was formed by the Company in fiscal 1998 to provide energy 
management and consulting services to existing and new customers. Due to start-up costs associated with this 
business, NU1 Energy Solutions recorded a loss in both fiscal 1999 and 1998. 

Another business line within Energy Sales and Services is off-system sales, or the use of utility-owned gas assets to 
make sales to customers outside of Nul’s service areas. Such assets include pipeline capacity and gas storage 
facilities. These assets are managed separately from non-utility assets, and their use is monitored and regulated by 
state regulatory commissions. Pursuant to regulatory agreements in some states in which the Company operates, the 
Company is able to retain a portion of the margins from these sales in varying percentages depending on the state in 
which the assets are owned. Off-sysr:em sales margins totaled $771,000 in fiscal 1999, $453,000 in fiscal 1998 and 
$681,000 in fiscal 1997. 

Customer Services Segment 

Products and Services 

The Customer Services se,pent is comprised of the Company’s Utility Business Senice subsidiary and the appliance 
business operations. Togedm this segment provides appliance repair, maintenance, installation and leasing; customer 
information system services including bill printing, mailing, collection and payment processing; network analysis; 
facilities database manageiment; and operations mapping and field computing for other utilities. 

During fiscal 1999, the Company completed the separation of its appliance servicing and leasing business from its 
Distribution Services segment. This group performed more than 74,000 revenue-producing appliance service jobs in 
fiscal 1999. The applianct: group generated revenues of $15.5 million in fiscal 1999, $14.0 million in fiscal 1998 and 
$12.8 million in ffical 1997. 
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Utility Business Services, Inc. (UBS) provides customer information systems and geographic information system 
services to investor-owned and municipal utilities, as well as third-party providers in the gas, water and wastewater 
markets. WlNS CIS, the premiere customer information system developed and maintained by UBS, is presently 
serving approximately 30 clients with state-of-the-art capabilities in support of more than 620,000 customers. In 
addition to generating over three million bills each year, U B S  assists clients in allied areas such as automatic meter 
reading, payment processing, and account recovery. In fiscal 1999, UBS inlroduced a natural gas version of WINS CIS 
by converting three of the Company’s Distribution Services utili@ divisions to the new system. UBS is cu~~cntly 
working on a web-enabled version of WINS CIS and plans to address the needs of the elechic industry in the near term, 
Geographic information services are currently provided to nine clients. UBS had margins of $3.7 million in fscals 
1999 and 1998 and $2.4 million in fiscal 1997. 

Other NUI Operations 

NUI Environmental Group, Inc. (NUI Environmental) was formed by the Company in fiscal 1996 to develop a solution 
to the rapidly decreasing accessibility of the New YorldNew Jersey harbor to international commercial shipping traffic. 
On December 23, 1998, NUI Environmental was selected from a group of sixteen firms that responded to a request for 
proposal by the State of New Jersey to participate in a Sediment Decontamination Demonstration Project designed to 
identify new technologies for the productive dredging of the harbor. NU1 Environmental must demonstrate the 
effectiveness of its tecbnology tIuough the pilot scale project, in which it must treat 200 gallons of dredged material 
from the harbor. If successful in the pilot program, NUI Environmental will contract with the State of New Jersey to 
treat between 30,000 and 150,000 cubic yards of mated.  

On May 18, 1997, the Company closed on its acquisition of a 49% interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC (TIC), a newly 
formed limited liability company, for a purchase price of $22 million. The acquisition was effective as of January 1, 
1997 and is being accounted for under the equity method. TIC engages in the business of recruiting, training and 
managing sales professionals and serving as sales and marketing representatives for various businesses, Among these 
businesses are Lucent Technologies, Nextel Communications, Qwest Communications, AT&T and the United States 
Postal Service. In early December 1999, TIC was awarded a national conkact from the United States Postal Service 
(USPS) to market its expedited delivery services. TIC contributed $1.2 million of equity earnings in fiscal 1999, was 
flat in fiscal 1998, and contributed $1.3 million in fiscal 1997. 

On November 12, 1999, the Company closed on its acquisition of International Telephone Group, Inc. The acquisition 
was treated as a merger whereby ITG merged with and into a subsidiary of the Company. The purchase price totaled 
$3.8 million and included the issuance of 1 13,200 shares of NLTI common stock, with the remainder paid in cash. ITG 
is a full service telephone company that provides its customers with a single service solution for all their 
telecommunication requirements including local, long distance, cellular, internet, and data communications services 
(see Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Persons Employed 

As of September 30, 1999, the Company employed a total of 1,049 persons, of whtch 269 employees in New Jersey 
were represented by the Utility Workers Union of America (Local 424); 37 employees in Florida (Locals 769 and 385) 
and 14 employees in Pennsylvania (hcal529) were represented by the Teamsters Union; and 36 employees in North 
Carolha were represented by the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (Local 2291). The current collective 
bargaiarng agreement with the New Jersey union was negotiated effective December 10, 1998 and expires on 
November 20,2001. The North Carolina union collective bargaining agreement was negotiated on August 20, 1998, 
and expires on August 20, 2001. The collective bargaining agreement in Pennsylvania is currently being negotiated. 
The union is currently working without a contract. A fml resolution is expected shortly. The collective bargaining 
agreement in Florida was negotiated on March 31,1998 and expires on March 3 I, 2001, 

Persons employed by segment are as follows: Distribution Services segment- 673; Energy Sales and Services- 37; and 
Customer Services- 181 persons. In addition, the Corporate office of NUI employed a total of 158 persons, which 
employees primarily work in shared services for the entire corporation. 

Available Information 
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The Company files annual, quarterly and special reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities 
and Exchange Commission Any document the Company fdes with the Commission may be read or copied at the 
Commission’s public reference room at 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the Commission 
at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the public reference room. The Company’s Commission filings are also 
available at the Commission’s Web sitc at &tdlwww.sec.eov or the Company’s W e b  site at htb:/lwww.nui.com. 

Item 2. Properties 

The Company owns approximately 6,200 miles of steel, cast iron and plastic gas mains, together with gate stations, 
meters and other gas equipnient. In addition, the Company owns peak shaving plants, including a LNG storage facility 
in Elizabeth, New Jersey. 

The Company also owns ma1 property in Union, Middlesex, Warren, Sussex and Hunterdon counties in New Jersey, 
and in Dade, Broward, Brward and !k Lucie counties in Florida, portions of which are under lease to others. The 
Company‘s properties inclu~k office buildings in Hialeah and Rockledge, Florida that sene as the principal operating 
offices for the Florida opertitions; and office buildings in both Reidsville, North Carolina and Sayre, Pennsylvania that 
serve as operating offces Sor the No~th  Carolina and the Pennsylvania and New York operations, respectively. The 
Company also owns various service cimters in New Jersey, Florida, North Carolina, Maryland and Pennsylvania from 
which the Company dispatches service crews and conducts construction and maintenance activities. 

The Company leases offcs: space in Bedminster, New Jersey that serves as its corporate headquarters, and leases 
certain other facilities in New Jersey and Florida that are operated as customer business offices or operating offices. 
The Company also leases approximately 160,000 square feet in an office building in Union, New Jersey. 

Subject to minor exceptions and en8mbrances, all other property materially important to the Company and all 
principal plants are owned in fee simple, except that most of the mains and pipes are installed in public seeets under 
franchise or statutory rights or are constructed on rights of way acquired from the apparent owner of the fee. 

Item 3. Legal Proceedings 

The Company is involved in various claims and litigation incidental to its business. In the opinion of management, 
none of these claims and litigation will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations or its 
financial condition. 

Item 4. Submission of Ma.tters to a Vote of Security Holders 

No matter was presented Sor submission to a vote of security holders through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise 
during the last quarter of fiscal 1999. 
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PART II 

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters 

NUI common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and is traded under the symbol "NLTI", The quarterly 
cash dwidends paid and the reported price range per share of N A  common stock for the two years ended September 
30, 1999 were as follows: 

Fiscal 1999; 
First Quarter 
Second Quarter 
ThkdQUWI 
Fourth Quarter 

Fiscal 1998; 
First Quarter 
Second Quarte~ 
Thud Quarter 
Fouah Quarter 

Quarterly Cash 
pivldend 

$0.245 
0.245 
0.245 
0.245 

$0.245 
0.245 
0.245 
0.245 

$27.000 
27.063 
25.6225 
28.063 

$29.625 
28.625 
29.438 
25.938 

$2 1.563 
20.375 
20.813 
24.625 

$21.375 
25.188 
23.313 
20.313 

There were 6,045 shareholders of record of NUI common stock at November 30, 1999. 

It is the Company's intent to continue to pay quarterly dividends in the foreseeable future. NUL'S dividend policy is 
reviewed on an ongoing basis and is dependent upon the Company's expectation of future earnings, cash flow, financial 
condition, capital requirements and other factors. 

The Company's long-term debt agreements include, among other things, restrictions as to the payment of cash 
dividends. Under the most restrictive of these provisions, the Company was permitted to pay $54 million of cash 
dividends at September 30, 1999. 
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item 6. Selected Financial Data 

Operating Revenues 
Net Income 
Net Income Per Share 
Dividends Paid Per Share 

Total Assets 
Capital Lease Obligations 
Long-Term Debt 
Common Shareholders’ Equity 
Common Shares Outstanding 

Selected Consolidated Financial Data 
(i,n thousands, except per share amounts) 

Fiscal Years E nded Sept ember 30, 
L9ep xu! m E% 1995 

$828,174 $828,036 $608,596 $469,499 $376,884 
$24,560 $12,3 14 $19,649 $14,896 $5,517 

$1.93 $0.98 $1.75 $1.52 $0,60 
$0.98 $0.98 $0.94 $0.90 $0.90 

$844,226 $776,847 $803,665 $677,662 $610,165 
$2,599 $8,566 $9,679 $10,503 $11,114 

$268,911 $229,098 $229,069 $230,100 $222,060 
$237,318 $222,992 $218,291 $179,107 $140,912 

12,750 12,680 12,429 1 1,086 9,201 

Notes to the Selected Consolidated Financial Data: 
Net income for fiscal 1999 includes a pension settlement gain and other non-recurring items. The effect of these items 
increased net income by $2.3 million (after tax), or $0.18 per share. 

Net income for fiscal 1998 includes reistnrcturing and other non-recurring charges amounting to $5.9 million (after tax), 
or $0.47 per share. 

Net income for fiscal 1995 includes restructuring and other non-recurring charges amounting to $5.6 million (after tax), 
or $0.61 per share. 
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Summary Consolidated Operating Data 

,Fiscal Years Ended SeDtember 30, 
1998 m 22% 1999 

Operating Revenues (Dollars in thousands) 
F h  Sales: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Interruptible Sales 
Unregulated Sales 
Transportation Services 
Customer Service, Appliance Leasing and 
Other 

$197,868 $198,072 $201,757 
83,409 9 1,970 106,234 
8,694 19,684 23,263 

49,138 45,594 55,844 
432,810 421,751 177,881 
37,634 33,338 28,617 

$194,332 $173,395 
107,067 98,54 1 
25,321 20,083 
50,539 48,282 
55,678 7,498 
23,085 17,696 

13.477 1 1.3 89 
%469.494 $376.884 

18.621 17.627 15.000 
$828.174 $828.036 $608.596 

Gas Sold or Transported ( M M c f )  
Firm Sales: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Interruptible Sales 
Unregulated Sales 
Transportation Services 

2 1,276 
15,455 
5,2 17 
18,365 
3,398 

22,154 
85.865 

22,956 
14,254 
4,s 19 

15,074 
62,819 

24,s 10 
16,575 
5,407 
16,003 
17,804 

25.053 
105.650 

21,771 
12,076 
4,463 

13,183 
163,418 
30.831 281294 

245.742 148.216 

22,064 
1 i,058 
1,584 
16,420 
168,748 
32.601 
252.475 

Average Utility Customers Served 
Firm Sales: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industria 1 

Interruptible Sales 
Transportation Services 

3 2 ~ 4 4  
24,519 

430 
118 

344,448 
23,320 

254 
56 

3.535 
371.613 

338,958 335,632 
23,407 24,3 12 

275 306 
111 121 

2.948 1.460 
$5,699 361.831 

332,440 
24,484 

338 
120 
3 
358.059 

184 
353.895 

Degree Days in New Jersey 

ErnpIoyees (year end) 

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges 

4,3 s 1 4,356 4,772 5,343 4,333 

1,049 1 ,os 1 1,126 1,086 1,079 

2.64 1.85 2.1 1 2.00 1.37 
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item 7. Management’s Discussion anld Analysis of Ffnancial Condition and Results of Operations 

The following discussion and analysis refers to NUI Corporation and all its operating divisions and subsidiaries 
(collectively referred to as rhe Company). The Company is a multi-state energy sales, services and distribution, and 
telecommunications company. Its utdity operatiom distribute natural gas and related services in six states along the 
eastern seaboard and compiise Elizabcthtown Gas (New Jersey), City Gas Company of Florida, North Carolina Gas, 
Elkton Gas (Maryland), Valley Cities Gas (Pennsylvania) and Waverly Gas (New York). The Company’s non- 
regulated subsidiaries include NUI Energy, Inc. (NU Energy), an energy retailer; NUI Energy Brokers, Inc. (NU 
Energy Brokers), an energy wholcsaltq NUI Energy Solutions, Inc., an energy project development and consulting 
entity; NLn Environmental Group, hc., an environmental project development subsidiary; Utility Business Services, 
Inc. (UBS), a customer and geographic infonnation systems and services subsidiary; and International Telephone 
Group, Inc. (ITG), a telecommunications services subsidiary (see Note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements). The Company also provides sales outsourcing through its 49 percent equity interest in TIC Enterprises, 
LLC (TIC). 

Results of Operations 

The results for the 1999 and 1998 fiscril years reflect changes in the New Jersey tax law, whch resulted in variations in 
certain line items on the co:nsolidated statement of income. Effective January 1, 1998, New Jersey Gross Receipts and 
Franchise Taxes (GRAFT) were repla.ced by a combination of a New Jersey Sales and Use Tax (Sales Tax), a New 
Jersey Corporate Business Tax (CBT) and a temporary Transitional Energy Facilities Assessment (TEFA). In prior 
periods, GRAFT was recorded as a single h e  item as a reduction of operating margins. Effective January 1, 1998, 
TEFA is recorded in the energy taxes; line item as a reduction of operating margins, CBT is recorded in the income 
taxes line item and Sales Tax is recorded as a reduction of operating revenues. The legislation was designed to be net 
income neueal over a 12-:month pm’od, however, variations of certain line items on-the consolidated statement of 
income exist. For fiscal 1999 as compared to fiscal 1998, the three new taxes had the effect of reducing operating 
revenues by approximately $3.4 million, reducing energy taxes by approximately $4.1 million and increasing income 
tax expense by approximately $1.2 million. FOT fiscal 1998 as compared to fLscal 1997, these changes had the effect of 
reducing operating revenues by a p p r a r h k l y  $9.9 million, reducing energy taxes by approximately $1 1.8 million and 
increasing income tax expense by approximately $1.9 million. 

Fiscal Years EndenSeptember 30, 19!?9 and 1998 

Net Income. Net income Ibr fiscal 1!>99 was $24.6 million, or $1.93 per share, as compared with net income of $12.3 
million, or $0.98 per share in fiscal 1998. Net income in both fiscal periods includes nonrecurring items incurred 
mainly as a result of the Company’s 1998 reorganization (see Noie 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements). The after-tax non-recurring items in fiscal 1999 resulted in a net gain of approximately $2.3 million, or 
$0.18 per share, as compared to after-tax charges of approximately $5.9 million, or $0.47 per share, incurred during 
fiscal 1998. Absent these rion-recuming items, net income would have been $22.2 million, or $1.75 per share in fiscal 
1999 as compared to $182 million, or $1.45 per share in fiscal 1998. The increase in recurring earnings was m a d y  
attributed to higher operating margins, other income and lower other taxes, partially offset by higher operations and 
maintenance expenses, depreciation End interest expense. 

Operating Revenues and Operating: Margins. The Company’s operating revenues include amounts billed for the cost 
of purchased gas pursuant ,to purchast:d gas adjustment clauses. Such clauses enable the Company to pass through to its 
utility customers, via periodic adjustments to customers’ bills, increased or decreased costs incurred by the Company 
for purchased gas without affecting operating margins. Since the Company’s utility operations do not earn a profit on 
the sale of the gas comrni~dity, the Company’s level of regulated operating revenues is not necessarily indicative of 
fmancial performance. 

The Company’s operating revenues remained relatively flat between fiscal 1999 and fucal 1998, despite fluctuations 
within the Company’s operating segments. Energy Sales and Services revenue increased by approximately $10.7 
million mainly due to increased operations by NUI Energy Brokers, while Customer Services revenue increased $1.4 
million primarily due to increases in Ihe Company’s appliance leasing business. These increases were partially offset by 
a decrease of approximatr:ly $1 1.9 cdlion in the Company’s Distribution Services revenue prhaily resulting from 
changes in the New Jersey tax law rioted earlier as well as a refund to New Jersey customers of approximately $4.4 
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million in September 1999 (see Regulatory Matters). Weather in New Jersey was approximately 16 percent warmer 
than normal in fiscal 1999 and relatively flat compared to the 1998 period. 

The Company’s operating margins increased by $13.1 million, or 7 percent, in fiscal 1499 as compared with fiscal 
1998. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase of approximately $3.9 million in the Company’s 
Distribution Services segment as a result of customer growth the effects of changes in the New Jersey tax law 
previously described and the recovery of previously deferred post-retirement benefit expenses through rates (see 
Regulatory Matters). These increases were padally offset by the effect of warmer weather in fmal 1999 in several of 
the Company’s service territories, part of which was not fully recovered from customers under weather normalization 
clauses. The Company hrts weather normalization clauses in its New Jersey and North Carolina tariffs, which are 
designed to help stabilize the Company’s results by increasing amounts charged to customers when weather has been 
warmer than normal and by decreasing amounts charged when weather has been colder than normal. As a result of 
weather normalization clauses, operating margins were approximately $ 5 4  million and $5.6 million higher in fiscal 
1999 and 1998, respectively, than they would have been without such clauses, Operating margins increased in the 
Customer Services segment by approximately $1.4 million due to an increase in the appliance leasing rates in Florida 
and increased customer service activity in New Jersey. Operating margins from the Company’s Energy Sales and 
Services segment increased by approximately $7.9 million primarily due to increases in the Company’s wholesale 
trading and retail energy operations, 

Other Operating Expenses. Operations and maintenance expenses increased by approximately $4.6 million, or 5 
percent, in fiscal 1999 as compared with fiscal 1998. The increase w,as primarily the result of previously deferred post- 
retirement benefit expenses which are being expensed and recovered through rates, higher levels of accrued incentives 
associated with the improved performance of the Company’s unregulated wholesale trading and retail energy 
businesses and a lower pension credit in the current year. These increases were partially offset by labor and benefit 
savings fiom the Company’s reorganization efforts over the past year. 

The Company recognized approximately $4.0 million of pre-tax, non-recum income in fiscal 1999, as compared to 
non-recurring expenses of approximately $9.7 million recognized in ffical 1998. These items are mainly the result of 
the Company’s 1998 reorganization. (See Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a further 
description of these items.) 

Depreciation and amortization increased approximately $2.0 million in fiscal 1999 as cornpared to the prior year, 
primarily due to additional plant in service. 

The decrease in other general taxes of approximately $0.6 million was primarily due to a decrease in the average 
number of employees during fiscal 1999. 

Income tax expense increased by approximately $8.2 million in fiscal 1999 as compared to fiscal 1998 as a result of 
higher pre-tax income and the change in the New Jersey tax law noted earlier. 

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by approximately $0.7 million in fiscal 1999 as compared to fmal 1998. 
Th~s increase was primarily due to interest on the Company’s $40 million bond issuance in December 1998. These 
increases were partially offset by an increase in interest income on funds held by trustee as a result of the $40 million 
issuance noted above being put into trust for use on qualifted expenditures (see Financmg Activities and Resources - 
Long-Term Debt and Fun& for Construction Held by Trustee). 

Other Income and (Expense), Net. Other income and expense, net, increased by approximately $0.4 million in fiscal 
1999 as compared to fiscal 1998. The increase reflects improved results from TIC of approximately $1.3 million as a 
result of higher revenues from TIC’S VEU~OUS sales programs as well as contributions from additional product lines. This 
increase was partially offset by a gain of approximately $0.7 million recognized in the prior year period due to the sale 
of marketable securities. 

Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 1998 and 1997 

Net Income. Net income for fiscal 1998 was $12.3 million, or %.98 per share, as compared with net income of $19.6 
million, or $1.75 per share in fiscal 1997. The decrease in 1998 was primarily due to after-tax, non-recumng charges 
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of approximately $5.9 millicm, or %.47 per share, associated with the Company’s reorganization efforts which included 
an early retirement progrmi and other workforce reductions (see Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements). Absent these nun-recurring charges, net income would have been $18.2 million, or $1.45 per share. The 
decrease in recurring earnings was mainly attributed to higher depreciation, operations and maintenance expenses, 
other taxes and lower other income, putially offset by h@er operating margins, 

Net income per share in the current year was also affected by the increased average number of outstanding shares of 
common stock over the prior year, principally reflecting the Company’s issuance of 1.0 d i o n  additional shares in 
September 1997 (see Financing Activities and Resources-Common Stock). 

Operating Revenues and Operating Margins. The Company’s operating revenues increased by $219.4 million, or 36 
percent, in ffical1998 as compared wirh fiscal 1997. The increase was principally due to an increase in the Company’s 
Energy Sales and Services segment of approxhatdy $247.2 million, mainly due to increased operations by NUI 
Energy Brokers, and increased activity in the Customer Services segment. These increases were partially offset by 
lower revenues from the Company’s Distribution Services segment mainly due to the effect of wanner weather in fiscal 
1998 in all of the Company’s service territories, primarily in New Jersey where it was 17 percent warmer than normal 
and 9 percent warmer than the prior yemar, as well as the effect of the New Jersey tax law changes previously described. 

The Company’s operating rrlargins increased by $6.7 million, or 4 percent, in fiscal 1998 as compared with fiscal 1997. 
The increase was primarily attributablle to an increase of approximately $5.3 million in the Company’s Dislribution 
Services segment as a result of customer growth and the effects of changes in the New Jersey tax law previously 
described. These increases were partially offset by the effect of warmer weather in fiscal 1998 in all of the Company’s 
Distribution Services territories, part of whch was not fully recovered from customen under weather normaljzation 
clauses. As a result of weather normiilization clauses, operating margins were approximately $5.6 million and $2.0 
million higher in fiscals 1!398 and 1997, respectively, than they would have been without such clauses. Operating 
margins increased in the Customer Seivices segment by approximately $2.4 million due to customer additions by UBS 
and related increases in system conversion revenues, an increase in the appliance leasing rates in Florida and increased 
customer service activity h New Jersty. Operating margins from the Company’s Energy Sales and Services segment 
decreased by approximately $1.0 million primarily due to a lack of market volatility, which negatively lmpacted 
margins, and lower off-system sales associated with warm temperatures of the 1998 heating season. 

Other Operating Expenses. Operalions and maintenance expenses increased by approximately $1.1 million, or 1 
percent, in fiscal 1998 as compared with fiscal 1997. The increase was primarily due to expenses associated with the 
continued growth of the Company’s unregulated operations. These increases were partially offset by a hgher pension 
credit due to the investment performarice of pension plan assets. 

The Company incurred approxiniately $9.7 million of non-recuning charges in the fourth quarter of fiscal 1998 
associated with the reorganization of the Company’s operations which included an early retirement program for non- 
bargaining unit personnel and other workforce reductions (see Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements). 

Depreciation and amortization increased approximately $1.9 million in fiscal 1998 as compared to 1997, primarily due 
to additional plant in service. 

The increase in other genela1 taxes of approximately $0.5 million was primarily due to higher payroll-related taxes as a 
result of a higher average number of employees in fiscal 1998 as compared to fiscal 1997. 

Income tax expense decreased by approximately $1.0 million in fiscal 1998 as compared to fEcal 1997 as a result of 
lower pre-tax home, partially offset by the change in the New Jersey tax law noted above. 

Other Income and (Expense), Net. Other income and expense, net, decreased by approximately $1 -5 million in fiscal 
1998 as compared to fscal 1997. The decrease was primarily due to the lower results fiom TIC in 1998 as a result of 
additional investments made by TIC to grow Its sales programs and increase its product lines. Ad&ticinally, the fBcd 
1997 resuhs reflected a pre-tax gain of approximately $0.7 million from the sale of certain property in Florida. 
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Regulatory Matters 

On April 30, 1999, the Company made a filing with the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities INJBPU) which will 
enable all customers in New Jersey to choose an alternative supplier of natural gas. This filing was a result of the 
”Electric Discount and Energy Competition Act“ legislation, which was signed into law in New Jersey on February 
9, 1999. The legislation has several provisions that affect gas utilities. It provides all gas customers with the ability 
to choose an alternate natural gas supplier by December 31, 1999. At the same time, the utility will continue to 
provide basic gas service through December 2002 when the NJBPU will decide if the gas supply function should be 
made competitive. The NJBPU will also conduct proceedings to determine whether customers should be afforded 
the option of contracting with an alternative provider of billing, meter reading and other customer account services 
that may be deemed competitive by December 31, 2000. A NJBPU decision on the Company’s April 30 filing is 
expected in early fiscal 2000. 

On July 7, 1999, the NJBPU approved a final stipulation on the Company’s New Jersey Purchased Gas Adjustment 
Clause filing in which the Company would continue to charge rates approved in an interim stipulation and approved 
by the NJBPU on March 3, 1999, In addition, the stipulation provided that the Company would refund to customers 
$10 million of previously over-recovered gas costs. Of this amount, $5.4 million was applied against a Weather 
Normalization Clause under-recovery and the balance was credited to customer bills in late fiscal 1999. The 
stipulation also allows the Company to defer the costs of its undepreciated propane-air plant, presently not in use, 
for rate recovery in its next base rate case. 

On September 23, 1998, the NJBPU issued an order approving the Company’s petition to increase base rates in New 
Jersey by approximately $2.4 million to recover postretirement benefits computed under Statement of Financial 
Accounthg Standards No. 1 OB, “Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other than Pensions” (SFAS 
106). The rate increase was effective October I, 1998 and allows for previously deferred costs, as well as fiture 
SFAS 106 costs, to be recovered over a rolling 15-year period. 

Financing Activities and Resources 

The Company‘s net cash provided by operating activities was $59.0 million in fiscal 1999, $20.9 million in fiscal 1998 
and $40.5 million in fiscal 1997. The increase in fiscal 1999 as compared with fiscal 1998 was primarily due to 
additional collections of gas costs through the Company’s purchased gas adjustment clauses and the timing of payment 
to gas supplen. The decrease in fiscal 1998 as compared with fiscal 1997 was primarily due to the timing of payments 
to gas suppliers, as well as the timing of payments relating to energy taxes. 

Because the Company‘s primary business is highIy seasonal, short-term debt is used to meet seasonal working capital 
requirements. The Company also borrows under its bank lines of credit to finance portions of its capital expenditures, 
pending refmancing through the issuance of equity or long-term indebtedness at a later date depending upon prevailing 
market conditions. 

Short-Term Debt. The weighted average daily amounts outstanding of notes payable to banks and the weighted 
average interest rates on those amounts were $68.2 million at 5.3 percent in fmal 1999, $66.8 million at 5.7 percent in 
fscal 1998 and $66.0 mdlion at 5.5 percent in fiscal 1997. 

At September 30,1999, the Company had outstanding notes payable to banks amounting io $73.6 million and available 
unused lines of credit amounting to $62.4 million. 

Long-Term Debt and Funds for Construction Held by Trustee. On December 8, 1998, the Company issued $40 
million of tax-exempt Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds at an interest rate of 5.25 percent. These bonds will mature in 
November 2033 and the proceeds wilI be used to finance a portion of the Company’s capital expenditure program in 
New Jersey. 

The Company deposits in trust the unexpended portion of the net proceeds from its Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds until 
drawn upon for eligible expenditures. As of September 30, 1999 and September 30, 1998, the total unexpended 
portions of a11 of the Company’s Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds were $32.0 million and $7.1 million, respectively, and 
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are classified on the Company’s consoIidated balance sheet, including interest earned thereon, as funds for constxuction 
held by trustee. 

Common Stock. The Company periodically issues shares of common stock in connection with NUI Direct, the 
Cornpar~y’s dividend reinveshnent and stock purchase plan, and various employee benefit plans. The proceeds from 
such issuances mounted to approximately $0.7 million, $4.0 million and $5.7 million in fiscals 1999, 1998 and 1997, 
respectively, and were used primarily ‘to reduce outstanding short-term debt. Effective May 26, 1998, several of these 
plans commenced purchasing shares on the open market to fulfdl the plans’ requirements. Under the terms of these 
plans, the Company may pesiodically change the method of purchasing shares horn open market purchases to 
purchases directly from the Company, or vice versa. The decrease in proceeds received in fiscal 1999 as compared to 
fiscals 1998 and 1997 reflects that the :plans commenced purchasing shares directly in the open market rather than from 
Company. 

The Company’s long-term debt agreements include, among other things, restrictions as to the payment of cash 
dividends. Under the most restrictive of these provisions, the Company is permitted to pay approximately $54 million 
of cash dividmds at September 30, 19!)9. 

On September 25, 1997, the Company issued an additional 1 .O million shares of common stock. The net proceeds from 
the offering totaled $22.6 million aid were used to reduce o u t s t d g  short-tenn debt incurred to frnance the 
Company’s acquisition of a 49 percenl. interest in TIC and for other general corporate purposes. 

Capital Expenditures and Commitments 

Capital expenditures, which consist primarily of expenditures to expand and upgrade the Company’s gas &stnbution 
systems, were $47.9 million in fiscal ’1999, $60.9 million in fiscal 1998 and $52.3 million in fiscal 1997. The decrease 
in fscal 1999 was primarily due to specid projects in fiscal 1998 to expand operations of two large industrial 
customers in New Jersey. The Company’s capital expenditures are expected to be approximately $5 1 million in fiscal 
2000. 

T h e  Company owns or previously owned six former manufactured gas plant (MGP) sites in the state of New Jersey and 
ten former MGP sites in thr: states of North Carolina, South Carolina, Pennsylvania, New York and Maryland. Based on 
the Company’s most recent assessment, the Company has recorded a total reserve for environmental investigation and 
remediation costs of approximately 1634 million, which is the minimum amount that the Company expects it will 
expend in the next 20 years to remediate the Company’s MGP sites. Of this reserve, approximately $30 million relates 
to New Jersey MGP sites and approximately $4 d l i o n  relates to the MGP sites located outside New Jersey. However, 
the Company believes that it is possible that costs associated with conducting investigative activities and implementing 
remedial actions, if necessary, with respect to all of its MGP sites may exceed this reserve by an amount that could 
range up to an additional $24 million and be incurred during a future period of time that m y  range up to 50 years. Of 
this $24 rmllion in possible additional expenditures, approximately $12 million relates to the New Jersey MGP sites 
and approximately $12 million relates. to the remaining MGP sites. As compared with the $34 million reserve currently 
recorded on the  company"^ books as discussed above, the Company believes that it is less likely that this additional 
$24 million will be incurred and thefore has not recorded it on its books. The Company believes that all costs 
associated with the New Jersey MGE’ sites will be recoverable in rates or from insurance carriers. In New Jersey, the 
Company is currently recovering environmental costs on an annual basis through base rates and over a rolling swen- 
year period through its MGP Remediation Adjustment Clause. As a result, the Company has begun rate recovery of 
approximately $5.5 million of environmental costs incurred through June 30, 1998. Recovery of an additio~l $2.0 
million in environmental costs incurrcd between July 1, 1998 and June 30, 1999 is currently pending NIBPU approval. 
With respect to costs that may be associated with the MGP sites located outside the state of New Jersey, the Company 
intends to pursue recovery from ratepayers, fonner owners and operators of the sites and from insurance carriers. 
However, the Company is not able, at this time, to express a belief as to whether any or all of these recovery efforts will 
ultimately be successful. 

Certain of the Company’s long-term contracts for the supply, storage and delivery of natural gas include fmed charges 
that amount to approximately $68.6 million annually, The Company currently recovers, and expects to continue to 
recover, such fmed charges through its purchased gas adjustment clauses. As a result of the forthcoming unbundling of 
natural gas services in New Jersey, these contracts may result in the realization of skanded costs by the Company. 
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Management believes the outcome of these actions will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results. 
The Company also is committed to purchase, at market-related prices, minimum quantities of gas that, in the aggregate, 
are approximately 2.7 billion cubic feet @cf) per year or to pay certain costs in the event the quantities are 
not taken. The Company expects that minimum demand on its systems for the duration of these contracts will continue 
to exceed these minimum purchase obligations. 

The Company is scheduled to repay $20 million of Medium-Tern Notes in August 2002. 

Market Risk Exposure 

The Company’s wholesale trading subsidiary, NUI Energy Broken, uses derivatives for multiple purposes: i) to 
hedge price commitments and minimize the risk of fluctuating gas prices, ii) to take advantage of market 
information and opportunities in the marketplace, and iii) to fhlf~ll its hading skategies and, therefore, ensure 
favorable prices and margins. These derivative instruments include forwards, futures, options and swaps. 

The risk associated with uncovered derivative positions is closely monitored on a daily basis, and controlled in 
accordance with NUI Energy Brokers’ Risk Management Policy. This policy has been approved by the Company’s 
Board of Directors and dictates policies and procedures for all trading activities. The policy defines both value-at- 
risk (VaR) and loss limits, and all traders are required to read and follow this policy. At the end of each day, all 
trading positions are marked-to-market and a VaR is calculated. This information, as well as the status of all limits, 
is disseminated to senior management daily. 

’Nu1 Energy Brokers utihes  the variancelcovariance VaR methodology. Using a 95 percent confidence interval and 
a one day time horizon, as of September 30, 1999, NUI Energy Brokers’ VaR was $295,000. 

Year 2000 

Many existing computer programs and systems with embedded digital microcontrollers, use only two digits to 
identify a year in the date field, or were not designed in other ways to provide for the upcoming change in the 
century. If not corrected, many systems that use digital technology could fail or create errors that may result in a 
significant adverse impact on NUI’s ability to provide service, its regulatory relations and financial condition. 

NU1 has developed a Risk Mitigation Plan (the Plan) as an internal guide to its systems readiness program. The 
purpose of the program is to mitigate the risks associated with Year 2000 technology issues. The Plan includes the 
following phases: (i) development of a detailed inventory of all information technology (IT) and non-IT systems that 
incorporate any technology component including embedded microprocessors and microcontrollers (Inventory 
Phase); (ii) assessment of those systems for Year 2000 vulnerability (Assessment Phase); (iii) remediation of the 
affected systems (Remediation Phase); and (iv) testing of sub-systems, hardware, operating and application software 
running as integrated systems (Testing Phase). In addition, the Plan requires (v) an analysis of the risk of system 
failure and the consequences of failure in order to focus testing resources and prioritization of resources under 
contingency plans (Risk Analysis). The Inventory, Assessment and the Risk Analysis Phases include material direct 
third-party suppliers and vendors. The fmal phase is (vi) contingency phmhg,  which is described below. 

Under the Plan, NUI has established an executive level Year 2000 Committee (the Committee) to monitor the 
Company’s Year 2000 progress. The Committee is chaired by NUI’s Senior Vice President, Chief Operating Officer 
and Chief Financial Officer, and includes the senior management of all NUI’s business units, the Chief Information 
Officer, Chief Administrative Officer, General Counsel and Secretary and the Vice President of Corporate 
Development and TEasurer. The Committee receives monthly reports from a project coordinator and team. 
Members of the team are responsible for NU1 gas distribution system controls, computer hardware, operating and 
communication systems, and for critical suppliers. The Chairman of the Committee reports to NU’S Board of 
Directors on Year 2000 issues on a periodic basis. 

The Company has largely completed the fnst five phases referred to above, In addition, contingency plans, 
supplementing existing disaster recovery and business continuity plans, have been developed as necessary for the 
Company’s own systems and its third-party relationships, in response to its assessments, remediation and testing 
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activities. The specific actions identified include measures such as manual workarounds, deployment of backup or 
secondary technologies, rearranging work schedules, and substitution of suppliers, as appropriate. 

Nul’s systems and customers are vulnerable to systems operated by third parties that may not be Year 2000 ready. 
NLn has identified its critical direct suppliers and vendors and relies on its business partnerdthird parties to be 
responsible for the Year 2000 readmess of their offerings, These include, at the very highest level of importance, 
interstate pipeline suppliers, telecommunications carriers and electric suppliers. Interstate pipelhe suppliers must 
appropriately schedule and control gas supplies to Nul’s own distribution systems. Telecommunications caniers’ 
digital circuits are used to control and monitor NUI’s gas dishhtion system with voice circuits as emergency 
backup and for customers’ reporting ,of emergencies. Electricity supplies are critical to Nul’s customers for natural 
gas heating equipment and industrial :process control. 

NU1 is assessing the Year ZOO0 readiness of its critical suppliers through face-to-face meetings and correspondence. 
Although numerous third parties havr: indicated to the Company in writing that they are addressing their Year 2000 
issues on a timely basis, NUI will continue to work with these suppliers through the remainder of 1999 to gain 
greater assurance that appropriate steps are being taken to ensure security of supply and the continued accurate 
exchange of critical data. 

The total estimated costs of assessing, remedating and testing NUI’s systems for Year 2000 readiness is 
approximately $3.5 million, of whic’h approximately $3.1 million has been incurred through September 30, 1999. 
Approximately 50 percent of these costs will relate to capital projects. The Company has and will continue to fund 
these costs from the operations of the Company. 

Customers are dependent on NUI’s ndiable and secure gas supply, emergency response and billing services. Each of 
these services relies on the Company’s computer systems. A failure in these systems could materially intempt the 
normal flow of these services and s~~gnificantly impact human safety and physical property and have a significant 
adverse financial impact on NUT, its customers and suppliers. NUI and third-party critical suppliers are also 
interdependent, and failure of thirdparty suppliers to be Year 2000 ready could significantIy impact the Company’s 
ability to serve its customers. Due to the general uncertainty of the Year 2000 problem, resulting in part from the 
uncertainty of the Year 2000 readiness of third-parties, the Company is unable to determine at this time whether the 
consequences of Year 2000 failures will have a material impact on the Company’s results of operations or financial 
condition. The Plan is expected to significantly reduce the Company’s level of uncertainty about the Year 2000 
problem and the readiness of third parties. The Company believes that due to its Plan, the likelihood of major 
consequences should be reduced. 

Effects of Inflation 

The Company’s tariffs provide purchased gas adjustment clauses through which rates charged to customers are adjusted 
for changes in the cost of gas on a reiiso~bly current basis. Increases in other utility costs and expenses not otherwise 
offset by increases in revenues or reductions in other expenses could have an adverse effect on earnings due to the t ime 
lag associated with obtaining regulatory approval to recover such increased costs and expenses, and the uncertainty of 
whether regulatory commissions will allow full recovery of such increased costs and expenses. 

Forward-Looking Statements 

This document contains fbnvard-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended. The Company cautions that, while it believes such statements to be reasonable and are 
made in good faith, such forward-looking statements almost always vary from actual results, and the differences 
between assumptions made in mal* such statements and actual results can be material, depending upon the 
circumstances. Factors, which may make the actual results differ from anticipated results include. but are not 
limited to, economic conditions; unforeseen competition; weather conditions; fluctuations in the price of natural gas 
and other forms of energy; the outcome of certain assumptions made in regard to Year 2000 issues; and other 
uncertainties, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond the control of the Company. 
Accordingly, investors should not rdy upon these fornard-looking statements in d i n g  inveslment decisions. 
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Suppkementary Data 

Consolidated financial statements of the Company as of September 30,1999 and 1998 and for each of the three years in 
the period ended September 30, 1999, the auditors' report thereon, and the unaudited quarterly financial data for the 
two-year period ended September 30, 1999, are included herewith as indicated on "Index to Financial Statements and 
Schedule" on page F- 1. 

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure 

None. 

PART III 

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant 

Information concerrung directors and officers of the Company is included in the definitive Proxy Statement for the 
Company5 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference. Such Proxy Statement was 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 27,1999. 

Item 11. Executive Compensation 

h f Q I m a t i O I I  concerning executive compensation is included in the definitive Proxy Statement for the Company's 
Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference. Such Proxy Statement was filed with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission on December 27,1999. 

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management 

Information concerning security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is included in the defrnitve 
Proxy Statement for the Company's Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference. Such 
Proxy Statement was fded with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 27,1999. 

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions 

Information concerning certain relationships and related transactions is included in the defmitive Proxy Statement for 
the Company's Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which is incorporated herein by reference. Such Proxy Statement was 
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on December 27,1999. 
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PART IV 

Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K 

(a) (1) Consolidated financial statements of the Company as of September 30, 1999 and 1998 and for each of the 
three years in the period ended September 30, 1999 and the auditors' report thereon, and the unaudited quarterly 
financial data for the two-year period ended September 30, 1999 are included herewith as indicated on the "Index to 
Financial Statements and Schedule" on page F-1 . 

(2) The applicable fmancial statement schedule for the fiscal years 1999, 1998 and 1997 is included herewith 
as indicated on the "Endex to Financial Statements and Schedule" on page F-1 . 

(3) Exhibits: 
Qescriotion Exhibit 

- No. 

2(ii) 

3 (ii) 

1O(i) 

1O(ii) 

I O(iii) 

IO(iv) 

Letter Agreement, dated June 29, 1993, by and between 
NUI Corporation and Pennsylvania & Southern Gas 
Company 

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of July 27, 
1993, by and between WCrJ Corporation and 
Pennsylvania & Sourhem Gas Company 

Certificate of Incorporation, amended and restated as of 
December 1,1995 

By-Laws, amended and restated as of September 23, 
1997 

Rights Abmernent between NU1 Corporation and 
Mellon Securities Trust Company dated November 28, 
1995 

Service Agreement l ~ y  and between Transcontinental 
Gas Pipe Line Corporation and Elizabethtown Gas 
Company ("EGC"), dated February 1,1992 (#3686) 

Service Agreement ilnder Rate Schedule GSS by and 
between Transconthental Gas Pipe Line Corporation 
and EGC, dated July 1,1996 

Service Agreement ,under Rate Schedule LG-A by and 
between Transcontjlimtal Gas Pipe Line Corporation 
and EGC', dated January 12,1971, as amended 5/15/96 

Service Agreement by and between Transcontinental 
Gas Pipe Line Corporation and EGC, dated 
November 1, 1995 (Contract #l. 1997) 

Service Agreement by and between Transcontinental 
Gas Pipe Line Corporation and EGC, dated 
November 1, I995 (Contract #1.1995) 

Reference 

Incorporated by reference to Exhbit 2(i) 
to Registdon Statement No. 33-50561 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
2(ii) to Registration Statement No. 33- 
50561 

lncorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(i) 
of NUI's Form 10-K Report for Fiscal 
1995 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
3(ii) of NCJI's Form 10-R Report for 
Fiscal 1997 

Incorporated by reference to Nul's 
Form 8-K dated December 1,1995 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1O(i) to Registration Statement No. 
33-50561 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 

Fiscal 1997 

Filed herewith. 

lO(ii) of Nul's FOITII IO-K ReporZ for 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(iv) of NU'S Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1996 

Incorporated by reference to Exlubit 
1O(v) of NUI's Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1996 
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1 O( vi) 

1 O(vii) 

1 O(viii) 

l O ( i x )  

1O(xi) 

1 O(xii) 

1 O(xiii) 

1 O(xiv) 

1 O(xv) 

1 O(xvi) 

1 O(xvii) 

1 O(xviii) 

Firm Gas Transportation Agreement by and among 
Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation, EGC and 

November 1,1984 

Service Agreement by and mmg Transcontinental Gas 
Pipe Line Corporation and EGC, dated November 1, 
1995 (Contract #1.1998) Fiscal 1996 

Service Agreement for Rate Schedule CDS by and 
between Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation and 
EGC, dated December 1,1993 (Contract MOO36 1) 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1O(vi) to Reghation Statement No. 

National Fuel Gas Supply Corporation, dated 33-50561 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(vii) of NUI’s Form 10-K Report for 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(viii) to Nuz‘s Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1994 

Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FTS-7 by and 
between Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation and 
EGC, dated October 25,1994 (Contract #331720) 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 O(k) to NUI’s Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1994 

Service Agreement for Rate Schedule FTSd by and 
between Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation and 
EGC, dated March 18,1996 (Contract #331501) 

Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FTS-8 by and 
between Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation and 
EGC, dated June 28,1994 (Contract #331013) 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(x) of NUI’s Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1997 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
10(Xi) to NU’S Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1994 

Firm Transportation Service Agreement under FTS-2 
Rate Schedule by and between City Gas and Florida Gas 
Transmission, dated August 12, 1993 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 O(xii) of MX’s Form I 0-K Report for 
Fiscal 1997 

Service Agreement for Rate Schedule FTS-2 by and 
between Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation and 

Service Agreement under NTS Rate Schedule by and 
between Columbia Gas Transmission Corporation and 
EGC, dated November 1,1993 (Contract #39275) 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
fO(xiii) to Registration Statement 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(xiv) to W s  Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1993 

EGC, dated June 1,1993 (Contract #330788) NO. 33-50561 

Service Agreement under SST Rate Schedule by and 
between Columbia Gas Transmission Corporation and 
EGC, datedNovember 1,1993 (Contract #38045) 

Service Agreement under FTS Rate Schedule by and 
between Columbia Gas Tmnsmissioa Corporation and 
EGC, dated November 1,1993 (Contract #37882) 

Gas Transportation Agreement under FT-G Rate 
Schedule by and between Tennessee Gas Pipeline 
Company and EGC (Contract #597), dated September 1, 
1993 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 O(xv) to NUI‘s Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1993 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(xvi) to Nul’s Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1993 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(xvii) to NUTS Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1993 

Gas Transportation Agreement under FT-G Rate 
Schedule by and between Tennessee Gas Pipeline 
Company and EGC (Contract #603), dated September 1, 
1993 

Incorporated by reference to Exhiiit 
lO(xviii) to NUTS Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1993 
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1 O(xix) 

1 O ( 4  

1 O(xxi) 

1 O(xxii) 

1 O(xxii) 

lO(xxiii) 

1 O(xxiv) 

1 O(xxv) 

1 O(xxvi) 

1 O(xxvii) 

1 O(xxviii) 

1 O(xxix) 

Service Agreement b:y and between Transcontinental 
Gas Pipe Line Company and EGC, dated November 1, 
1995 (Contract #383:!) 

Firm Transportation !Service Agreement under FTS- 1 
Rate Schedule by and between City Gas and Florida Gas 
Transmission dated Clctober 1,1993 (Contract # 5034) 

Lease Agreement between EGC and Liberty Hall Joint 
Venture, dated Augwst 17,1987 

1988 Stock Plan 

First Amendment to I988 Stock Plan 

Form of Termination. of Employment and Change in 
Control Agreements 

Firm Transportation Service Agreement under FTS-2 
Rate Schedule by and between City Gas and Florida Gas 
Transmission, dated December 12, 1991 and 
Amendment dated November 12,1993 (Coneact #3608) 

Service Agreement under Rate Schedule LG-A by and 
between Transcontinental Gas Pipeline and North 
Carolina Gas Servict: Division of Pennsylvania & 
Southern Gas COmpiiny, dated August 5,197 1 

Service Agreement under Rate Schedule GSS by and 
between Transcontinental Gas Pipeline and North 
Carolina Gas Service, dated July 1, 1996 

1996 Employee Stock Purchase Plan 

Service Agreement under Rate Schedule lT by and 
between Transcontinental Gas PipeIine and North 
C a r o h  Gas Servicis Division of Pennsylvania & 
Southern Gas Company, dated February 1,1992 
(Contract # 0.3922) 

1996 Directors Stoclk Purchase Plan 

Incorporated by reference to Exhtbit 
lO(xix) of NUI's Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1996 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 qxx) of NUI's Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1993 

Incorporated by reference to Exhiiit 
lO(vi) of E m s  Form 1 O-K Report for 
Fiscal 1987 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(viii) to Registration Statement 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 qxxxiii) to Registration Statement 
No. 33-46162 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
I OIxxiii) of NU'S Form 10-K Report 
for Fiscal 1995 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 O(xxiv> of NUS Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1994 

NO. 33-2152s 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(xxv) of NUI's Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1994 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 O(xxvi) of Nul's Form 1 O X  Report 
for Fiscal 1997 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(xxvii) of NUI's Form 10-K Report 
for Fiscal 1996 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(xxviQ of NUTS Form 10-K Report 
for Fiscal 1994 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 

for FiscaI 1996 
l O ( x ~ i x )  of Nul's Form 10-K Report 
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IO(xxxi) 

1 O(xxxii) 

1 O(xxxiii) 

1 O(xxxiv) 

1 0 (xxxv) 

1 O(xxxvi) 

1 O( xxxv ii) 

1 O(xxxviii) 

1 O(xxxix) 

1 O(X1) 

1 O(xli) 

1 O(x1ii) 

1 O(x1iii) 

Gas Storage Contract under Rate Schedule FS by and 
between Tennessee Gas Pipeline Company and 
Pennsylvania & Southern Gas Company, dated 
September 1,1993 (Contract #2277) 

Gas Tramportation Agreement under Rate Schedule IT- 
A by and between Tennessee Gas Pipeline Co. and 
Pennsylvania & Southern Gas Company, dated 
September 1,1993 (Contract #935) 

Gas Transportation Agreement under Rate Schedule FT- 
A by and between Tennessee Gas Pipeline Co. and 
Pennsylvania & Southern Gas Company, dated 
September 1,1993 (Contract #936) 

Gas Transportation Agreement under Rate Schedule FT- 
A by and between Tennessee Gas Pipeline Co. and 
Pennsylvania & Southern Gas Company, dated 
September 1,1993 (Contract #959) 

Gas Transportation Agreement under Rate Schedule J3- 
A by and between Tennessee Gas Pipeline Co. and 
Pennsylvania 8z Southern Gas Company, dated 
September 1,1993 (Contract #2 157) 

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 29, 1988, 
between NLJI Corporation and Jack Langer 

Service Agreement for Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation 
and EGC (Contract #1.0431) dated April 1,1995 

Service Agreement for Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Transcontinental Gas Pipe Line Corporation 
and EGC (Contract #1.0445) dated April 1,1995 

Service Agreement for Rate Schedule SS-1 by and 
between Texas Eastern Transmission Corporation and 
EGC (Contract (M00196) dated September 23,1994 

Gas Storage Agreement under Rate Schedule FS by and 
between Tennessee Gas Pipehe Company and EGC 
(ConIraact #8703) dated November 1,1994 

Consulting Agreement, dated as of March 24,1995, 
between NUI Corporation and John Kean 

Form of Deferred Compensation Agreement 

1996 Stock Option and Stock Award Plan 

Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastern Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as of November 1,1997 (Contract 
kbo10003) 

Incorporated by reference to Exbibit 
lO(xxx) of Nul's Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1994 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(xxxi) of NUI's Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1994 

Incorporated by reference to Exhilit 
1 O(xxxii) of NUI's Form 10-K Report 
for Fiscal 1994 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(xxxiii) of NUI's Form 10-K Report 
for Fiscal 1994 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 O(xxxiv) of NUTS Fonn 10-K Report 
for Fiscal 1994 

Incorporated by reference to E h b i t  
1 O(XXXY)  of NUTS Form 
10-K Report for Fiscal 1994 
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 O(xxxvi) of Nul's Form 10-K Report 
for Fiscal 1995 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 O(xxxvii) of NUI's Form 10-K Report 
for Fiscal 1995 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(xxxviii) of NUI's Form 10-K Report 
for Fiscal 1995 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 

for Fiscal 1995 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 

Fiscal 1995 

Filed herewith. 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(x1ii) of NUI's Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1994 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO(x1iii) of NUI's Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1997 

1 OtxxXiX) of Nul's Form 10°K Report 

lO(X1) of Nul's Form IO-K Report fOT 
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1 Q(x1iv) 

1 O( xlv) 

1 O(x1vi) 

lO(x1vii) 

1 O(x1viii) 

lO(x1ix) 

100) 

12 

21 

23 

27 

Service Agreement wider Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastem Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as ofNovember 1,1997 (Contract 

Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas rmd Eastern Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as o F November 1,1997 (Contract 

Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas md Eastern Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as of November 1,1997 (Conaact 
#01OOf 3) 

Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastern Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as of November 1,1997 (Contract 
#020003) 

Service Agreement mder Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastern Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as of November 1,1997 (Conlmct 
# 0 2 00 0 5 

Service Agreement under Rate Schedule FT by and 
between Elkton Gas and Eastern Shore Natural Gas 
Company, dated as of November I, 1998 (Contract 
#010032) 

Agreement between T.I.C. Enterprises, L.L.C and 
United States Postal Service 

Consolidated Ratio nf Earnings to Fixed Charges 

Subsidiaries of NU1 Corporation 

Consent of Indepentient Public Accountants 

Financial Data Schedule 

#010011) 

#010012) 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 O(x1iv) of NUI' s Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1997 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
Iqxlv) of NLTl's Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1997 

Incorporated by reference to Exhi'bit 
lO(xlvi) of NUI's Form 10-K Report for 
Fiscal 1997 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 

for Fiscal 1997 
1 O(x1Vii) of NUI'S  Form 10-K ElepoIZ 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
1 O(x1viii) of NUI's Form IO-K Report 
for Fiscal 1997 

Filed herewith 

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 
lO[i) o f w s  Form 8-K filed 12/15/99. 

Filed herewith 

Filed herewith 

Filed herewith 

Filed herewith 

Exhibits listed above which have heretofore been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the 
Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and which were designated as noted above and have not 
been amended, are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof with the same effect as if filed herewith. 

The Company is a party to various agreements with respect to long-tenn indebtedness to which the total amount o f  
indebtedness authorized under each rigreement, respectively, does not exceed 10% of the total assets of the Company 
on a consolidated basis, The Company hereby agrees to furmsh to the Securities and Exchange Commission copies of 
such agreements upon request. 

@) Reports on Form 8-€2 

On December 15,1999, the Company filed a Form 8-k, Item 5,  Other Events, reporting an agrement between 
its affiliate T.I.C. Enterprises, L. L. C! and the United States PostaI Service. 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT P u m r c  ACCOUNTANTS 

To NUI Corporation: 

We have audited the accompanying omsolidated balance sheet and statement of consolidated capitalization of NUI 
Corporation (a New Jersey corporation) and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 1999 and 1998, and the related 
consolidated statements of income, cash flows and shareholders’ equity, for each of the three years in the period ended 
September 30, 1999. These conso1idate:d financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated fmancial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free 
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the consolidated fmncid statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall fmncial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
fmancial position of NUI Corporation and Subsidiaries as of September 30, 1999 and 1998, and the results of their 
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in t h e  period ended September 30, 1999, in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles. 

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The 
schedule listed in Item 14(a)(2) is thr: responsibility of the Company’s management and is presented for purposes of 
complying with the Securities and Elxchange Commission’s rules and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. This schedule has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic fmncial 
statements and, in our opinion, fairly states in all material respects the financial data required to be set forth therein in 
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, 

ARTHUR ANDERSEN LLP 

New York, New York 
November 9,1999 
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NUI Corporation and Subsidlaries 
CoasoIidated Statement of Income 

@ollars in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Years Ended SeDtember 30, 

Operating Margins 
Operating revenues 
Less- Purchased g a s  and fuel 

Energy taxes 

Other Operating Expenses 
Operations and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Restructuring and other non-recurring items 
Other taxes 
Income taxes 

Operating Income 

Other Income and Expense, Net 
Equity in earnings (losses) of TIC Enterprises, LLC, net 
Other 
Income taxes 

Interest Expense 

Net Income 

Net Income Per Share of Common Stock 

Dividends Per Share of Common Stock 

Weighted Average Number of Shares 
of Common Stock Outstanding 

Lpee 

$828,174 
62 1,363 
14.148 
192,663 

100,490 
26,939 
(3,954) 

9,101 
16.604 

149.180 

43.483 

1,223 
360 
w 
1,029 

19.952 

$24.560 

LUi 
u 

m 
$828,036 
6 2 9,6 0 8 

18.852 
J79.576 

95,881 
24,952 
9,686 
9,733 
8.390 
148.642 

30.934 

(5  6 )  

m 
i223 

19.212 

969 

$12,314 

L + B  

$ .98 

!2.715.300 12.584.335 

rn 
$608,596 
402,160 

172.838 
33.598 

94,799 

9,189 
9.377 

136.397 

3 6.44 1 

23,032 
-- 

1,334 
1,940 

( 1.1 46) 
2.12g 

18.920 

$19.649 

$ 1.75 

u 
11,253.513 

See the noles to the consolidatedfinancial statements. 
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NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

(DolIars in thousands) 

n 

ASSETS 
Utility Plant 
Utility plant, at original cost 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
Unamortized plant acquisition adjustments, net 

Seatember 30, 
1998 E92 

$779,13 1 
(256.898) 

30.242 
ziui2 

Funds for Constructlon Held by Trustlee 37.413 

Investment in TIC Enterprises, LLC 24.905 

Other Investments 1.385 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts of 
$1,697 in 1999 and 51,714 in 1998) 
Fuel inventories, at average cost 
Unrecovered purchased gas costs 
Prepayments and other 

Other Assets 
Regulatory assets 
Deferred assets 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 
Capltalizatlon (See accompanying stateiments) 
Common shareholders’ equity 
Preferred stock 
Long-term debt 

1,561 

85,056 
28,573 

901 
50.108 
166.199 

51,615 
10.234 

61.849 
$844.229 

$237,3 18 

268.91 I 
506.229 

-- 

Capital Lease Obligations 2,599 

Current Liabilities 
Notes payable to banks 
Current portion of capital lease obligations 
Accounts payable, customer deposits and accrued liabilities 
Federal income and other taxes 

Other Liabilities 
Deferred Federal income taxes 
Unamortized investment tax credits 
Environmental mediation reseryc 
Regulatory and other liabilities 

See the notes to the consoliiiaredfinancial statements. 

73,6 15 
7,776 

108,023 
4.351! 
193.773 

69,95 1 
5,251 
33,981 
32.442 

t 4 1 . a  
%844.225 

$737,323 
(234,484) 
3Q9Q4 
573.743 

12.254 
23,874 

1.687 

929 

62,673 
34,937 
8,06 1 

37.790 
144.390 

50,475 
10.424 

60.899 
$776.847 

$222,992 

229.098 
452.090 

87,630 
1,810 

87,158 
3 
182.233 
62,497 

. 5,710 
33,981 

31.770 
133.958 
$776.847 
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N U  Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Fiows 

@oIlars in thousands) 

Operating Activities 
Net Income 
Adjushnents to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating 
activities: 

Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred Federal income taxes 
Non-cash portion of restructuring and other non-recurring items 
Amortization of deferred inveslment tax crehts 
Other 
Effects of changes in: 

Accounts receivable, net 
Fuel inventories 
Accounts payable, deposits and accruals 
Over (under) recovered purchased gas costs 
Other 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Financing Activities 
Proceeds from sales of common stock, net of treasury stock purchased 
Dividends to shareholders 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 
Funds for consbuction held by trustee, net 
Repayments of long-term debt 
Principal payments under capital lease obligations 
Net short-term (repayments) borrowings 
Net cash (used for) provided by financing activities 

Investing Activities 
Cash expenditures for utility plant 
Investment in TIC Enterprises, LLC 
Other 
Net cash used in investing activities 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
At beginning of period 
At end of period 

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flows 
Income taxes paid, net 
Interest paid 

Years Ended September 30, 
1999 

$24,560 

28,914 
7,454 
(4,726) 

(459) 
3,237 

(22,383) 
6,364 

20,865 
7,160 

(1 2.0301 
58.956 

340 
(1 2,443) 
39,813 

(24,871) 
c- 

(1 3 8  10) 
[ 14.0 1 5 )  
(12.9861 

(47,2 13) 

1.875 
145.3 3 8) 

u 2  

$ 929 
$ 1,561 

$ 7,695 
$20,732 

$12,314 

26,050 
3 57 

7,301 

1,743 

1,826 

(461) 

(3,869) 
(7,347) 
1,541 

{ I  l3.604) 
20,851 

3,658 
(12,311) 

16,670 
(54,600) 

(1,792) 
33.202 

(1 S. 173) 

-I 

(59,969) -- 
r3.5731 

$r57.8641 

(6 3.5 42) 

$ S8,793 
$ 929 

$ 6,482 
$22,094 

$19,649 

24,040 
3,246 

(464) 
1,020 

(20,911) 
( 1,877) 
28,133 
(2,614) 
0.7071 
40.5 15 

28,204 
(10,575) 
53,569 
18,784 
(950) 

(1,730) 
r467) 
86,835 

( 5  1,366) 
(22,584) 
11657 
(72.2931 

%55.05_;! 

$ 3,736 
$58,793 

5,008 
$19,760 

See the notes to the consolidatedfinancid statements. 
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NUI Corporation and Subsidiaries 
,Consolidated Statement of Capitalization 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Long-Term Debt 
Gas facilities revenue bonds 

6.35% due October 1,2022 
6.40% due October t,2024* 
Variable rate due June 1,2026* 
5.70% due June 1,2032 
5.25% due November 1,2033* 

7.125% due August 1,2002 
8,35% due February 1,2005 

Medium-tenn notes 

Unamortized debt bscount 

Preferred Stock, 5,000,000 shares auihorized; none issued 

Common Shareholders' Equity 
Common Stock, no par value; shares authorized: 30,000,000; 

Shares held in beeasury: 122,219 in 19!)9 and 106,739 in 1998 
Retained earnings 
Unearned employee Compensation 

shares outstanding: 12,750,270 in 1999 and 12,680,398 in 1998 

Total Capitalization 

,Spotember 30, 
lgee 1998 

$ 46,500 
20,000 
39,000 
54,600 
40,000 

20,000 
50,000 

f L w  
270,100 

268.9 1 1 

209,984 
(2,311) 
3 1,380 
r1.7351 

237,3 18 

$ 46,500 
20,000 
39,000 
54,600 
I 

20,000 
50.000 

230,100 
11.0021 
229.098 

207,356 

19.263 
( 1,932) 

ALU 
222.992 

$506.22 $452.090 

* The total unexpended portions of the net proceeds from these bonds, amounting to $32.0 million and $7.1 million as 
of September 30, 1999 and September 30, 1998, respectively, are carried on the Company's consolidated balance sheet 
as funds for construction held by bustee, including interest earned thereon, until drawn upon for eligible construction 
expenditures. 

See the notes to the consolidutedfinanciol statements. 

F-6 



Y 

NUI Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders' Equity 

@loliars in thousands) 

Unrealized 
Gain 

(Loss)- Unearned 
Marketable Employee 
Securitiet Com~ens at im Total 

Common Stock 

Held in Retained 
Treasury Faminu 

Shares Paid-in 
Outstandim ,Amount 

Balance, 
September 30,1996 
Common stock issued: 
Public offering 
Other* 

Treasury stock transactions 
Net income 
Cash dividends 
Unrealized (loss) 
Unearned compensation 
ESOP transactions 

11,085,876 $171,968 $ (1.564) 3 10,117 J 389 $ (1,803) $179,107 

1,011,400 

(5,744) 
337,420 

22,610 
6,971 

22,6 10 
6,971 

19,649 
(10,575) 

(51) 

(269) 
t 2 w  

1,137 

19,649 
(10,575) 

69 

$ 120 
B a I a n E e, 
September 30,1997 
Common stock issued" 
Treasury stock transactions 
Net income 
Cash dividends 
Unrealized (loss} 
Unearned compensation 

12,428,952 $201,549 
259,7 10 5,807 
(8,264) 

S (1,615) S 19,260 $ (1,023) $2 18,29 1 
5,807 

12,314 
(12,311) 

(317) 

(120) 
(672) 

(317) 
12,314 

(12,311) 

Balance, 
September 30,1998 
Common stock issued* 
Treasury stock transactions 
Net income 
Cash dividends 
Unearned compensation 

$ (1,695) 12,680,398 $207,356 
85,352 2,628 

(I5,SSO) 

$222,992 
2,628 
(379) 

24,560 
(1 2,443) 

(40) 

3 (1,932) $ 19,263 

(379) 

B a 1 an c e, 
September 30,1999 (1.735) %- 12.750.270 $209.9@ $237.3 18 

* Represents common stock issued in connection with NUIDirecf and various employee benefitplans 

See the notes to the consolidatedfinanciai statemenls. 
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NUI Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated fmancial statements include all operating divisions and subsidiaries of 
NUT Corporation (collectively referred to as the Company). The Company is a multi-state energy sales, services and 
distibution, and te~ccommunications company. Its utility operations distribute natural gas and related services in six 
states along the eastern seaboard and cimprise Ebbethtown Gas (New Jersey), City Gas Company of Florida, North 
Carolina Gas, E h n  Gas (MaryIand), Valley Cities Gas (Pennsylvania) and Waverly Gas (New York). The 
Company’s non-regulated subsidiaries include NUI Energy, Inc. (NU Energy), an energy retailer; NUI Energy 
Brokers, Inc. (NUI Energy Brokers), 1111 energy wholesaler; NUI Energy Solutions, Inc., an energy project development 
and consulting entity; Nul Environmental Group, Inc., an environmental project development subsidiary; Utility 
Business Services, Inc. (UBS), a customer and geographic mfomtion systems and services subsidiary; and 
International Telephone Group, Inc. (ITG), a telecommunications services subsidiary (see Note 2). The Company also 
provides sales outsourcing through its 49 percent equity interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC (TIC). All intercompany 
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

The preparation of fmancial statem1:nts in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and aswnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fmancial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Certain reclassifications have been nude to the prior year fmncial statements to conform with the current year 
presentation. 

Regulation. The Company is subject to regulation as an operating utility by the public utility commissions of the states 
in which it operates. 

Utili@ Plant. Utility plant is stated rit its original cost. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the 
remaining estimated lives of depreci.able property by applyins rates as approved by the state commissions. The 
composite average annual depreciaticm rate was 3 percent in fiscal 1999, ffical 1998, and fBcd 1997. At the time 
properties are retired, the original cost plus the cost of retirement, less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation. 
Repairs of all utility plant and replacements and renewals of minor items of property are charged to maintenance 
expense as incurred. 

The net unamortized plant acquisition adjustments represent the remaining portion of the excess of the purchase price 
over the book value of net assets acquired, The excess is being amortized on a straight-line basis over 30 years fiom the 
date of acquisition. The results of operations of acquired entities have been included in the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements for the periods subsequent to their acquisition. 

Operating Revenues and Purchased Gas and Fuel Conk Operating revenues include accrued unbSled revenues 
through the end of each accounting period. Operating revenues also reflect adjustments attributable to weather 
normalization clauses that arc accrued during the winter heating season and billed or credited to customers in the 
following year. 

Costs of purchased gas and fiiel for the Company’s regulated utilities are recognized as expenses in accordance with the 
purchased gas adjusment clause applicable in each state. Such clauses provide for periodic reconciliations of actual 
recoverable gas costs and the estimated amounts that have been billed to customers. Under- or over-recoveries are 
deferred when they arise and are recovered from or refimded to customers in subsequent periods. 

The Company’s subsidianes, NUI Energy Brokers and ?WI Energy, mark-to-market through the income statement all 
traaing positions, including forward sales and purchase commitments. (See Note 7 for a hrther description of the 
Company’s use of derivative financial instnrments.) 

F-8 



W’ W 

Environmental Reserve. The Company, with the aid of environmental consultants, regularly assesses the potential 
fbture costs associated with conducting investigative activities at each of the Company’s sites and implementing 
appropriate remedial actions, as well as the likehhood of whether such actions will be necessary. The Company 
records a reserve if it is probable that a liability will be incurred and the mount  of the liability can be reasonably 
estimated. 

Stuck Compensation, The Company follows the accounting prescribed by Accounlhg Principles Board Opinion No. 
25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related interpretations h accounting for its employee stock-based 
compensation. The Company has elected to adopt the disclosuresnly provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 123, ‘‘Accounting for Stock Based Compensation” (SFAS 1231, which requires proforma disclosure of 
the effect of adopting the accounting under SFAS 123. If the Company had adopted SFAS 123, there would not have 
been a material effect on the results of operations or financial position, 

Income Taxes. The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standards No. 109, ‘‘Accounting for Income Taxes”, which requires the liability method to be used to account for 
deferred income taxes. Under thls method, deferred income taxes related to tax and accounting basis differences are 
recognized at the statutory income tax rates in effect when the tax is expected to be paid. 

Investment tax credits, which were generated principally in connection with additions to utility plant made prior to 
January 1,1986, are being amortized over the estimated service lives of the properties that gave rise to the credits. 

Regulatory Assets and Liabilities. The Company’s utility operations follow the accounting for regulated enterprises 
prescribed by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of 
Regulation” (SFAS 71). In general, SFAS 71 requires deferral of certain costs and obligations, based upon orders 
received from regulators, to be recovered from or refunded to customers in future periods. The following represents the 
Company‘s regulatory assets and liabilities deferred in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of September 
30,1999 and 1998 (in thousands): 

Regulatory Assets 
Environmental investigation and remediation costs 
Unrecovered gas costs 
Postretirement and other employee benefits 
Deferred piping allowances 
Other 

Regulatory Liabilities 
Net overcollection of income taxes 
Refunds to customers 
Other 

$35,950 
1,082 
8,877 
1,692 
4,014 

$5 1.6u 

$5,183 
2,928 
42h 
E&z 

$34,686 
2,265 
10,663 
2,108 

753 
$50.475 

$5,425 
2,478 
302 

$8.205 

In the event that the provisions of SFAS 71 were no longer applicable, the Company would r e c o p  a write-off of net 
regulatory assets (regulatory assets less regulatory liabilities) that would result in a charge to net income, which would 
be classified as an extraordinary item. However, although the gas dismiution industry is becoming increasingly 
competitive, the Company’s utility operations continue to recover their costs through cost-based rates established by the 
public utility commissions. As a result, the Company believes that the accounting prescribed under SFAS 71 remains 
appropriate. 

Cash Equivalents. Cash equivalents consist of a money market account which invests in securities with original 
maturities of t h e  months or less. 

Net lnconne Per Share of Common Stock. Net income per share of common stock is based on the weighted average 
number of shares of NUI common stock outstanding. The Company follows the provisions of Statement of Financial 
Accounthg Standards No. 128, ”Earnings per Share”, which requires computing and presenting basic and diluted 
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earnings per share. The Company does not have other classes of stock or dilutive c o m o n  stock equivalents. As such, 
there is no difference between basic and. diluted earnings per share. 

New Accounting Standards. In June 1999, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards No. 137, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities - Deferral of 
Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 133”. The Statement defers for one year the effective date of FASB Statement 
No. 133, “Accounhg for Derivative Lnstruments and Hedging Activities” (SFAS 133). The rule requires that the 
Company adopt SFAS 133 in fiscal 2001. SFAS 133 was issued in June 1998 and establishes accounting and reporting 
standards regarding dcrivative instrunmts. SFAS 133 requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the 
balance sheet at their fair value as either an asset ox liability, and that changes in the fair value be recognized currently 
in earnings unless certain criteria are met. At this time, the Company has elected not to adopt SFAS 133 prior to its 
effective date. Since both NUl Energy Broken and NUI Energy currently utilize mark-to-market accounthg, it is not 
anticipated that the adoption of SFAS 133 Will have a material T a c t  on net income when adopted. 

2. Purchase of ITG 

On November 12, 1999, the Cornpan;{ closed on its acquisition of International Telephone Group, hc. (ITG). The 
acquisition was treated as a merger whereby ITG merged with and into a subsidiary of the Company. The purchase 
price totaled $3.8 d f i o n  and included the issuance of 113,200 shares of NlTl common stock, with the remainder paid 
in cash. ITG is a full service telephons: company that provides its customers with a single service solution for all their 
telecommunication requirements including local, long distance, celIular, internet, and data communications services. 
The Agreement and Plan of Merger contains a provision whereby the previous shareholders of ITG will receive an 
additional 5 1 .O million in NLTI common stock if ITG achieves certain revenue targets no later than December 3 1,2003. 

The acquisition is being accounted for as a purchase. The excess of the purchase price over the net assets of ITG is 
estimated to be approximately $4.5 rrullion, which includes the additional earnings contingency noted above, and is 
expected to be amortized on a straight-line basis over a 20-year period. 

3. 

In 1998, the Company commenced a reorganization effort that included early retirement programs for both non- 
bargaining and bargahhg unit employees, as well as other workforce reductions. The reorghation efforts resulted in 
accounting charges and gains that were incurred in both fiscal 1999 and 1998. In fiscal 1999, the Company r e c o p e d  
approximately $4.0 million of pre-tax, non-recurring gains primarily relating to these reorganization efforts. Tn fEcal 
1998, the Company incurred approxkutely $9.7 million of pre-tax, non-recurring charges primarily related to the 
reorganization effort. Speclfic detail on these non-recurring items follows. 

Restructuring and Other Non-Recurring hems 

In June 1998, the Company offered .an early retirement program to its non-bargaining unit personnel. The program 
was accepted by 74 of the eligible 7 7  employees. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 88, “Employers’ Accounting for Settlements and Curtailments of Defrned Benefit Pension Plans and for 
Termination Benefits” (SFAS 88), the Company recorded a special termination charge of approximately $7.3 
million during fiscal 1998 when the Icost was recognizable. In March 1999, the Company recorded a settlement gain 
of approximately $6.8 million as a result of satisfaction of all future liabilities associated with these employees. 

In January 1999, the Company offered an early retirement program to its bargaining Unit employees in New Jersey. The 
program was accepted by 32 of the eligible 35 employees. In accordance with SFAS 88, the Company recwded a 
special termination charge of approximately $1.8 million in the second quarter of fmal 1999 associated with these 
retirements. In June 1999, the C Q ~ ~ I Y  recorded a settlement gain of approximately $3.2 million as the result of 
satisfaction of all future liabilities associated with these employees. Also in June 1999, the Company recorded an 
additional $0.6 million of other benefit expenses associated with these employees. 

In fiscal 1999, the Company also .recorded approximately $1.8 million of charges relating to the write-off of certain 
regulatory assets whch will not be recovered through rates, as well as $1.8 million of charges relating to other items 
which were deemed to be separate fiom recurring earnings. 
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In fiscal 1998, the Company also recorded approximately $1.5 million of other benefit expenses associated with 
employees that accepted the early retirement program and approximately $0.9 million of other charges associated with 
the reorganization of the Company. 

4. Capitalization 

Long-Term Debt. On December 8,1998, the Company issued $40 million of tax-exempt Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds 
at an interest rate of 5.25 percent. These bonds will mature in November 2033 and the proceeds will be used to finance 
a portion of the Company's capital expenditure program in New Jersey. 

The Company deposits in mst the unexpended portion of the net proceeds h m  its Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds until 
drawn upon for eligible expenditures. As of September 30, 1999 and September 30, 1998, the total unexpended 
portions of all of the Company's Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds were $32.0 million and $7.1 milIion, respectively, and 
are classified on the Company's consolidated balance sheet, including interest earned thereon, as funds for construction 
held by trustee. 

The Company is scheduled to repay $20 million of Medium-Term Notes in August 2002. 

Preferred Stock The Company has 5,000,000 shares of authorized but unissued preferred stock. Shares of Series A 
Junior Participating Preferred Stock have been reserved for possible future issuance in connection with the Company's 
Shareholder Rights Plan, described below. 

Shareholder Rights Plan. In November 1995, the Company's Board of Directors adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan 
under which shareholders of NU1 common stock were issued as a dividend one right to buy one one-hundredth of a 
share of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock at a purchase price of $50 (Right) for each share of common 
stock held. The Rights initially attach to the shares of N7JI common stock and can be exercised or transferred only if a 
person or group (an Acquirer), with certain exceptions, acquires, or commences a tender offer to acquire beneficial 
ownership of 15 percent or more of ?WI common stock. Each Right, except those held by the Acquirer, may be used 
by the non-acquiring shareholders to purchase, at the Right's exercise price, shares of NUI common stock having a 
market value equivalent to twice the Right's exercise price, thus substantially reducing the Acquirer's ownership 
percentage. 

The Company may redeem the fights at $0.001 per Right at any time prior to the occurrence of any such event. AH 
Rights expire an November 27,2005. 

Common Stock The Company periodically issues shares of common stock in connection with NUI Direct, the 
Company's dividend reinveshent and stock purchase plan, and various employee benefit plans. Effective May 26, 
1998, several of these plans commenced purchasing shares on the open market to l l f i l l  the plans' requirements. Under 
the terms of these plans, the Company may periodically change the method of purchasing shares from open market 
purchases to purchases directly from the Company, or vice versa. 

At September 30, 1999, shares reserved for issuance under the Company's common stock plans were: NLTI Direct, 
62,855; Savings and Inveshnent Plan, 122,135; 1996 Stock Option and Stock Award Plan, 383,004; 1996 Employee 
Stock Purchase Plan, 122,253; and the 1996 Director Stock Purchase Plan, 23,083. 

Stock Plans. The Company's Board of Directors believes that the interests of both directors and management shpuld be 
closely aligned with those of shareholders. As a result, under the 1996 Stock Option and Stock Award Plan, and the 
1996 Director Stock Purchase Plan, the Company has a long-term compensation program for directors, executive 
officers and key employees involving shares of NUI common stock. 

Restricted shares of stock granted as long-term compensation for executive officers and key employees amounted to 
75,900 in fiscal 1999, 74,600 in fiscal 1998 and 69,800 shares in fiscal 1997. As of September 30, 1999, a total of 
147,809 shares of restricted stock that have been granted as long-term compensation are subject to future vesting 
requirements, and are restricted from resale. 
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Executive officers and key employees are eligible to be granted options for the purchase of NU1 common stock at 
prices equal to the market price per share on the date of grant. The option must be exercised within 10 years from 
the date of grant. As of September 30, 1999 there were 5,000 options outstanding and exercisable at a price of 
$17.625 per share. During fiscal 1998, 4,800 options were exercised at a price of $15.77 per share, There were no 
other transactions during the last three fiscal years. 

Dividend Restrictions. The Company's; long-term debt agreements include, among other things, restrictions as to the 
payment of cash dividends. Under the most restrictive of these provisions, the Company was permitted to pay 
approximately $54 million of cash divirlends at September 30,1999. 

5. Notes Payable to Banb 

At September 30, 1999, the Company's outstanding notes payable to banks were $73.6 million with a combined 
weighted average interest rate of 5.8 percent. Unused lines of credit at September 30, 1999 were approximately $62.4 
million. 

The weighted average daily amounts clutstanding of notes payable to banks and the weighted average interest rates on 
those amounts were $68.2 million at 5i.3 percent in fiscal 1999, $66.8 million at 5.7 percent in fiscal 1998 and $66.0 
million at 5.5 percent in fiscal 1997. 

6. Leases 

Utility plant held under capital leases amounted to $24.3 million at September 30, 1999 and $24.6 million at September 
30, 1998, with related accumulated amortization of $15.6 million and $14.3 million, respectively. These properties 
consist principally of leasehold improvements and office furniture and fixtures. A su~fnary of future minimum 
payments for properties held under capital leases follows (in thousands): 

2000 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 and hereafter 
Total future minimum payments 
Amount rcppresenting interest 
Current portion of capital lease obligations 

Capital 1 ease obligations 

$7,981 
1,316 
1,093 

574 
126 -- - 

11,090 
(7 15) 

(7.776) 

Minimum payments under noncancelable operating leases, which relate principally to office space, are approximately 
$3.3 million in each of fiscal years 2000 through 2004. Rents charged to operations expense were $5.1 million in fEca1 
1999, $5.8 million in fiscal 1998 and 165.5 million in fiscal 1997. 

7. Financial Instruments 

Derivatives. The Company's wholesale trading subsidiary, NUI Energy Brokers, utilizes the following fmancial 
instnrments to provide competitive energy supplies and enhance the Company's profitability: forward contracts, which 
commit the Company to purchase or sell physical natural gas in the future; swap agreements, which require payments 
to (or receipt of payments from) counterparties based on the differential between a fmed price and an index price of 
natural gas; and futures and options coneacts, bought on the New York Mercantile Exchange ("MEX), to buy or sell 
natural gas at a fixed price in the future,. 
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NU1 Energy Brokers accounts for its risk management activities by marking-to-market all trading positions, and 
calculating a value-at-risk, on a daily basis. The values used for these calculations reflect NYMEX settlement prim, 
established pricing models, and quoted market volatilities. The Company manages open positions with a strict Risk 
Management Policy that limits its exposure to market risks and requires that any breach of policy be reported to senior 
management. 

Margin requirements for natural gas futures contracts are recorded in other current assets. Realized and unrealized gains 
and losses are recorded in the consolidated statement of hcome wnder purchased gas and fuel. At September 30,1999, 
Nu1 Energy Brokers' futures positions consisted of 2,793 long coneacts and 2,715 short contracts at prices ranging 
from $2.080 to $3.223 per Mcf, none of which extend beyond December 2001, representing 55,080 MMcf of natural 
gas. Their options positions consisted of 1,339 puts and calls at vaqhg strike prices, none of which extend beyond 
August 2000. In addition, NUI Energy Brokers has forward sales and purchase commihnents associated with contracts 
totaling approximately 192,000 MMcf of natural gas, with terms extending through December 2005. During fiscal 
1999, Ntn Energy Brokers reduced their margin deposits with brokers by approximately $1.2 million to $4.3 million, 
Net realized and unrealized gains on derivative hdmg for fiscals 1999 and 1998 totaled $9.0 million and $2.8 million, 
respectively, whch have been included in income. 

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of default or non-performance by one of its trading parhers. The 
Company adheres to credit policies that management believes minimizes overall credit risk. 

Other Financial Instruments. The fair value of the Company's cash equivalents, funds for construction held by trustee 
and notes payable to banks are approximately equivalent to their carrying value. The carrying value of the Company's 
long-term debt exceeded its fair value by approximately $2 million as of September 30, 1999, while the carrying value 
was lower than its fair value by approximately $19 rmllion as of September 30, 1998. The fair value of long-term debt 
was estimated based on quoted market prices for the same or similar issues. 

8. Consolfdated Taxes 

The provision for Federal and State income taxes was comprised of the following (in thousands): 

1999 1998 - 1997 

Federal $5,759 $6,747 $7,205 
Currently payable - 

State 4,265 2,166 595 

State 139 (99) (59) 
(4611 3 6 9  

Deferred - 
Federal 7,454 357 3,246 

?$8,71Q $10.523 
Amortization of investment tax credits 
Total provision for income taxes 

14591 
$17.158 

The components of the Company's net deferred Federal tax liability (asset) as of September 30, 1999 and 1998 are as 
follows (in thousands): 

Depreciation and other utility plant differences 
Plant acquisition adjustments 
Alternative minimum tax credit 
Unamortized investment tax credit 
Deferred charges and regulatory assets 
Energy taxes 
Pension 
Other 

1999 
$59,434 

9,627 
(3,614) 
12,1401 
3,948 

580 
4,723 

-fum 
&%%a 

leea 
$55,093 

10,023 
(5,008) 
(1,823) 
5,522 
1,953 
2,491 

15.7541 
UU 
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The alternative minimum tax credit can. be carried forward indefinitely to reduce the Company’s future tax liability. 

The Company’s effective income tax rates differ from the statutory Federal income tax rates due to the following (in 
thousands): 

Pre-tax income 
Federal income taxes cornpu.ted at Federal statutory 
tax rate of 35% 
Increase {reduction) resulting from: 

Excess of book over tax depreciation 
Amoht ion of invesbrmrt tax credits 
Federal benefit of state tax. provision 
Other, net 

Total provision for Federal income taxes 
Provision for State income taxes 
Total provision for income taxes 
(Less) provision included in other income and expense 
Provision for income taxes included in operating expenses 

E!E 
$41.718 

14,601 

341 
(459) 

(1,541) 

4.404 

(554) 

12,754 

17,158 

5 16.604 

L9eB 
%21824 

7,358 

357 
(461) 
(723) 

2.067 

L3.m 
$8.390 

112 
6,643 

8,710 

m 
$30.172 

10,560 

354 
(464) 
(1 88) m 

536 
9,987 

10,523 
I 1.1 46) 
$9.377 

9. Retirement Benefits 

During the current year, the Compaqy was required to adopt Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 132, 
“Employers’ Disclosures about Pens1,on and Other Postretirement Benefits” (SFAS 132). SFAS 132 amended the 
disclosure requirements of the Company’s pension and postretirement benefits information, while not changing the 
manner in which these items are recoded. 

Pension Benefits. The Company has non-contributory defmed benefit retirement plans which cover all of its employees 
other than the City Gas of Florida union employees who participate in a union-sponsored multi-employer pIan. The 
Company funds its plans in accordmice with the requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 
1974 and makes contributions to the union sponsored plan in accordance with its contractual obligations. Benefits paid 
under the Company’s plans are based on years of service and levels of compensation. The Company‘s actuarial 
calculation of pension expense is based on the projected unit cost method. 

The changes in the pension benefit obligation for the Company’s plans were as follows (in thousands): 

Benefit obligation at beginning ad year 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Amendments 
Actuarial (gain) loss 
Benefits paid 
Benefit obligation at end of yeax 

Em! E A 3  
$ I  14,233 $88,942 

2,446 2,370 
6,281 6,459 
5,990 8,583 
(9,603) 14,797 

$J 14.232 
r6.9181 r38.5021 

$80,845 

The change in the Company’s plan asisets were as follows (in thousands): 

rn reea 
Fair value of plan assets at begirlning of year $140,975 $137,290 
Actual return on plan assets 46,450 10,603 
Benefits paid (38.502) (6.9 181 

$148.923 $140.975 Fair value of plan assets at end of year 
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The reconciliation of the funded status of the Company’s fimded plans as of September 30, 1999 and 1998 was as 
follows (in thousands): 

2999 m 
Funded status $80,845 $1 14,233 
Market value of plan assets 148,923 140.975 
Plan assets in excess of projected benefit obligation 68,078 26,742 
Unrecognized net gain (52,484) (20,973) 
Unrecognized prior service cost 3,361 543 
Unrecognized net transition asset 0 A L m  

Pension prepayment $17.988 $4.345 

The projected benefit obligation was calculated using a discount rate of 7.5 percent in fiscal 1999 and 6.5 percent in 
fiscal 1998, and an assumed annual increase in compensation levels of 4 percent in both fiscal 1999 and fiscal 1998. 
The expected long-term rate of return on assets was calculated at 9.75 percent in both fiscal 1999 and 1998. The assets 
of t h e  Company’s funded plans are invested primarily in publicly traded fixed income and equity securities. 

The components of pension expense for the Company’s plans were as follows (in thousands): 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Expected return on plan assets 
Net amortization and deferral 
Special termination benefits 
Settlement gain 

Pension (credit) expense 

$2,446 
6,28 1 

(13,048) 

1,799 
1,069) 

w 
$(13.64a 

- 1997 
$2,370 $1,849 
6,459 6,480 

(13,111) (36,984) 
(2,407) 26,089 
7,301 1,150 

,% 612 $r1.416] 
- - 

Certain key employees also participate in an unfunded supplemental retirement plan. The projected benefit obligation 
under this plan was $6.5 million as of September 30, 1999 and $5.8 million as of September 30, 1998, and the expense 
for this plan was approximately $0.7 million in both fiscals 1999 and 1998, and $0.6 million in fiscal 1997. 

Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions. The Company provides certain health care benefits to all retirees 
receiving benefits under a Company pension plan other than the City Gas Company of Florida p h ,  who reach 
retirement age while working for the Company. 

The Company accounts for these plans under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 106, “Employers‘ 
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions” (SFAS 1061, which, among other things, requires 
companies to accrue the expected cost of providing other postretirement benefits to employees and their beneficiaries 
during the years that eligible tmployees render the necessary service. The Company does not currently fund these 
kture benefits. 

The changes in the poslxetirement benefit obligation for the Company’s plans were as follows (in thousands): 

Benefit obligation at beginning of year 
Service cost 
Interest cost 
Actuarial (gain) loss 
Benefits paid 
Other 
Benefit obligation at end of year 

m 
$3 1,42 1 
1,243 
2,087 
(4,174) 
1,345) 

15 
$29.247, 

1998 
$22,933 

813 
1,683 
6,997 

(1,035) 
3.p 
$3 1.42 1 
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The change in the Company’s plan assets were as follows (in thousands): 

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 
Employer contributions 
Plan participants’ contriiutions 
Benefits paid 
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 

E!!? 
$ -  

2,830 
15 

11.3451 
%1.5oa 

Em 
% -  
1,014 

21 
(1.03$1 
L- 

The reconciliation of the funded status of the Company’s postretirement plans other than pensions as o€ September 30, 
1999 and 1998, was 3s follows (in thousands): 

Funded status 
Unrecognized transition obligation 
Unrecognized net (loss) 

A C C N ~  postretirement benefit obligation 

la2 m 

1 3 . 5 6 8 1 0  

$27,747 $3 1,42 1 
(9,6 16) (11,603) 

$14,563 $11.614 

The components of postretirement benefit expense other than pensions for the years ended September 30, 1999 and 
1998, were as follows (in thousands): 

Service cost 
Interest cost 
Amortization of uansition obligation 
Other 

Net postretirement expense 

- 1999 
$1,242 

2,089 
730 
- 217 
$4,278 

1998 
$ 813 

1,683 
774 

8 
%3.278 

The health care trend rate assumption is 9.4 percent in 2000 gradually decreasing to 5.5 percent for the year 2006 and 
later. The discount rate used to cornpiUte the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation was 7.5 percent in fiscal 
1999 and 6.5 percent in fiscal 1998. A n  increase in the health care trend rate assumption by one percentage point in ail 
years would increase the accumulakd postretirement benefit obligation by approximately $4.7 million and the 
aggregate annual service and interest costs by approximately $0.8 million. 

On September 23, 1998, the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NJBPU) issued an order approving the Company’s 
petition to increase its base rates in New Jersey by approximately $2.4 million annually to recover postretirement 
benefits computed under SFAS 106, The rate increase was effective October 1, 1998 and allows for previously 
deferred costs, as well as future SFAS 106 costs, to be recovered over a rolling 15-year period. The Company has 
previously received an order from the North C a r o h  Utilities Commission to include in rates the mount of 
postretirement benefit expense other t‘han pensions computed under SFAS 106. 

The Company continually evaluates dternative ways to manage these benefits and contra1 their costs. Any changes in 
the plan or revisions to assumptions that affect the amount of expected future benefit may have a significant effect on 
the amount of the reported obligation and the annuai deferral and expense, 

10. Business Segment Informatton 

During the current fiscal year, the: Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards NO. 131, 
“Disclosures about Segments of an Einterprise and Related Information” (SFAS 13 I). SFAS 13 1 is based ~1 disclosing 
donnation under the “r-r)anagRment approach” which relates to the way management uses information to evaluate 
performance, make operaling decisioiu and allocate resources among the various segments. The adoption of SFAS 13 1 
did not affect the results of operations or financial position of the Company, but did affect the disclosure of segment 
information for each of the fiscal years presented. 
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The Company’s operations are organized and managed by three primary segments: Distribution Services, Energy Sales 
and Services and Customer Services. The Distribution Services segment distributes natural gas in six states through the 
Company’s regulated utility divisions. The Energy Sales and Services segment reflects the operations of the 
Company’s NUI Energy, NUI Energy Brokers and NWI Energy Solutions subsidiaries, as well as off-system sales by 
the utility divisions. The Customer Services segment provides appliance repair and maintenance, mapping services to 
outside utilities and payment processing and collections primarily for water and waste-water usage. The Company also 
has corporate operations that do not generate any revenues or operating margins. 

The foUowing table provides information concerning the major segments of the Company for each of the three fiscal 
years ended September 30, 1999, 1998 and 1997. Revenues and operating margins include btersegment sales to 
affiliated entities, which are eliminated in consolidation. Identifiable assets include only those amiutable to the 
operations of each segment. All of the Company’s operations are in the United States and therefore do not need 
separate disclosure by geographic region. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year segment data to 
conform with the current year’s presentation. 

(Jlollars in thousands) 

Revenues: 
Distribution Services 
Energy Sales & Services 
Customer Services 
Intersepen t Revenues 

Total Revenues 

Operating Margins: 
Distribution Services 
Energy Sales & Services 
Customer Services 
Intersegment Operating Margins 

Total Operating Margins 

PreTax Operating Income: 
Distribution Services 
Energy Sales & Services 
Customer Services 

Total Pre-Tax Operating Income 

Depreciation & Amortization: 
Distribution Services 
Energy Sales & Services 
Customer Services 

Total Dqreciation & Amortization 

Identifiable Assets: 
Distribution Services 
Energy Sales & Services 
Customer Services 

Total Identifiable Assets 

Capital Expenditures: 
Distribution Services 
Energy Sakes & Services 
Customer Services 

Total Capital Expenditures 

1999 

$378,099 
46&4 15 

19,112 
13 1.4521 

$828,174 

$162,264 
13,319 
19,112 

LL!w 
$192.663 

$49,551 
6,585 

1.404 
w 

$390,046 
427,300 
17,696 
(7.006) 

$828.03 6 

$158,412 
5,441 
17,696 

r1.973’) 
$179.574 

$50,704 
( 1,744) 
726 
$49.68h 

$22,577 $20,904 
238 243 

2.140 2.221 
$24.955 %23.368 

$7 10,743 
70,220 

f4.9Zh 
$795.92  

$39,471 
495 

2.440 

$678,776 
39,849 
14.866 

$733.49 1 

$54,809 
457 

$56.948 

1997 

$4 17,422 
1803 1 

15,209 
(4.146) 

$608.599 

$153,115 
6,429 

15,209 

$172.834 
JWa 

$45,646 
1,081 

%45.695 
(1.0321 

$20,024 
50 

2.006 
$22.08Q 

$714,161 
28,638 
14.881 
%757.684 

$4 1,223 
506 

1.289 
%43.018 
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A reconciliation of the Company’s seigment pre-tax operating income, depreciation and amortization, identifiable 
assets and capital expenditures to amoimts reported on the consolidated financial statements is as follows: 

(Dollars In thousands) 

Segment Pre-Tax Operating Income 
Non-segment pre-tax operatiq (loss) income 
Non-recurring items 
Operating income taxes 

Operating income 

Segment Depreciation & Aniortization 
Non-segment depreciation & ;amortization 

Depreciation & Amortization 

Segment Identifiable Assets 
Non-segment identifiable asst:ts 

Total Assets 

Segment Capital Expenditures 
Non-s egment cap ita1 expenditures 
Total Capital Expenditures 

$57,540 
( 1,407) 
3,954 

I1 6.604) 
$43.481 

$24,955 

$26.939 
1.984 

$795,939 
48.287 

$844,226 

$42,406 
5,523 
$47.9% 

1998 
$49,686 

(676) 
(9,686) 
18.390) 
$30.934 

$23,368 

$24.952 
1.584 

$733,491 

$775.847 

$56,948 

43.356 

3.918 
$g 

$45,695 
123 

[9.3771 
$36.441 

$22,080 
952 
$23.032 

$757,684 
45.981 
%803.665 
$43,018 

91261 
$52.279 

11. Commitments and Contingencies 

Cornmimenis. Capital expenditures are expected to be approximately $51 million in fiscal 2000. 

Environniental Muttem. The Companlj is subject to federal and state laws with respect to water, air quality, solid waste 
disposal and employee health and safety matters, and to environmental regulations issued by the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EI’A), the New Jersey Depariment of Envirc~nmental Protection (NJDEP) and other 
federal and state agencies. 

The Company owns, or previously owned, certain properties on which manufactured gas plants {MGP) were operated 
by the Company or by other parties in the past. In New Jersey, the Company has reported the presence of the six MGP 
sites to the EFA, the NIDEP and the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NJBPU). In 1991, the NJDEP issued an 
Adrmnistrative Consent Order for the MGP site located at South Street in Elizabeth, New Jersey, wherein the Company 
agreed to conduct a remedial investigation and to design and implement a remediation plan. In 1992 and 1993, the 
Company entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with the NJDEP for each of the other five New Jersey MGP sites. 
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Administrative Consent Order and the Memoranda of Agreement, the 
Company is conducting remedial ac&ities at all six sites with oversight fiom the NJDEP. 

The Company also owns, or previously owned, IO former MGP facilities located in the states of North Carolina, South 
Carolina, Pennsylvania, New York and Maryland. The Company has joined with other North Carolina utilities to form 
the North Carolina Manufactured Gas Plant Group (the MGP Group). The MGP Group has entered into a 
Memorandum of Understanding with the North Carolina Department of Environment, Health and Natural Resources 
(NCDEHNR) to develop a uniform program and framework for the investigation and remediation of MGP sites in 
North Carolina. The Memorandum of Understanding contemplates that the actual investigation and remediation of 
specific sites will be addressed pursumt to Adminiseative Consent Orders between the NCDEHNR and the responsible 
parties. The NCDEHNR has sought the investigation and remediation of sites owned by members of the MGP Group 
and has entered into Administrative Consent Orders with respect to four such sites. None of these four Sites art 
currently or were previously owned hy the Company. 

Based on the most recent assessment, the Company has recorded a total reseme for environmental investigation and 
remediation costs of approximately :$34 million, which is the minimum amount that the Company expects to expend 
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during the next 20 years. The reserve is net of approximately $4 million, which will be borne by a prior owner and 
operator of two of the New Jersey sites in accordance with a cost sharing agreement. Of this reserve, approximately 
$30 million relates to the six New Jersey MGP sites and approximately $4 million relates to the 10 sites located outside 
New Jersey. However, the Company believes that it is possible that costs associated with conducting investigative 
activities and implementing remedial activities, if necessary, with respect to all of its MGP sites may exceed tbis 
reserve by an amount that could range up to an additional $24 million and be incurred during a future period of time 
that may range up to 50 years. Of this additional $24 million in possible future expenditures, approximately $12 million 
relates to the New Jersey MGP sites and approximately $12 million relates to the sites located outside New Jersey. As 
compared with the $34 million reseme currently recorded on the Company’s books as discussed above, the Company 
believes that it is less likely that this additional $24 million will be incurred and therefore has not recorded it on its 
books. 

The Company’s prudently incuned remediation costs for the New Jersey MGP sites have been autho&ed by the 
NJBPU to be recoverable in rates. The most recent NJBPU base rate order permits the Company to utilize MI deferred 
accounhng for expenditures related to its New Jersey sites and provides for the recovery of $130,0OO annually. As of 
July 1996, the Company is also able to recover MGP expenditures over a rolhg sever-year period through its NJBPU 
approved MGP Remediation Adjustment Clause. As a result, the Company has begun rate recovery of approximately 
$5.5 million of environmental costs incurred through June 30, 1998. Recovery of an additional $2.0 million in 
environmental costs incurred between July 1, 1998 and June 30, 1999 is currently pending NJBPU approval. 
Accordingly, the Company has recorded a regulatoly asset of approximately $34 million as of September 30, 1999, 
reflecting the future recovery of environmental remediation liabilities related to New Jersey MGP sites. The Company 
has also been successful in recovering a portion of MGP remediation costs incurred for the New Jersey sites from the 
Company’s insurance carriers and continues to pursue additional recovery. With respect to costs associated with the 
remaining MGP sites located outside New Jersey, the Company intends to pursue recovery h m  ratepayers, former 
owners and operators, and insurance carriers, although the Company is not able to express a belief as to whether any or 
a11 of these recovery efforts will be successful. The Company is working with the regulatory agencies to prudently 
manage its MGP costs so as to mitigate the impact of such costs on both ratepayers and shareholders, 

Gar Procurement Contracts, Certain of the Company’s long-term conaacts for the supply, storage and delivery of 
natural gas include fixed charges that amount to approximately $68.6 million annually. The Company currently 
recovers, and expects to continue to recover, such fwed charges through its purchased gas adjustment clauses. As a 
result of the forthcoming unbundling of natural gas services in New Jersey, these contracts may result in the reahtion 
of stranded costs by the Company. Management believes the outcome of these actions will not have a material adverse 
effect on the Company’s results. The Company also is committed to purchase, at market-related prices, minimum 
quantities of gas that, in the aggregate, are approximately 2.7 billion cubic feet (Bcf) per year or to pay certain costs in 
the event the minimum quantities are not taken. The Company expects that minhnum demand on its systems for the 
duration of these contmcts Will continue to exceed these miuimum purchase obligations. 

Other. The Company is involved in various claims and litigation incidental to its business. In the opinion of 
management, none of these claims and litigation will have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of 
operations or its financial condition. 
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12. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Dlata 

The quarterly financd data presented below reflects the seasonal nature of the Company's operations which normally 
results in higher earnings during the b:ating S-SQII, which is primarily in the fmt two fiscal quarters. (in thousands, 
except per share amounts): 

1999: 
Operahg Revenues 
Operating Income 
Net Incmne (Loss) 
Net Income (Loss) Per Share 

1998: 
Operating Revenues 
Operating Income (Loss) 
Net Income (Loss) 
Net Income (Loss) Per Share 

Fiscal 0 uarterg m Second Third 

$229,598 $254,562 $160,678 
12,416 22,556 6,575 
6,918 17,762 2,424 
0.5s 1.40 0.19 

$m,m $258,798 $169,004 
11,907 19,673 4,009 
7,42 1 15,063 (432) 
0.60 1.20 (0.03) 

Fourth 

$183,336 
1,936 

(2,544) 
(0.20) 

$164,296 
(4965 5)  
(9,738) 
(0.77) 

During the second quarter of fiscal 19!)9, the company recorded after-tax non-recurring income and other non-recurring 
items totaling $1.3 million ($2.1 million before income taxes), or $0.10 per share (see Note 3). 

During the third quarter of fiscal 199!3, the company recorded after-tax non-recurring income and other non-recuning 
items totdhg $ 1 . 1  million ($1.9 million before income taxes), or $0.08 per share (see Note 3). 

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 1998, the Company recorded after-tax restructuring and other non-recurring charges 
totaling $5.9 million ($9.7 million before income taxes), or $0.47 per share (see Note 3). 

Quarterly net income (loss) per share :in both fiscal 1999 and fiscal 1998 does not total to the annual amounts due to 
rounding and to changes in the average common shares outstanhg. 
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SCHEDULE I1 

Descriution 

1999 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 
Environmental remediation reserve 
Restrvcturing reserve 

1998 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 
Environmental remediation reserve 
Restructuring reserve 

1997 
Allowance for doubtful accounts 
Environmental remediation reserve 

NUI Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts 
For each of the Three Years in the 
Period Ended September 30,1999 

(Dohrs io thousands) 

a Recoveries 

bUncollectible amounts Written off. 

,Addition$ 
Balance, Charged to 

Beglnning Costs and 
of Period Exoenses 

$ 1,714 
$33,981 
$ 556 

$ 2,318 
$33,981 
$ 0  

$ 2,288 
$33,981 

$ 1,832 

149 
-- 

$ 2,942 

1,008 
*- 

$ 2,305 
** 

Other Deductions 

$ 224' $ 3,770b 

-- 452 
I- *- 

$ 1,088" $ 3,363b 
-- -- 

Balance, 
End of 
Perkd 

$ 1,697 
$33,981 
$ 0  

$ 1,714 
$33,881 
$ 556 
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EXHIBIT NO. 12 

NU:[ CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED RATIO OF EARNJNGS TO FIXED CHARGES 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Year Ended SeDtember 30. 

Income from continuing operations 
before income taxes 

Less: 
Adjuslment related to equity 

investments 

Add 
Interest element of rentals 

Interest expense 
charged to income (a) 

Earnings as defined 

Interest expense 
Capitalized interest 
Interest element of rentals charged 

to income (a) 
Fixed charges as defined 

Consolidated ratio of earnings to 
fixed charges 

199p 

$4 1,718 

(631) 

3,144 
2 1,836 

$66.067 

21,836 
83 

3.144 
$25,063 

2& 

rnea 
$2 1,024 

(402) 

3,239 
20.496 
$44.3S7 

20,496 
272 

3.239 
$24.007 

- 1.85 

$30,172 

(233 17) 

3,299 
21.374 

$52.528 

21,374 
186 

3.299 
$24.859 

u 

lm 
$23,040 

-- 

2,930 
19.808 

$45.782 

19,808 
150 

2.939 
%22,88H 

- 2.00 

- 1995 

$8,644 

_* 

3,220 
X!J!22 

$3 1.896 

19,814 
218 

3.220 
$23.252 

i31! 

(a) Includes the interest element of rentals where determinable plus 1/3 of rental expense where no readily defined 
interest element can be determined. 
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EXHIBIT NO. 21 

SUBSIDIARIES OF NU CORPOUTION 

NU Capital Corp. (a Florida Corporation) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of NLJI Corporation. 

NLJI Energy, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation), NLII Energy Broken, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation), Utdity 
Business Services, Inc. (a New Jersey Corporation), NLII Environmental Group, Inc. (a New Jersey Corporation), NUI 
Energy Solutions Inc. (a New Jersey Corporation), NUI Sales Management, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation), NUI 
International, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation) and International Telephone Group, Inc. (a New Jersey Corporation) are 
wholly-owned subsidiaries of NUI Capital Corp. 

NWCantrade International, L.E.C. (a Delaware Limited Liability Company) is a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
NU1 International, Inc. 



EXHEBIT NO. 23 

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

As independent public accountants, we! hereby consent to the incorporation by reference of o w  report dated November 
9, 1999, included in the Fom 10-K, into the Company’s previously filed Regislration Statements File No. 33-56509 
relating to Amendment No. 1 to Form S-3 Regiseation Statement, File No. 33-51459 relating to NUI Direct, File No. 
33-57183 relating to the Savings and Iriveshnent Plan, File No. 33-24169 relating to the 1988 Stock Plan, File No. 333- 
02425 relating to the 1996 Stock Option and Stock Award Plan, File No. 333-02421 relating to the Employee Stock 
Purchase Plan, File No. 333-02423 relating to the 1996 Director Stock Purchase Plan, and File No. 333-92817 relating 
to Form S-3 Registration Statement. 

A R m  ANDERSEN LLP 

New York, New Yo& 
December 20,1999 
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Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has 
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the 
Township of Bedminster, State of New Jersey, on the day of December 20,1999 

NUI COWORATION 

By: JAMES R VAN HORN 
Chief Admituskative Officer, 
General Counsel and S e a e m  

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the 
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 

JOHN KEAN, JR. 
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BERNARD S. LEE 

R. V. WHISNAND 
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President, Chief Executive Officer and 
Director (Principal executive oficer) 

Chairman and Director 

December 20 ,1999 

December 20,1999 

Senior Vice President, Chief Operating 
Officer and Chief Financd Officer (Principal 
financial and accounting officer) 

December 20,1999 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

Director 

December 20, I999 

December 20,1999 

December 20,1999 

December 20,1999 

December 20,1999 
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WASHINGTON, DC 20549 

FORM 10-Q 

(Mark One) 
J QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 

EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 

For the quarterly period ended December 31,1999 
OR 

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES 
EXCHANGE ACT O F  1934 
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Commission File Number 1-8353 

NU]: CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 
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(908) 781-0500 
(Registrant's telephone number, including area code) 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter 
period that the regismint was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing 
requirements for the past 90 days. Yes J No 

APPLICABLE ONLY TO CORPORATE ISSUERS: 

The number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant's classes of common stock, as of January 3 1 ,  
2000: Common Stock, No Par Value: 12,842,177 shares outstanding. 
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Operating Margins 
Operating revenues 
Less - Purchased gas and fuel 

Energy taxes 

FWI Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Income (Unaudited) 

(Dollars, in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Three Months Ended 
December 31, 

f999 1998 

Other Operating Expenses 
Operations and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Other taxes 

Pre-Tax Operating Income 

Other Income and Expense 
Equity in earnings (losses) of TIC Entqrises, LLC, net 
Other 

Interest Expense 

Net Income Before Income Taxes 

Income Taxes 

Net Income 

Net Income Per Share of Common Stock 

Dividends Fer Share of Common Stoclk 

Weighted Average Number of Shares 
of Common Stock Outstanding 

$233,692 $229,598 
175,010 174,92 1 
4.138 4.028 
54.544 50.649 

26,422 
7,613 
2.181 

36.214 

18,328 

227 
42 - 

269 

252l 

12,972 

5.335 

$ 7.637 

0.60 

$0.245 

24,422 
6,915 
1,973 

33.310 

17,339 

5,439 

11,809 

U U  
%055 
$ 0.245 

12.776.434 12.673.187 

. .. 
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NUI Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

@olhrs In thousands) 

December 31, 
I999 

{Unaudited) 

September 30, 
1999 
("1 

ASSETS 
UtIlity Plant 

Utility plant, at original cost 
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 
Unamortized plant acquisition adjustment:; 

$7 8 8,7 8 2 
(263,197) 
29.828 
555,413 

5779,13 1 
(256,848) 

30.242 
552.475 

Funds for Construction Held by Trustee 

Investment in TIC Enterprises, LLC, net 

36.661 

2 u 2  

37,413 

24,905 

Other Investments 1.385 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts of 

Fuel inventories, at average cost 
Unrecovered purchased gas costs 
Prepayments and other 

$1,823 and $I  ,697, respectively) 

3,192 1,561 

85,056 
28,573 

90 I 
AQJ.!2 

166,199 

110,514 
20,3 09 
10,846 
55.307 

200.168 

Other Assets 
Regulatory assets 
Deferred charges 

5 1,095 
14133 

51,G15 
10.234 

65,628 
$884,352 

61.849 
$844.226 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 
Capitallzatlon 

Common shareholders' equity 
Preferrd stock 
Long-term debt 

$245,083 

268.920 
5 14.003 

$237,3 I8 

268.9 1 1 
546.229 

Capital Lease Obligations 

Current Lisbllitim 
Notes payable to banks 
Current w o n  of capital lease obligations 
Accounts payable, customer deposits and accrued liabilities 
Federal income and other taxes 

2,864 2.599 

98,805 
7,559 

IOS,005 
13.263 
224.632 

73,615 
7,776 

108,023 
4.359 

193.773 

Deferred Credits and Other Llabillties 
Deferred Federal income taxes 
U n a m o r t i d  investment tax crcdits 
Environmental mediation rescrve 
Regulatory and other liabilities 

7 1,223 
5,136 

33,865 
32.h29 
142,853 

$884.352 

69,95 I 
5,25 1 

33,98 1 
32.442 

14 1.625 
$844.226 

*L)erived from auditedflnancial statemenis. 
See the notes IO the consolidutedjinancial statements. 
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NUI Corpormtion and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Mows (Unaudited) 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Three Months Ended 
December 3 1, 
- 1999 1998 

Operating Activities 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in 

operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred Federal income taxes 

Amortization of deferred investment tax credts 
Other 
Effect of changes in: 

Accounts receivable, net 
Fuel inventories 

Accounts payable, deposit4 and accruals 
(Under) over recovered purchasecl gas costs 
Other 

Net cash used in operating activities 

Financing Activities 
Proceeds from sales of common stock, nelt of treasury stock purchased 
Dividends to shareholders 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term deblt 
Funds for construction held by trustee, net 
Principal payments under capital lease obligations 
Net short-term borrowings 
Net cash provided by financing activities 

Investing Activities 
Cash expenhtures for utility plant 
Investment in lTG 
Other 
Net cash used in investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivaIents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
At beginning of period 
At end of period 

Supplemental Disclosures af Cash Flows 
Income taxes paid (refunds received), net 
Interest paid 

$7,637 

7,620 
1,272 

857 
(115) 

(24,l 
8,264 

(5,194) 
(9,945) 
3.389 

1.10.3 15) 

79 
(3,163) 

(595) 
1,196 

24.955 
22.472 

$1.631 

$1,561 
$3,192 

$6,9 18 

6,915 
1,272 

693 
(1 15) 

(53,226) 
6,324 

18,705 
943 

863 
10,708) 

105 
(3 3 106) 
40,000 

(35,881) 
(445) 

18.750 
19,423 

$929 
$1,079 

$(805) 
$5,994 

See the notes io the consolidatedfinanciol statements. 
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NUI Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Basis of Presentation 

The consolidated financial statements include all operating divisions and s u b s i h e s  of Nu1 Corporation (collectively 
referred to as the Company). The Company is a muIti-state energy sales, services and distribution, and 
telecommunications company. Its utllity operations &stribUte natural gas and related services in six states along the 
eastern seaboard and comprise Ehabethtown Gas (New Jersey), City Gas Company of FIorida, North Carolina Gas, 
Elkton Gas (Maryland), Valley clties Gas (Pennsylvania) and Waverly Gas (New York). The Company’s non- 
regulated subsidiaries include NU1 Energy, hc. (NU1 Energy), an energy retailer; NUI Energy Brokers, Inc. (NU1 
Energy Brokers), an energy wholesaler; NUI Energy SoIutions, Inc. (NU Energy Solutions), an energy project 
development and consulting entity; NUI Environmental Group, Inc., an environmental project development subsidiary; 
Utility Business Services, Inc. (UBS), a customer and geographic information systems and services subsidiary; and 
International Telephone Group, Inc. (ITC;), a telecommunications services subsidmy (see Note 3). The Company also 
provides sales outsourcing through its 4.9 percent equity interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC (TIC). All intercompany 
accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. 

The consolidated financd statements contained herein have been prepared without auht in accordance with the rules 
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and reflect all adjusments whch, in the opinion of 
management, are necessary for a fair statement of the results for interim periods. All adjustments made were of a 
normal recurring nature. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to &I: estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The 
consolidated financial statements should 1~ read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes 
thereto that are included in the Company’:; Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended September 30,1999. 

The Company is subject to regulation as an operating utility by the public utility commissions of the states in whch it 
operates. Because of the seasonal natum: of gas utility operations, the results for interim periods are not necessarily 
indicative of the results for an entire year. 

2. Common Shareholders’ Equity 

The components of common shareholders‘ equity were as foIlows (dollars in thousands): 

December 31, September 30, 
1999 1999 

Common stock, no par value 
Shares held in treasury 
Retained earnings 

$212,798 $209,984 

35,854 3 1,380 
(2,246) (2,311) 

Unearned employee compensation (1,323) (1,735) 
-uity $245,083 $237,3 - 18 
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3. Purchase of ITG 

On November 12, 1999, the Company closed on its acquisition of hternational Telephone Group, Inc. (ITG). The 
acquisition was treated as a merger whereby ITG merged with and into a subsidiary of the Company. The purchase 
price totaled $3.8 million and included the issuance of 113,200 shares of NUI common stock, with the remainder paid 
in cash. ITG is a 1 1 1  service telephone company that provides its customers with a single service solution for all their 
telecommunication requirements includmg local, long distance, cellular, internet, and data communications services. 
The Agreement and Plan of Merger contains a provision whereby the previous shareholders of ITG will receive an 
additional $1 .O million in NUI common stock if ITG achieves certain revenue targets no later than December 3 1,2003. 

The acquisition is being accounted for as a purchase. The excess of the purchase price over the net assets of ITG is 
estimated to be approximately $4.5 million, whch includes the additional earnings contingency noted above, and is 
expected to be amortized on a straight-Iine basis over a 20-year period. 

4. Contingencies 

Environmental Matters. The Company is subject to federal and state Iaws with respect to water, air quality, solid waste 
duposal and employee health mnd safety matters, and to environmental regulations issued by the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the New Jersey Deparment of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) and other 
federal and state agencies. 

Tbe Company owns, or previously owned, certain properties on which manufactured gas plants (MGP) were operated 
by the Company or by other parties in the past. In New Jersey, the Company has reported the presence of the six MGP 
sites to the EPA, the NJDEP and the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NJBPU). In 1991, the NJDEP issued an 
Administrative Consent Order for the MGP site located at South Street in Elizabeth, New Jersey, wherein the Company 
agreed to conduct a remehal investgation and to design and implement a remediation plan. In 1992 and 1993, the 
Company entered into a Memorandum of‘ Agreement with the NJDEP for each of the other five New Jersey MGP sites. 
h s u a n t  to the terms and conhtions of the Adrmrusttative Consent Order and the Memoranda of Agreement, the 
Company is conducting remedial activities at all six sites with oversight from the NJDEP. 

The Company also owns, or previously owned, 10 former MGP facilities located in the states of North Ca~olina, South 
Caroh,  Pennsylvania, New York and Maryland. The Company has joined with other North Carolina utilities to form 
the North C a r o h  Manufactured Gas PIant Group (the MGP Group). The MGP Group has entered into a 
Memorandum of Understandmg with the North C a r o h  Department of Environment, Health and Natural Resources 
(NCDEHNR) to develop a uniform program and framework for the investigation and remediation of MGP sites in 
North Carolina. The Memorandum of [Jnderstanding contemplates that the actual investigation and remediation of 
specific sites will be addressed pursuant to Administrative Consent orders between the NCDEHNR and the responsible 
parties. The NCDEHNR has sought the investigation and remediation of sites owned by members of the MGP Group 
and has entered into Admimkative Cansent Orders with respect to four such sites. None of these four sites are 
currently or were previously owned by thc Company. 

Based on the most recent assessment, th: Company has recorded a total reserve for environmental investigation and 
remediation costs of approximately $34 inillion, which is the minimum mount  that the Company expects to expend 
during the next 20 years. Of tlus reserve, approximately $30 million relates to the six New Jersey MGP sites and 
approximately $4 mdlioa relates to the 10 sites located outside New Jersey. However, the Company believes that it is 
possible that costs associated with conducting investigative activities and implementing remedial activities, if necessary, 
with respect to all of its MGP sites may exceed this reserve by an amount that could range up to an additional $24 
million and be incurred during a future period of time that may range up to 50 years. Of this additional $24 rniHion in 
possible future expenhtures, approximatdy $12 million relates to the New Jersey MGP sites and approximately $12 
million relates to the sites located outside New Jersey. As compared with the $34 million reserve currently recorded on 
the Company’s books as d~scussed above, the Company believes that it is less likely that this additional $24 rmllion will 
be incurred and therefore has not recorded it on its books. 

The Company’s prudently incurred remediation costs for the New Jersey MGP sites have been authorized by the 
NJBPU to be recoverable in rates. The most recent NJBPU base rate order permits the Company to utllize 1 1 1  deferred 
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accounting for expendtures related to its New Jersey sites and provides for the recovely of $130,000 annually. The 
Company is aIso able to recover MGP expenditures over a rolling seven-year period through its NJBPU approved MGP 
Remehation Adjustment Clause. As a result, the Company has begun rate recovery of approximately $5.5 million of 
environmental costs incurred through June 30, 1998. Recovery of an adMona1 $2.0 million in environmental costs 
incurred between July 1, 1998 and June 3 0, 1999 is currently pending NJBPU approval. AccordmgIy, the Company has 
recorded regulatory assets of approximateIy $36 million as of December 31, 1999, reflecting the future recovery of 
environmental remediation liabilities related to New Jersey MGP sites. The Company has also been successful in 
recovering a portion of MGP remediation costs incurred for the New Jersey sites from the Company’s insurance 
carriers and continues to pursue additional recovery. With respect to costs associated with the remaining MGP sites 
located outside New Jersey, the Company intends to pursue recovery from ratepayers, former owners and operators, 
and insurance carriers, although the Company is not able to express a belief as to whether any or all of these recovery 
efforts will be successful. The Company is working with the regulatory agencies to prudently manage its MGP costs so 
as to mitigate the impact of such costs on both ratepayers and shareholders. 

Gus Procurement Contracts. Certain of the Company’s long-term conbacts for the supply, storage and delivery of 
natural gas include fmed charges that amount to approximateIy $68 million annually. The Company currently recovers, 
and expects to continue to recover, such fmed charges through its purchased gas adjustment clauses. As a result of the 
forthcoming unbundling of natural gas se:rvices in New Jersey, these contracts may result in the realization of stranded 
costs by the Company. Management beheves the outcome of these actiom will not have a material adverse effect on 
the Cumpany’s results. The Company also is committed to purchase, at market-related prices, minimum quantities of 
gas that, in the aggregate, are approximately 2.6 billion cubic feet (Bcf) per year or to pay certain costs in the event the 
minimum quantities are not taken. The Company expects that minimum demand on its systems for the duration of these 
contracts will continue to exceed these minimum purchase obligations. 

other. The Company is involved in various claims and litigation incidental to its business. In the opinion of 
management, none of these claims and litigation will have a m a t e d  adverse effect on the Company’s results of 
operations or its f m c i a l  conhtion. 

5. Business Segment Information 

The Company’s operations are organized and managed by three prvnary segments: Distribution Services, Energy Sales 
and Services and Customer Services. l h  Distribution Services segment distributes natural gas in six states through the 
Company’s regulated utility &visions. The Energy Sales and Services segment reflects the operations of the 
Company’s NU1 Energy, NUI Energy Brokers and NLTl Energy Solutions subsidiaries, as well as off-system sales by 
the utility divisions. The Customer Senices segment provides appliance leasing, repair and maintenance, mapping 
services to utilities and payment proc,essing and collections pnmanly for water and waste-water usage, and 
telecommunications services. The Corripany also has corporate operations that do not generate any revenues OT 

operating margins. 
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The following table provides information concerning the major segments of the Company for three-month periods 
ended December 31, 1999 and 1998. Revenues include intersegment sales to affiliated entities, which are eliminated 
in consolidation. All of the Company’s operations are in the United States and therefore do not need separate 
disclosure by geographic region. 

Three Months Ended 
December 31, 

1998 (Dollars In thousaads) 

Revenues: 
Distribution Services 
Energy Sales and Services 
Customer Services 
Intersegment Revenues 

Total Revenues 

Pre-Tax Operating Income: 
Distribution Services 
Energy Sales and Services 
Customer Services 

Total Pre-Tax Operating Income 

$109,405 
128,997 
7,278 

$233.692 
rllgBSl 

$16,403 
1,398 
431 
$18 .2g  

$105,831 
124,312 
4,677 

(5,222) 
%22_s.59_8 

$16,844 
588 

155 
$17.587 

A reconciliation of the Company’s segment pre-tax operating income to amounts reported on the consolidated 
financial statements is as follows: 

Three Months Ended 
December 31, 

1999 1998 (Dollars In thousands) 

Segment Pre-Tax Operating Income 
Non-segment pre-tax operating income (loss) 
Re-Tax Operating Income 

$18,232 
96 

$18.328 

7 

$17,587 

$17.339 
(2481 



NUI Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Summary ConsoIidated Operating Data 

Operating Revenues (lllollars in thousands) 
Firm Sales: 

Residential 
commercial 
Industrial 

Interruptible Sales 
Unregulated Sales 
Transportation Services 
Customer Service, Appliance Leasing and Other 

Gas Sold or Transported (MMcQ 
Firm Sales: 

Residential 
Commercial 
industrial 

Intmuptible Sales 
Unregulated Sales 
Transporntion Services 

Average Utility Customers Served 
Firm Sales: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Interruptible Sales 
Transportation 

Degree Days in New Jersey 
Actual 
Normal 
Percentage variance from normal 

1999 

$57,2 1 1 
25,837 
2,3 63 

13,184 
1 18,867 
10,26 I 

$233 -692 

6,815 
3,489 

377 
3,591 

41,269 
8.449 
&u2! 

Three Months Ended 
December 31, 

leea 

$56,594 
25,768 

3,153 
10,797 

1 19,427 
9,458 
4,40 1 

$229.598 

6,254 
3,315 

632 
3,549 

48,177 
7.235 
69.162 

347,696 
23,519 

243 
47 

3.657 
375.162 

1,530 
1,829 

warmer 
16% 

342,553 
23,216 

277 
62 

3,418 
369,526 

1,466 
1,832 
20% 

Wall l lJ3 

Employees (period end) 1,060 1,056 
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N U  Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Management”s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 

and Results of Operations 

The following &scussion and analysis refers to NU1 Corporation and all of its operating &visions and subsidiaxies 
(collectively referred to as the Company). The Company is a multi-state energy sales, services and distribution, and 
telecommunications company. Its utility operations distribute natural gas and related services in six states along the 
eastern seaboard and comprise Ehzabetbtown Gas (New Jersey), City Gas Company of Florida, North C a r o h  Gas, 
Elkton Gas (Maryland), Valley Cities Gas (Pennsylvania) and Waverly Gas (New York). The Company’s non- 
regulated subsidwies include NU1 Energy, Inc. (NLn Energy), an energy retailer; NUI Energy Brokers, Inc. (NUI 
Energy Brokers), an energy wholesaler; NU1 Energy Solutions, Inc., an energy project development and consulting 
entity; NUI Environmental Group, Inc., an environmental project development subsidmy; Utility Business Services, 
Inc. (UBS), a customer and geographicnil information systems and services subsidmry; and International Telephone 
Group, Inc. (ITG), a telecommunications services subsidiary. The Company also provides sales outsourcing through its 
49 percent equity interest in TIC Enterprkes, LLC (TIC). 

Results of Operations 

Three-Month P e r i d  Ended December 3 I ,  1999 and 1998 

Net Income. Net income for the threemonth period ended December 3 1,1999 was $7.6 million, or $0.60 per share, as 
compared with net income ofM.9 million, or $0.55 per share, for the period ended December 31, 1998. The increase 
in the current period was prmady due to higher margins and other income, partially offset by higher operations and 
maintenance expenses, depreciation, and interest expenses. 

Operating Revenues and Operating Mnrgins. The Company‘s operating revenues include amounts billed for the cost 
of purchased gas pursuant to purchased gas adjustment clauses. Such clauses enable the Company to pass through to its 
customers, via peridic adjustments to customers’ bills, increased or decreased costs incurred by the Company for 
purchased gas without affecting operating margins. Since the Company’s utility operations do not e m  a profit on the 
sale of the gas commodity, the Company’s level of regulated opera- revenues is not necessarily indicative of 
financial performance. 

The Company’s opembng revenues increased by $4.1 rmlIion, or 2 percent, for the threemonth period ended 
December 3 1, 1999 as compared with thc three-month period ended December 3 1, 1998, The Company’s Distribution 
Services’ revenue increased by approximately $3.6 million, m a d y  due to customer growth and slightly colder weather 
a.s compared to last year. Weather in New Jersey was approximately 16 percent warmer than normal for the three- 
month period endug December 31, 1999, but was 4 percent colder compared to the prim year period. Customer 
Services’ revenue increased by approximately $1.1 million, net of intercompany transactions, m a d y  due to the recent 
acquisition of ITG (see Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements). These increases were p d l y  
offset by a decrease of approximately $0.6 million, net of intercompany trmactions, in Energy Sales and Services’ 
revenue, mainly due to a decrease in unregulated sales by NUI Energy Brokers. 

The Company‘s operating margins increaml by $3.9 million, or 8 percent for the three-month period ended December 
31, 1999 as compared with thc three-month period ended December 31, 1998. The increase was primarily attributable 
to an increase of approximately $1.4 million in the Company’s Distribution Services segment as a result of customer 
growth and slightly colder weather as ccimpared to last year. The Company has weather normalization clauses in its 
New Jersey and North Carolina tariffs, which are designed to help stabilize the Company’s results by increasing 
amounts charged to customers when weather has been warmer than n o m 1  and by decreasing amounts charged when 
weather has been colder than normal. As a result of weather normalization clauses, operating margins were 
approximately $2.1 million and $2.5 million higher in the ffical 2000 and 1999 periods, respectively, than they 
otherwise would have been without such clauses. Operating margins from the Company’s Energy Sales and Services 
segment increased by approximately $1.4 million due to favorable market conditions in the wholesale kading 
operations of the Company. Operating imgins increased in the Customer Services segment by approximately $1.1 
million, net of intercompany transactions, due to lllgher sales from UBS and the recent acquisition of lTG (see Note 3 
of the Notes to the Consolidated Financiil Statements). 
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Other Operating Expenses. Operaticins and maintenance expenses increased approximately $2.0 million, or 8 
percent, for the threemonth period ended December 31, 1999 as compared with the three-month period ended 
December 31, 1998. The increase was p ~ d y  the result of higher benefits costs, opera- expenses of ITG since its 
acquisition date (see Note 3 of the Notes; to the Consolidated Financial Statements), and higher materials and supplies 
expenses associated with the increased activity in the appliance service business. These increases were partially offset 
by decreases in rents and lease expense diue to a reduction in the costs of leased software. 

Depreciation and amortization increased approximately $0.7 million in the current period primarily due to additional 
p h t  in service. 

Other Income and Expense. Other income and expense increased approximately $0.2 million for the threemonth 
period ended December 3 1, 1999 as compared with the three-month period ended December 3 1, 1998. The increase 
reflects improved results from TIC of approximately $0.4 million as a result of higher revenues from TIC'S various 
sales programs. 

Regulatory Matters 

On April 30, 1999, the Company made a filing with the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NJBPU) whch will 
enable all customers in New Jersey to c:hoose an alternative supplier of natural gas. Thu f i h g  was a result of the 
"Electric Discount and Energy Competition Act" legislation, which was signed into law in New Jersey on February 
9, 1999. The legislation has several provisions that affect gas utilities. It provides all gas customers with the ability 
to choose an alternate natural gas supplier by December 31, 1999. At the same time, the utility will continue to 
provide basic gas service through December 2002 when the NJBPU will decide if the gas supply function should be 
made competitive. The NIBPU will also conduct proceedings to determine whether customers should be afforded 
the option of contracting with an alternative provider of billing, meter reading and other customer account services 
that may be deemed competitive by Dtxember 31, 2000. On January 19, 2000, the NJBPU approved a Phase I 
stipulation that enables all customers to choose an alternative supplier of natural gas while the utility continues to 
provide basic gas supply services. As part of the settlement, the Company has agreed to make a fding by February 
29,2000 to address additional issues raked in the April filing. 

Financing Activities and Resources 

The Company's net use of cash in operating activities was $ f 0.3 million and $10.7 million for the three-month periods 
ended December 3 1, 1999 and 1998, respectively. The change in the threemonth p o d  ended December 3 1 ,  1999 
was prtnanly due to an increase in unrecovered gas costs under the Company's purchased gas adjusnnent clause and 
the timing of payments to gas suppliers, partially offset by improved collections on receivables. 

Because the Company's business is h@ly seasonal, short-term debt is used to meet seasonal working capital 
requirements. The Company also borrows under its bank h e s  of creht to fmance portions of its capital expendmres, 
pendmg refinancing through the issuance of equity or long-term indebtedness at a later date, dependmg upon prevailing 
market conditions. 

Short-Tern Debt. The weighted average h l y  amounts outstanding of notes payable to banks a d  the weighted 
average interest rates on those amounts were $85.9 million at 6.07 percent for the three-month period ended December 
31, 1999 and $98.5 million at 5.73 percmt for the three-month period ended December 3 1, 1998. At December 3 1, 
1999, the Company had outstanding notes payable to banks mounting to $98.8 million and available unused lines of 
credit amounting to $37.4 rmllion. Notems payable to banks increased as of December 31, 1999 as compared to the 
balance outstandmg at September 30, 1999, due to seasonal borrowing requirements. 

Long-Term Debt and Funds for Construction Held by Trustee. On December 8, 1998, the Company issued $40 
d o n  of tax-exempt Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds at an interest rate of 5.25 percent. These bonds will mature in 
November 2033 and the proceeds will bc used to fmance a portion of the Company's capital expendmre program in 
New Jersey. 
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The Company deposits in trust the unexpended portion of the net proceeds from its Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds until 
drawn upon for eligible expenditures. As of December 3 1,1999, the total unexpended portions of all of the Company’s 
Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds were $30.8 million and are classified on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet, 
including interest eamd thereon, as funds for construction held by bustee. 

Common Stock. The Company periodically issues shares of common stock in connection with NLTI Direct, the 
Company’s dwidend reinvestment plan and certain employee benefit plans. Effective May 26, 1998, several of these 
plans commenced purchasing shares on the open market to fulfdl the plans’ requirements. Under the terms of these 
plans, the Company may periodically change the method of purchasing shares from open market purchases to 
purchases directly from the Company, or vice versa. The proceeds from such issuances were not sigmfkant in both the 
three-month periods ended December 3 1, 1999 and 1998 due to the plans purchasing shares drectly in the open market 
rather than from the Company. 

On November 12, 1999, the Company issued 1 13,200 shares of NUI common stock that was used for the purchase of 
ITG (see Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Dividends. The Company’s long-term dcbt agreements include, among other things, restrictions as to the payment of 
cash dividends. Under the most reshctive of these provisions, the Company is perrmtted to pay approximately $55.9 
million of cash dividends at December 3 1, 1999. 

Capital Expenditures and Commitments 

Capital expendtures, which consist primarily of expenditures to expand and upgrade the Company’s gas hstribution 
systems, were $10.5 million for the three-month period ended December 31, 1999 as compared to $8.4 million for the 
three-month period ended December 3 1, 1998. Capital expenditures are expected to be approximately $5 1.1 million for 
all of fiscal 2000, as compared with a total of $47.9 million in fiscal 1999. 

The Company owns or previously owned six former manufactured gas plant (MGP) sites in the state of New Jersey and 
ten former MGP sites in the states of Norlh Carolina, South Carolina, Pennsylvania, New York and Maryland. Based on 
the Company’s most recent assessment, the Company has recorded a total reserve for environmental investigation and 
remehation costs of approximately $34 million, which is the minimum amount that the Company expects it will 
expend in the next 20 years to remediate the Company’s MGP sites. Of this reserve, approximately $30 million relates 
to New Jersey MGP sites and approximalcly $4 million relates to the MGP sites located outside New Jersey. However, 
the Company believes that it is possible tlhat costs associated with conducting investigative activities and implementing 
remedial actions, if necessary, with respxt to all of its MGP sites may exceed this reserve by an amount that could 
range up to an additional $24 million and. be incurred during 3 future period of time that may range up to 50 years. Of 
this $24 million in possible adhtional expenditures, approximately $12 million relates to the New Jersey MGP sites and 
approximately $12 million relates to the remaining MGP sites. As compared with the $34 million reserve currently 
recorded on the Company’s books as hscussed above, the Company believes that it is less likely that this additional $24 
million will be incurred and therefore ha:; not recorded it on its books. The Company believes that all costs associated 
with the New Jersey MGP sites will be recoverable in rates or from insurance carriers. In New Jersey, the Company is 
currently recovering environmental costs on an annual basis though base rates and over a rolling seven-year period 
through its MGP Remediation Adjustmerit Clause. As a result, the Company has begun rate recovery of approximately 
$5.5 million of environmental costs incurred through June 30, 1998. Recovery of an adhtional $2.0 million in 
environmentd costs incmed between Jdy  I, 1998 and June 30, 1999 is currently pendmg NJBPU approval. With 
respect to costs that may be associated wirh the MGP sites located outside the state of New Jersey, the Company intends 
to pursue recovery h m  ratepayers, formtx ownefg and operators of the sites and from insurance carriers. However, the 
Company is not abie, at this time, to exprws a belief as to whether any or all of these recovery efforts will ultimately be 
successful. 

Certain of the Company’s long-term contracts for the supply, storage and delivery of natural gas include fixed charges 
that amount to approximately $68 million annually. The Company currently recovers, and expects to continue to 
recover, such ffied charges through its purchased gas adjustment clauses. As a result of the forthcoming unbundhg of 
natural gas services in New Jersey, these contracts may result in the realization of s h d e d  costs by the Company. 
Management believes the outcome of these actions will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results. 
The Company also is committed to purchase, at market-related prices, minimum quantities of gas that, in the aggregate, 
are approximately 2.6 billion cubic feet (Bcf) per year or to pay certain costs in the event the minimum quantities are 
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not taken. The Company expects that minimum demand on its systems for the duration of these contracts will continue 
to exceed these minimum purchase obligiations. 

The Company is scheduled to repay $20 :million of Medium-Tern Notes in August 2002. 

Market Risk Exposure 

The Company’s whoksale trading sub!ri&ary, NUI Energy Brokers, uses derivatives for multiple purposes: i) to 
hedge price commitments and minimize the risk of fluctuating gas prices, ii) to take advantage of market 
information and opportunities in the marketplace, and iii) to fulfill its trading strategies and, therefore, ensure 
favorable prices and margins. These derivative instruments include forwards, futures, options and swaps. 

The risk associated with uncovered derivative positions is closely monitored on a daily basis, and controlled in 
accordance with NU1 Energy Brokers’ Risk Management Policy. This policy has been approved by the Company’s 
Board of Directors and dctates policies and procedures for all trading activities. The policy defines both value-at- 
risk (VaR) and loss limits, and all tradm are required to read and follow this policy. At the end of each day, all 
tralng positions are marked-to-market ,and a VaR is calculated. This information, as well as the status of all limits, 
is hsseminated to senior management &Lily. 

NU1 Energy Brokers utilizes the variancelcovariance VaR methodology. Using a 95 percent confidence interval and 
a one day time horizon, as of December 3 1, 1999, NU1 Energy Brokers’ VaR was $202,000. 

Year 2000 

The Company had developed readmess plans to address the possible exposures related to the impact on its computer 
systems of the Year 2000. Since entering, the Year 2000, the Company has not experienced any major hsruptions to its 
business nor is it aware of any sigmficant Year 2000-related disruptions impacting its customers and suppliers. 

The Company will continue to monitor its criticaI systems for Year 2000-related issues that could arise anytime 
throughout the year, such as leap year or customer and vendor problems. Contingency plans, supplementing existing 
dsaster recovery and business c0ntinuit.y plans, have been developed as necessary for the Company’s own systems 
and its third-party relationships, in response to its assessments, remediation and testing activities and will be used as 
necessary for ongoing problems. The specific actions identified include measures such as manual workarounds, 
deployment of backup or secondary technologies, rearranging work schedules, and substitution of suppliers, as 
appropriate. The Company believes that due to its planning activities, the hkelhood of major consequences in the 
future due to the Year 2000 should be greatly reduced. 

The total estimated costs incurred associated with Year 2000 readiness activities are approximately $3.5 million, a 
majority of wluch were incurred prior to the current fiscal year. Approximately SO percent of these costs were 
related to capital projects. The Compmy has, and where necessary will continue to, fund these costs from the 
operations of the Company. 

Forward-Looking Staternen ts 

This document contains forward-lookmg statements within the meaning of Section 2 1E of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended. The Company cautions that, while it believes such statements to be reasonable and are 
made in good faith, such forward-looking statements almost always vary from actual results, and the differences 
between assumptions made in making such statements and actual resuIts can be material, depending upon the 
circumstances. Factors, wluch may make the actual results differ from anticipated results include, but are not 
limited to, economic conditions; unforeseen competition; weather conditions; fluctuations in the price of natural gas 
and other forms of energy; the outcome of certain assumptions made in regard to Year 2000 issues; and other 
uncertainties, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond the control of the Company. 
Accordingly, investors should not rely upon these forward-Ioolung statements in makmg investment decisions. 
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PART II - OTRER INFORMATION 

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 

(a) Exhibits. 

Exhibit 
No. Description of Exhibit 

27 Financial Data Schedule 

(b) Reports on Form 8-K 

Reference 

Filed herewith 

None 
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SIGNATURES 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this 
report to be signed on its behalf by the uridersigned thmeunto duly authorized. 

NUI CORPORATION 

February 1 1,2000 

February 11 ,2000 

JOHN =AN, JR. 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

A. MARK ABRAMOVIC 
Sr. Vice President, Chief Operating Officer 62 
Chief Financial Officer 
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NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Income (Unaudited) 

(Dollars, in thousands, except per share amounts) 

Three Months 
Ended 

March 31 
aOOO - 1999 

Six Months 
Ended 

March 31 
- 2000 1999 

Operating Margins 
Operating revenues 
Less - Purchased gas and fuel 

Energy taxes 

$279,908 
201,422 

5.086 
73.400 

$254,562 $513,600 $484,160 
180,008 376,432 354,929 

5,485 9.224 9.523 
69.059 127.944 1 19.708 

Other Operating Expenses 
Operations and maintenance 
Depreciation and amortization 
Restructuring and other non-recurring items 
Other taxes 
Income taxes 

54,698 
14,930 

28,276 
7,317 

2,648 
12.291 
50.532 

26,704 
6,869 

2,7 13 
12.33 1 
46.503 

(291 14) 

51,126 
13,784 
(291 141 
4,686 
17.254 
84.736 

4,829 
17.532 
91.989 

Operating Income 22,868 22,556 35,955 34,972 

Other Income and Expense, Net 
Equity in earnings of TIC Enterprises, LLC, net 
Other 
Income taxes 

387 
125) 

(1 27) 
235 

413 
42 

11591 
296 

614 
17 

410 
(2211 

256 
109 

(1281 
237 

10.529 Interest Expense 5.386 5.090 11.01 1 

Net Income $17.712 $17.762 $25.354 $24,680 

Net Income Per Share of Common Stock $1.37 $1.40 $1.97 

Dividends Per Share of Common Stlock $0.242 $0.49 

Weighted Average Number of Sharts 
of Common Stock Outstanding 12.946.392 12.719.055 j2.891.259 12,695.869 

See the notes io the consolidated jnancial sfaiemerus. 
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NU1 Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

(DoHars in thousands) 

March 31, 
2000 

(Unaudited) 

September 30, 
I999 
(*I 

ASSETS 
Utility Plant 

Utility plant, at original cost 
Accumulated depreciation and amortizaticin 
Unamortized plant acquisition adjustments 

$800,969 
(27 I ,436) 
30.012 
22xA2 

32.173 

$778,13 I 
(256,888) 

30.242 
552.475 

37.413 Funds for Construction Held by Trustee 

Investment In TIC Enterprises, LLC, net 25.530 24,905 

Other Investments 1,312 1,385 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtful accounts of 

Fuel inventories, at average cost 
Unrecovered purchased gas costs 
Prepayments and other 

$1,823 and $1,697, respectively) 

3,144 1,561 

85,056 
28,573 

90 I 
LZ!&!l 

166,199 

122,240 
7,271 

54.322 
186.977 

Other Assets 
Regulatory assets 
Deferred charges 

S0,47 1 51,615 
10.234 

61.849 
$844.226 

14.640 
65.1 11 

$870.641 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 
Capltallzatlon 
Common shareholders’ equity 
Preferred stock 
Long-term debt 

$260,374 

268.929 
22uiL?L 

$237,3 18 

268.91 1 
506.229 

2.599 Capital Lease Obllgatioos 2.972 

Current Liabllltles 
Notes payable to banks 
Current portion of capital lease obligations; 
Accounts payable, customer deposits and rtccrued liabilities 
Overrecovered purchased gas costs 
Federal income and other taxes 

73,615 
7,776 

108,023 

Ax& 
L&iZ 

49,245 
7,392 

107,807 
9,049 

20.361 
193 354 

Deferred Credlts and Otber Llabllltles 
Deferred Federal income taxes 
Unamortized investment tax credits 
Environmental remediation reserve 
Regulatory and other liabilities 

72,496 
5,021 

33,798 

69,95 1 
5 3  1 

33,9s 1 
3 2.442 

14 1 -625 
9844.222 

33.204 
144.519 

$870.648 

*Ihivedfrom auditedjinancial statements. 
See ihe notes to the consolidatedJnancia1 statements. 
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NUI Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Unaudited) 

(Dollars in thousands) 

Six Months Ended 
March 31, rn 1999 

Operating Activities 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in 

opera- activities: 
Depreciation and amortization 
Deferred Federal income taxes 
Non-cash portion of restructuring 2nd other nowecurring items 
Amortization of deferred investment tax credits 
Ohm 
Effect of changes in: 

-Accounts receivable, net 
Fuel inventories 
Accounts payable, deposits and accruals 
Overrecovered purchased gas costs 
Other 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Financing Activities 
Proceeds fiom sales of common stock, net of treasury stock purchased 
Dividends to shareholders 
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 
Funds for construction held by trustee, net 
Principal payments under capital lease obligations 
Net short-term borrowings 
Net cash used in financing activities 

Investing Activities 
Cash expenditures for utility plant 
hvestment in NU1 Telecom 
Other 
Net cash used in investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
At beginning of p d c d  
At end of period 

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flows 
Income taxes paid, net 
Interest paid 

$25,354 

15,653 
2,545 

(230) 
(439) 

(35,826) 
21,302 
(2,392) 
9,9SO 

1 1.068 
46.985 

2,47 1 
(6,331) 

( 1,223) 
6,297 

124.605) 
J23.391) 

(20,5 1 1) 
(730) 

1770') 
122.01 11 

&u&l 

$1,561 
$3,144 

$613 
$1 f ,742 

$24,680 

14,190 
2,545 

(2J 14) 
(230) 

1,151 

(50,347) 
25,657 
9,941 

25,874 
6,761 

58.108 

155 
(652 1 7) 
39,795 

(33,8 10) 
(904 

L36.9851 
(37.964) 

(16,759) 

( 1.9791 
(1 8.738) 

$1.406 

$929 
$2,335 

$4,118 
$10,639 

See the notes IO the consolidatedjinanciaI statements. 
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NUI Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Notes to the Consolidated Financid Statements 

1. Basis of Presentation 

The consolidated fmancial statements include all operating &visions and subsidmies of NUI Corporation (collectively 
referred to as the Company). The Company is a multi-state energy sales, services and kstribution, and 
telecommunications company. Its utilitj operations distribute natural gas and rehted services in six states along the 
eastern seaboard and comprise ElizaMitown Gas (New Jersey), City Gas Company of Florida, North Carolina Gas, 
Elkton Gas (Maryland), Valley Cities Gas (PennsyIvania) and Waverly Gas (New York). The Company’s non- 
regulated subsidiaries include NLTI Energy, Inc. (NU1 Energy), an energy retailer; NU1 Energy Brokers, Inc. (NUI 
Energy Brokers), an energy wholesaler; NLTI Energy Solutions, Inc. (NVI Energy Solutions), an energy project 
development and consulting entity; NUI Environmentd Group, hc., an environmental project development subsidiary; 
Utdity Business Services, Inc., a custoiner and geographic information systems and services subsidmy; and NU1 
Telecom, Inc., a telecommunications services subsidiary (see Note 3). The Company also provides sales outsourcing 
through its 49 percent equity interest in ’IIC Enterprises, LLC. AI1 intercompany accounts and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. 

The consolidated financial statements contained herein have been prepared without audit in accordance with the rules 
and regulations of the Securities and E:xchange Commission and reflect all adjustments which, in the opinion of 
managemen< are necessary for a fair statement of the results for interim periods. All adjustments made were of a 
normal recurring nature. The preparation of fmancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to m a k e  estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosure of contingent w e t s  and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses durirtg the repomng period. Actual results could d~ffer from those estimates. The 
consolidated financd statements should he read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes 
thereto that are included in the Company‘s Annual Report on Form 10-R for the fmal year ended September 30, 1999. 

The Company is subject to regulation as an operating utdity by the public utility commissions of the states in which it 
operates. Because of the seasonal nahre  of gas utility operations, the results for interim periods are not necessarily 
indicative of the results for an entire year. 

2. Common Shareholders’ Equity 

The components of common shareholders’ equity were as follows (dollars in thousands): 

March 31, September 30, 
2000 1999 

Common stock, no par value 
Shares held in treasury 
Retained earnings 

$215,190 

50,403 
(2,246) 

$209,984 

31,380 
(2,311) 

Uneamd employee compensation ( 2,9 7 3 1 (1,735 j 
Total common shareholders’ equity $260,374 %237,3 18 
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3. Purchase of NU1 Telecom 

On November 12, 1999, the Company closed on its acquisition of Enternational Telephone Group, Inc. (ITG). The 
acquisition was treated as a merger whmby ITG merged with and into a subsidmy of the Company. ITG subsequently 
changed its name to NUI Telecom, Inc. The purchase price totaled $3.8 million and induded the issuance of 1 13,200 
shares of NUI common stock, with the remainder paid in cash. NU1 Telecom is a full service telephone company that 
provides its customers with a single service solution for all their telecommunication requirements including local, long 
&stance, cellular, internet, and data communications services. The Agreement and Plan of Merger contains a provision 
whereby the previous shareholders of NUI Telecom will receive an additional $1.0 million in NUI common stock if 
NUI Telecom achieves certain revenue targets no later than December 3 1,2003. 

The acquisition is being accounted for as a purchase. The excess of the purchase price over the net assets of NU1 
Telecom is estimated to be approximaidy $4.5 million, which includes the additional earnings contingency noted 
above, and is expected to be amortized on a straight-line basis over a 20-year period. 

4. Restructuring and Other Non-Recurring Items 

The Company recognized approximately $2.1 million of pre-tax, non-recurring items in the second quarter of fiscal 
1999 relating primarily to the recognition of a settlement gain on the Company's 1998 early retirement program, 
partially offset by a special terrnination charge on the 1999 New Jersey bargaining unit early retirement program, the 
write-off of certain non-recoverable regulatory assets, and other charges deemed to be separate from recurring 
operations. 

In June 1998, the Company offered an early retirement program to its nun-bargaining unit personnel. The program was 
accepted by 74 of the eligible 77 employees. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounmg Standards No. 88, 
"Employers' Accounting for Settlemenis and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and for Termination 
Benefits" (SFAS 881, the Company recorded a special termination charge during fiscal 1998 when the cost was 
recopable.  In March 1999, the Company recorded a settlement gain of approximately $6.8 million as the result of 
satisfaction of all future liabilities associated with these employees. 

In January 1999, the Company offered EUI early retirement program to its bargaining unit employees in New Jersey. 
The program was accepted by 32 of the eligible 35 employees. In accordance with SFAS 88, the Company recorded a 
special termination charge of approhi te ly  $2.0 million associated with these retirements in the second quarter of 
fiscal 1999. 

The Company also recorded approximately $1.1 million of charges, in the second quarter of fiscal 1999, relating to the 
writeoff of certain regulatory assets which will not be recovered through rates, as well as other items which were 
deemed to be separate from recurring earnings. 

5. Contingencies 

Environmental Matters. The Company is subject to federal and state laws with respect to water, air quality, solid waste 
disposal and employee health and safety matters, and to environmental regulations issued by the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (NJDEP) and other 
federal and state agencies. 

The Company owns, or previously owned, certain properties on which manufactured gas plants (MGP) were operated 
by the Company or by other parties in the past. In New Jersey, the Company has reported the presence of the six MGP 
sites to the EPA, the NJDEP and the Nr:w Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NJBPU). In 1991, the NJDEP issued an 
Admmishtive Consent order for the MCiP site located at South Street in Efizabeth, New Jersey, wherein the Company 
agreed to conduct a remedial investigation and to design and impfement a remediation plan. In 1992 and 1993, the 
Company entered into a Memorandum oPAgreement with the NJDEP for each of the other five New Jersey MGP sites. 
Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the A h s m t i v e  Consent Order and the Memoranda of Agreement, the 
Company is conducting remedial activitieis at all six sites with oversight from the NJDEP. 
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The Company also owns, or previously cnvned, 10 former MGP facilities located in the states of North Carolina, South 
Carolina, Pennsylvania, New York and Maryland. The Company has joined with other North Carolina utilities to form 
the North C a r o h  Manufactured Gai Plant Group (the MGP Group). The MGP Group has entered into a 
Memorandum of Understanding with th: North Carolma D e p m e n t  of Environment, Health and Natural Resources 
(NCDEHNR) to develop a uniform program and framework for the investigation and remediation of MGP sites in 
North Carolina. The Memorandum of IJnderstanding contemplates that the actual investigation and remediation of 
specific sites will be addressed pursuant to Adrmniskative Consent Orders between the NCDEHNR and the responsible 
parties. The NCDEHNR has sought the /investigation and remedution of sites owned by members of the MGF Group 
and has entered into Adminiskative Consent Orders with respect to four such sites. None of these four sites are 
currently or were previously owned by the Company. 

Based on the most recent assessment, the Company has recorded a total reserve for environmental investigation and 
remediation costs of approximately $34 milLon, which is the minimum amount that the Company expects to expend 
during the next 20 years. Of tbss reserve, approximately $30 million relates to the six New Jersey MGP sites and 
approximately $4 million relates to the 10 sites locakd outside New Jersey. However, the Company believes that it is 
possible that costs associated with conducting investigative activities and implementing remedial activities, if necessary, 
with respect to all of its MGP sites may exceed this reserve by an amount that could range up to an adhtional $24 
million and be incurred during a future period of time that may range up to 50 years. Of this additional $24 million in 
possible future expenditures, approximakly $12 million relates to the New Jersey MGP sites and approximately $12 
million relates to the sites located outside New Jersey. As compared with the $34 million reserve currently recorded on 
the Company's books as hscussed above, the Company believes that it is Iess likely that th~s additional $24 million will 
be incurred and therefore has not recorded it on its books. 

The Company's prudently incurred remehation costs for the New Jersey MGP sites have been authorized by the 
NJBPU to be recoverable in rates. The most recent NJBPU base rate ordm permits the Company to utilize full deferred 
accounting for expendmres related to it3 New Jersey sites and provides for the recovery of $130,000 annually. The 
Company is also able to recover MGP exlpendihlres over a rolling seven-year period through its NJBPU approved MGP 
Remediation Adjustment Clause. As a result, the Company has begun rate recovery of approximately $5.5 million of 
environmental costs incurred through June 30, 1998. Recovery of an adhtional $2.0 million in environmental costs 
incurred between July 1,1998 and June 30, 1999 is currently pendmg NJBPU approval. Accordmgly, the Company has 
recorded regulatory assets of approximately $35 million as of March 31, 2000, reflecting the future recovery of 
environmental remediation liabilities rehted to New Jersey MGP sites. The Company has also been successful in 
recovering a portion of MGP remediation costs incurred for the New Jersey sites from the Company's insurance 
carriers and continues to pursue adhtiord recovery. With respect to costs associated with the remaining MGP sites 
located outside New Jersey, the Company intends to pursue recovery from ratepayers, former owners and operators, 
and insurance carriers, although the Company is not able to express a belief as to whether any or all of these recovery 
efforts will be successful. The Company is working with the regulatory agencies to prudently manage its MGP costs so 
as to mitigate the impact of such costs on both ratepayers and shareholders. 

GRS Procurement Contracts. Certain of the Company's long-term contracts for the supply, storage and delivery of 
natural gas include fmed charges that amount to approximately $68 million annually. The Company currently recovers, 
and expects to continue to recover, such fmed charges through its purchased gas adjusment clauses. As a result of the 
forthcoming unbundling of natural gas services in New Jersey, these contracts may result in the reahation of stranded 
costs by the Company. Management believes the outcome of these actions will not have a material adverse effect on 
the Company's results. The Company also is committed to purchase, at market-related prices, minimum quantities of 
gas thae in the aggregate, are approximately 2.6 billion cubic feet (Bcf) per year or to pay certain costs in the event the 
minimUm quantities are not taken. The Crmpany expects that mhhm demand on its systems for the duration of these 
contracts will conhue to exceed these minimum purchase obligations. 

Other. The Company is involved in various clams and litigation incidental to its business. In the opinion of 
management, none of these claims and litigation wilI have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of 
opaations or its fmancial condition. 
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6. Business Segment Information 

me Company’s operations are organized and managed by three p m w y  segments: Distribution Services, Energy Sales 
and Services and Customer Services. The Distribution Services segment distributes natural gas in six states through the 
Company’s regulated utllity divisions. The Energy Sales and Services segment reflects the operations of the 
Company’s NUI Energy, NUl Energy Brokers and NUI Energy Solutions subsidiaries, as well as off-system sales by 
the utdity divisions. The Customer Serrices segment provides appliance leasing, repair and maintenance, mapping 
services to utilities and payment processing and collections primarily for water and waste-water usage, and 
telecommunications services. The Connpany also has corporate operations that do not generate any revenues or 
operating margins. 

The following table provides information concerning the major segments of the Company for the three and six- 
month periods ended March 3 I ,  2000 arid 1999. Revenues include intersegment sales to affiliated entities, which are 
eliminated in consolidation. All of the Company’s operations are in the United States and therefore do not need 
s q m a t e  disclosure by geographc region. 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
March 31, March 31, m 1999 2ooo 1999 (Dollars In thousands) 

Revenues: 
Distribution Services 
Energy Sales and Services 
Customer Services 
Intersegment Revenues 

Total Revenues 

Pre-Tax Operating Income (LIOSS): 
Distribution Services 
Energy Sales and Services 
Customer Services 

Total Pre-Tax Operating Incomt: (Loss) 

$153,991 
134,077 
7,893 

$279.908 
_(16.0531 

$33,736 
2,263 
(1461 

ULia 

$147,078 $263,396 
112,998 263,074 
3,299 15,171 
(8.8 131 (28.04 1) 

$254.562 $5 13,600 

$32,726 $50,139 
3,151 3,66 1 
Am9285 
- $ 5 4 . 0 8 5  

$252,909 
237,3 10 

7,976 
(14.035) 

$484.160 

$49,570 
3,739 

(7241 
$52.585 

A reconcihtion of the Company’s segment pre-tax operating income to amounts reported on the consolidated 
financial statements is as follows: 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

(Dollars In thousands) 2ooo 1999 2ooo m 
March 31, March 31, 

Segment Pre-Tax Operating Iiicome 
Non-segment pre-tax operating :loss 
Pre-Tax Operating Income 

$35,853 
(6941 
$35.159 

$34,998 $54,085 $52,585 

$32.773 &5J&Q $50.112 
(2.225) (5981 (2,473) 
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NUI Corporatlon and Subsidiaries 
Siirnmary ConsoIidated Operaff ng Data 

Operating Revenues (Dollars In thousandls) 
Firm Sales: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Interruptible Sales 
Unregulated Sales 
Transportation Services 
Customer Service, Appliance Leasing and Other 

Gas Sold or Transported (MMcf) 
Firm Sales: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Indusbial 

Interruptible Sales 
Unregulated Sales 
Transportation Services 

Average Utility Customers Served 
Firm Sales: 

Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 

Interruptible Sales 
Transportation 

Degree Days in New Jersey 
Actual 
N o m 1  
Percentage variance from normal 

Employe= (period end) 

Three Months Ended 
March 31, rn 

$88,830 
35,062 
3,178 
13,434 
119,948 
13,136 
6.320 
$279.908 

10,737 
4,606 
43 8 

3,773 
39,088 
11.857 
70.499 

$84,861 
34,418 
2,670 
11,712 

11,381 

$254.562 

104321 

4.699 

Six Months Ended 
March 31, rn 1999 

$146,041 
60,899 

5,542 
26,618 
238,s 15 
23,397 

12389 
$5 13,600 

10,246 17,552 
4,653 8,095 
42 1 815 

4,2 16 7,364 
48,235 80,357 
4.1942n.3Q6 
76.965 134,489 

349,904 345,043 348,800 
23,953 23,502 23,736 

24 1 269 242 
45 62 46 

3.631 3.538 3.644 
uU372.414awB 

2,398 
2,748 
13% 

warmer 

2,417 3,928 
2,745 4,578 
12% 14% 

warmer warmer 

1,077 

$14 1,455 
60,186 
5,823 
22,509 
224,248 

20,839 
9.100 

$484. I60 

16,500 
7,968 
1,053 
7,765 
96,412 
1s..429 
146.127 

343,798 
23,359 

273 
62 

3,478 
U L U  

3,883 
4,577 
15% 

wanner 

1,051 
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N U  Corporation and Subsidiaries 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 

and Results of Operations 

The following dwussion and analysis refers to NU1 Corporation and all of its operabng divisions and subsidiaries 
(collectively referred to as the Company). The Company is a multi-state energy sales, services and &stribution, and 
telecommunications company. Its utihty operations distribute natural gas and related services in six states along the 
eastem seaboard and comprise Elizabethtown Gas (New Jersey), City Gas Company of Florida, North Caroh Gas, 
EIkton Gas (Maryland), Valley Cities Gas (Pennsylvania) and Waverly Gas (New Yorkj. The Company’s non- 
regulated subsidiaries include NUI EneIgy, Inc. (?KJI Energy), an energy retailer; NU1 Energy Brokers, Inc. (NU1 
Energy Brokers), an energy wholesaler; NU1 Energy Solutions, Inc., an energy project development and consulting 
entity; NUI Environmental Group, Inc., an environmental project development subsidiary; Utility Business Services, 
hc. (UBS), a customer and ge0graphlc.d information systems and services subsidmy; and NU1 Telecom, hc., a 
telecommunications services subsidiary. The Company also provides sales outsourcing through its 49 percent equity 
interest in TIC Enterprises, LLC (TIC). 

Rmults of Operations 

Thr-ee-Mottth Periods Ended March 31,1000 and 1999 

Net Income. Net income for the three-nionth period ended March 3 1,2000 was $17.7 million, or $1.37 per shsue, as 
compared with net income of $17.8 million, or $1.40 per share, for the period ended March 3 1, 1999. Net income in the 
prior period was affected by non-recurring items, whch contributed $1.3 million, or $0.10 per share. These items were 
primarily associated with the Company’s early retirement programs (see Note 4 of the Notes to the Consolidated 
Financia1 Statements). Absent these non-recurring items, net income would have been $16.5 million, or $1.30 per 
share. The increase in recurring earnings in the current period was attributable to hgher margins, partially offset by 
higher operations and maintenance expenses, interest, depreciation and amortization, and other income. 

Net income per share in the current perid was also affected by the increased number of outstandtng shares of common 
stock over the prior year period, primarily related to the purchase of NU1 Telecom (see Note 3 of the Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Operating Revenues and Operating M:argins. The Company’s operating revenues include amounts billed for the cost 
of purchased gas pursuant to purchased gas adjustment clauses. Such clauses enable the Company to pass through to Its 
customers, via periodic adjustments to tmstomers’ bills, increased or decreased costs incurred by the Company for 
purchased gas without affecting operating margins. Since the Company’s utility operations do not e m  a profit on the 
sale of the gas commodity, the Company’s level of regulated operating revenues is not necessarily indicative of 
financial performance. 

The Company’s operating revenues increased by $25.3 million, or 10 percent, for the three-month period ended March 
3 1, 2000 as compared with the three-month period ended March 3 1, 1999. The Company’s Distribution Services’ 
revenue increased by approximately $6.9 million, mainly due to customer growth. Weather in New Jersey was 
approximately 13 percent warmer than normal for the three-month period endmg March 3 1, 2000 and was 1 percent 
warmer compared to the prior year periodi. Customer Services’ revenue increased by approximately $3.1 million, net of 
intercompany transactions, mainly due i;o the recent acquisition of NU1 Telecom (see Note 3 of the Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements). Energy Sales and Services’ revenue increased by approximately $15.3 million, net 
of intercompany transactions, mainly due to an increase in unregulated off-system sales by the Company’s utility 
&visions. 

The Company’s operating margins increased by $4.3 million, or 6 percent, for the three-month period ended March 3 1, 
2000 as compared with the three-month period ended March 31, 1999. The increase was primarily attributable to an 
increase of approximately $1.8 million in the Company’s Distribution Services segment as a result of customer growth. 
The Company has weather normalizatioxi clauses in its New Jersey and North Carolina tariff, which are designed to 
help stabilize the Company’s results by increasing amounts charged to customers when weather has been warmer than 
normal and by decreasing amounts charged when weather has been colder than normal. As a result of weather 
normalization clauses, operating margins were approximately $2.7 million and $2.5 million higher in the fiscal 2000 
and 1999 periods, respectively, than they otherwise would have been without such clauses. Operating margins from 
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the Company’s Energy Sales and Services segment decreased by approximately $0.6 miliion due to slightly 
unfavorable market condtions in the wholesale trading operations of the Company. Operating margins increased in the 
Customer Services segment by approximately $3.1 rmllion, net of intercompany transactions, due to lugher sales from 
UBS and the recent acquisition of NU1 T,clecom (see Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Other Operating Expenses. Operaticlns and maintenance expenses increased approximately $1.6 million, or 6 
percent, for the threemonth period ende,d March 3 1,2000 as compared with the three-month period ended March 3 1, 
1999. The increase was primarily the rermlt of operating expenses of NUI Telecom since its acquisition date (see Note 
3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financia1 Statements). Absent the addition of expenses from Ncn Telecom, 
operations and maintenance expenses would have been flat compared to the prior period. 

Sir-Month Periods Ended March 3 I ,  2000 and 1999 

Net Income. Net income for the six-month period ended March 31, 2000 was $25.4 million, or $1.97 per share, as 
compared with net income of $24.7 milhion, or $1.94 per share, for the period ended March 3 1, 1999. The increase in 
the current period was primarily due to lugher margins and other income, partially offset by lugher operations and 
maintenance expenses, depreciation, interest expenses and the effect of non-recurring items, in the prior period, which 
couf141uted $1.3 million, or $0.10 per share to net income. These non-recurring items were primarily associated with 
the Company’s early retirement programs (see Note 4 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements). Absent 
these non-recurring items, net income would have been $23.4 million, or $1 .&4 per share. 

Net income per share in the current perio,d was also affected by the increased number of outstanding shares of common 
stock over the prior year period, prirnariIy related to the purchase of NU1 Telecom (see Note 3 of the Notes to the 
Consolidated F h c i a l  Statements). 

Operating Revenues and Operating Margins. The Company’s operating revenues increased by $29.4 milIion, or 6 
percent, for the six-month period ended h k c h  3 1,2000 as compared with the six-month period ended March 3 1,1999. 
The Company’s Distribution Senices’ revenue increased by approximately $10.5 million, mainly due to customer 
growth. Customer Services’ revenue increased by approximately $4.2 million, net of intercompany transactions, 
mainly due to the recent acquisition of NUI Tekcom (see Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements). Energy Sales and Services’ revenue increased by approximately $14.7 million, net of intercompany 
transactions, mainly due to an increase in unregulated off-system sales by the Company’s utility divisions. 

The Company’s operating margins increased by $8.2 million, or 7 percent, for the six-month period ended March 3 1, 
2000 as compared with the six-month period ended March 3 1, 1999. The increase was primarily attributable to an 
increase of approximately $3.2 mrllion in the Company’s Distribution Services segment as a result of customer growth. 
As a result of weather normalization clrmses, operating margins were approximately $4.9 million and $5.0 million 
higher in the fiscal 2000 and 1999 periods, respectively, than they othemise would have been without such clauses. 
Operating margins from the Company’s Energy Sales and Services segment increased by approximately $0.8 million. 
Operating margins increased in the Cuslorner Services segment by approximately $4.2 million, net of intercompany 
transactions, due to lugher sales from UElS and the recent acquisition of NUI Telecom (see Note 3 of the Notes to the 
Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Other Operating Expenses. Operations and maintenance expenses increased approximately $3.6 million, or 7 
percent, for the six-month period ended March 3 1,2000 as compared with the six-month period ended March 3 1,1999. 
The increase was primarily the result of operating expenses of NUI Telecom since its acquisition date (see Note 3 of the 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements), higher bad debt expense due to the increase in operating revenues, and 
hgher materials and supplies expenses associated with the increased activity in the appliance service business. These 
increases were partially offset by decreasi:s in the costs of telephone and computer systems. 

Depreciation and amortization increased approximately $1.1 million in the current period primarily due to additional 
plant in service. 

Regutatory Matters 

On April 30, 1999, the Company made a filing with the New Jersey Board of Public Utilities (NJBPU) which will 
enable all customers in New Jersey to choose an alternative supplier of natural gas. This filing was in accordance 
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with the “Electric Discount and Energy Competition Act“ legislation, which was signed into law in New Jersey on 
February 9, 1999. The legislation has several provisions that affect gas utdities. It provides all gas customers with 
the ability to choose an alternate natural gas supplier. At the same time, the utility will continue to provide basic gas 
service through December 2002 when the NJBPU will decide if the gas supply function should be made 
competitive. In accordance with the legislation and with a NJBPU order dated March 2, 2000, the Company filed 
testimony on March 17, 2000 in a proceeding to determine whether customers should be afforded the option of 
contracting with an alternative provider of billing, meter reading and other customer account services that m a y  be 
deemed competitive by December 3 1 , 2000. 

In January 2000, the NJBPU approved a Phase I stipulation that enables all customers to choose an alternative 
supplier of natural gas while the utility continues to provide basic gas supply services. The Company is currently 
awaiting the fonnal issuance of a NJBPlJ order. As part of the settIement, the Company has agreed to make a filing 
within one week of the issuance of the NJBPU order to address additional issues raised in the April 1999 filing. 

Financing Activities and Resources 

The Company’s net cash provided by operating activities was $49.0 million and $58.1 million for the six-month periods 
ended March 3 1, 2000 and 1999, respectively. The change in the six-month period ended March 3 1, 2000 was 
primarily due to a reduction in overrecowred gas costs under the Company’s purchased gas adjustment clause, partdry 
offset by timing of payments to gas suppliers and collections on receivables. 

Because the Company‘s business is hghly seasonal, short-term debt is used to meet seasonal working capital 
requirements. The Company also borrows under its bank lines of credit to fmance portions of its capital expenditures, 
pending r e k c i n g  through the issuance of equity or long-term indebtedness at a later date, depending upon prevailing 
market conditions. 

Short-Term Debt. The weighted average daily amounts outstanding of notes payable to banks and the weighted 
average interest rates on those amounts were $79.5 million at 6.8 percent for the six-month period ended March 31, 
2000 and $86.1 mdlion at 5.7 percent for the six-month period ended March 31, 1999. At March 31, 2000, the 
Company had outstanding notes payable to banks sunounting to $49.2 million and available unused h e s  of credit 
amounting to $106.8 million. Notes payable to banks decreased as of March 31, 2000 as compared to the balance 
outstanding at September 30, 1999, due to seasonal borrowing requirements. 

Long-Term Debt and Funds for Construction Held by Trustee. On December 8, 1998, the Company issued $40 
million of tax-exempt Gas Facilities Revenue Bonds at an inkrest rate of 5.25 percent. These bonds will mature in 
November 2033 and the proceeds will bi: used to finance a portion of the Company’s capital expenditure program In 
New Jersey. 

The Company deposits in trust the unexpended portion of the net pmeeds from Its Gas Fadt ies  Revenue Bonds until 
drawn upon for eligible expenditures. As of March 3 1,2000, the total unexpended portions of all of the Company’s Gas 
Facilities Revenue Bonds were $25.7 mil lion and are classified on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet, including 
interest earned thereon, as funds for construction held by trustee. 

Common Stack. The Company periodically issues shares of common stock in connection with NUI Direct, the 
Company’s dwidend reinvesbnent plan stud certain employee benefit plans. Effective May 26, 1998, several of these 
plans commenced purchasing shares on the open market to fulfill the plans’ requirements. Under the tenns of these 
plans, the Company may periodicauy change the method of purchasing shares from open market purchases to 
purchases duectly from the Company, or vice versa. The proceeds from such issuances amounted to were not 
significant in both the six-month periods Iended March 3 1,2000 and 1999 due to the plans purchasing shares directly in 
the open market rather than from the Company. 

On November 12, 1999, the Company issued 1 13,200 shares of NU1 common stock that was used for the purchase of 
NUI Telecom (see Note 3 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements). 

Dividends. The Company’s long-term dcbt agreements include, among other things, resbictions as to the payment of 
cash dwidends. Under the most restrictive of these provisions, the Company is permitted to pay approximately $70.7 
million of cash dwidends at March 3 1,2000. 
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Capital Expenditurw and Commitments 

Capital expenditures, which consist prirrlarily of expenditures to expand and upgrade the Company’s gas dstribution 
systems, were $21.7 million for the six-month period ended March 31, 2000 as compared to $16.8 million for the six- 
month period ended March 31, 1999. C,apital expenditures are expected to be approximately $48.6 million for all of 
fiscal 2000, as compared with a total of $47.9 million in fiscal 1999. 

The Company owns or previously owned six former manufactured gas plant (MGP) sites in the state of New Jersey and 
ten former MGP sites in the states of North Carolina, South Carolina, Pennsylvania, New York and Maryland. Based on 
the Company’s most recent assessment, The Company has recorded a total reserve for environmenta1 investigation and 
remdation costs of approximately $34 million, whch is the minimum amount that the Company expects it will 
expend in the next 20 years to remediate the Company’s MGP sites. Of this reserve, approximately $30 million relates 
to New Jersey MGP sites and approximately $4 million relates to the MGP sites located outside New Jersey. However, 
the Company believes that it is possible that costs associated with conducting investigative activities and rmplemenhg 
remedial actions, if necessary, with respect to all of its MGP sites may exceed thu reserve by an amount that could 
range up to an a~tionalS24 million ant1 be incurred during a hture penod of time that may range up to 50 years. Of 
this $24 million in possible additional expen&tures, approximately $12 million relates to the New Jersey MGP sites and 
approximately $12 million relates to the remaining MGP sites. As compared with the $34 million reserve currently 
recorded on the Company’s books as discussed above, the Company believes that it is less hkely that this additional $24 
million will be incurred and therefore hap not recorded it on its books. The Company believes that all costs associated 
with the New Jersey MGP sites will be n:coverable in rates or h m  insurance carriers. In New Jersey, the Company is 
currently recovering environmental cosb; on an annual basis through base rates and over a ro lhg  seven-year period 
through its MGP Remediation Adjustment Clause. As a result, the Company has begun rate recovery of approximately 
$5.5 million of mviromental costs incurred through June 30, 1998. Recovery of an additional $2.0 million in 
environmental costs incurred between July 1, 1998 and June 30, 1999 is currentIy pendmg NJBPU approval. With 
respect to costs that may be associated with the MGP sites Iocated outside the state of New Jersey, the Company intends 
to pursue recovery from ratepayers, former owners and operators of the sites and from insurance carriers. However, the 
Company is not able, at this time, to express a belief as to whether any or all of these recovery efforts will ultimately be 
successll. 

Certain of the Company’s long-term contracts for the supply, storage and delivery of nahlral gas include fEed charges 
that amount to appmximaiely $68 million annually. The Company cunently recovers, and expects to continue to 
recover, such fixed charges through its purchased gas adjustment clauses. As a result of the forthcoming unbundhg of 
natural gas services in New Jersey, them: contracts may result in the realization of stranded costs by the Company. 
Management believes the outcome of these actions will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results. 
The Company also is committed to purchase, at market-related prices, minimum quantities of gas that, in the aggregate, 
are approximately 2.6 billion cubic feet (Bcf) per year or to pay certain costs in the event the minimum quantities are 
not taken. The Company expects that mirlimum demand on its systems for the duration of these contracts will continue 
to exceed these minimum purchase obligritions. 

The Company is scheduled to repay $20 rnillion of Medium-Term Notes in August 2002. 

Market Risk Exposure 

The Company’s wholesale trading subriidiary, NU1 Energy Brokers, uses derivatives for multiple purposes: i) to 
hedge price commitments and minimize the risk of fluctuating gas prices, ii) to take advantage of market 
information and opportunities in the marketplace, and iii) to fulfill its trading strategies and, therefore, ensure 
favorable prices and margins. These derjvative instnunents include forwards, futures, options and swaps. 

The risk associated with uncovered derivative positions is closely monitored on a daily basis, and controlled in 
accordance with NUl Energy Brokers’ Risk Management Policy. Thls policy has been approved by the Company’s 
Board of Directors and dictates policies and procedures for all trading activities. The policy defines both value-at- 
risk (VaR) and loss limits, and all traders are required to read and follow this policy. At the end of each day, all 
trading positions are marked-to-market and a VaR is calculated. This information, as well as the status of all limits, 
is disseminated to senior management &lily. 
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NU1 Energy Brokers utilizes the variancekovariance VaR methodology. Using a 95 percent confidence interval and 
a one day time horizon, as of March 3 1,2000, NU1 Energy Brokers’ VaR was $72,000. 

Year 2000 

The Company had developed readiness :plans to address the possible exposures related to the impact on its computer 
systems of the Year 2000. Since entering; the Year 2000, the Company has not experienced any major disruptions to its 
business nor is it aware of any significant Year 2000-related disruptions impacting its customers and suppliers. 

The Company will continue to monitor its critical systems for Year 2000-related issues that could arise anytime 
throughout the year, such as customer or vendor problems. Contingency plans, supplementing existing disaster 
recovery and business continuity plans, have been developed as necessary for the Company’s own systems and its 
third-party relationships, in response to its assessments, remediation and testing activities and will be used as 
necessary for ongoing problems. The specific actions identified include measures such as m u a l  workarounds, 
deployment of backup or secondary te:chnologies, rearranging work schedules, and substitution of suppliers, as 
appropriate. The Company believes that due to its planning activities, the likelihood of major consequences in the 
hture due to the Year 2000 should be greatly reduced. 

The total estimated costs incurred associated with Year 2000 readiness activities are approximately $3.5 million, a 
majority of which were incurred prior to the current fiscal year. Approximately 50 percent of these costs were 
related to capital projects. The Compimy has, and where necessary will continue to, find these costs from the 
operations of the Company. 

Forward-Looking Statements 

This document contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 2 1 E of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended. The Company cautions that, while it believes such statements to be reasonable and are 
made in good faith, such forward-lookhg statements almost always vary from actual results, and the differences 
between assumptions made in making such statements and actual results can be material, depending upon the 
circumstances. Factors, which may make the actual results differ from anticipated results include, but are not 
limited to, economic conditions; unfores,een competition; weather conditions; fluctuations in the price of natural gas 
and other fonns of energy; the outcome of certain assumptions made in regard to Year 2000 issues; and other 
uncertainties, all of which are difficult to predict and many of whch are beyond the contro1 of the Company. 
Accordmgly , investors should not rely upon these forward-loolung statements in making investment decisions. 
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PART U - OTHER INFORMATION 

h 

Item 4. Submission of Mrmtters to a vote of Security HoIders 

The following matters were presented for submission to a vote of security holders through the solicitation of proxies or 
otherwise during the second quarter of fiscal 2000. 

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of NLTT Corporation was held on March 27, 2000. Proxies for the Annual 
Me- were solicited pursuant to Regplation 14A and there was no solicitation in opposition to management’s 
nominees. At the meeting, the shareholders approved an agreement to reorganize the Company’s corporate structure, 
elected directors and ratified the appointment of independent public accountants. 

The total votes were as follows: 
Against or 

- For Withheld 

(1) Approval of the reorganization of the corporate 8,595,769 153,863 
structure 

(2) Election of directors to serve for three-year 
terms: 

James J. Forese 
R. Van Whisnand 

10,789,936 255,937 
10,79 1,3 17 254,556 

(3) Ratification the appointment of A r t h ~  Andersen 
LLP as independent public accountants 10,895,236 116,306 

Item 6. Exhibits and Reports on Form 8-K 

(a) Exhibits. 

Exhibit 
No. Description of Exhibit 

27 Financial Data Schedule 

Reference 

Filed herewith 

Abstain 

68,621 

34,329 

(b) Reports on Form &K 

None 
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Chief Financial Officer 
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Sheet1 

NU1 CORPORATION 
ESTIMATED CONSOLIDATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

FOR THE TWELVE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,2001 
(dollars in thousands) 

Exhibit 6-1 

SOURCES OF FUNDS 
NET INCOME 
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATICN 
CONSTRUCTION FUNDS, NET 
PROCEEDS FROM SALE OF COMMON STOCK 

DEFERRED FEDERAL INCOME TAXES 
PROCEEDS FROM ISSUANCE OF LONG-TERM DEBT 

OTHER NON-CASH CHARGES TO INCOME 

USES OF FUNDS 
CAPtTAL EXPENDITURES 
DIVIDENDS TO SHAREHOLDERS 
PURCHASE OF VIRGINIA GAS COMPANY 

REPAYMENTS OF CAPITAL LEASE8 
WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES 
AMORTIZATION OF ITC 
OTHER 

REPAYMENT OF LONG-TERM DEBT 

NET REPAYMENTS OF SHORT-TERM DEBT 

30,400 
30,500 
1 1,400 
25,500 
70,000 

1,000 
1,000 

169,800 

(67,600) 
(12,800) 
(22,000) 
(30,000) 
(1,700) 
(20,000) 

(450) 
(2,000) 

(1 56,550) 

$ 13,250 
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